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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 74, was appointed as the Chairman of the Bank in
1983. He is currently the Chairman of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”), Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), Banco
Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited (“DSLA”), Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited,
Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance Company
Limited, New Asian Shipping Company, Limited and various
other companies. He serves as a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of both DSFH and DSBG. Mr. Wong is the
Honorary President of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign Investors,
a Vice President of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a Vice
Chairman of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. Mr.
Wong has over 45 years of experience in banking and finance. He is
the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, the Managing Director and
Chief Executive of DSBG, Vice Chairman of the Bank and DSLA, and
an Executive Director of the Group’s other key operating banking and
fellow insurance subsidiaries.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 62, joined the Bank in 1977 and has served and
managed various departments before appointed as a Director in
1989 and was promoted as its Managing Director in 2000 and Vice
Chairman in April 2011. He was appointed as the Managing Director
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”) in 2004 and promoted
as Vice Chairman in April 2011. He was appointed as Director of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”) in 1993 and promoted as its
Managing Director in January 2002. He ceased to be a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of both DSBG and DSFH in
September 2014. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group. He is
a Director of Great Wall Life Insurance Company Limited, and a Non-
Executive Director and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongqing Co., Ltd.
in which the Group has a 17% equity interest in its H shares listed
in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is an Associate of The Institute of Bankers
(U.K.) and a Founder Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
and The International Retail Banking Council of the U.K. Mr. Wong has
over 35 years of experience in banking.
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Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 45, joined the Bank in 2000, and was appointed as
an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March 2010. He
was appointed as an Executive Director of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited (“DSBG”) in 2004 and promoted as the Managing Director and
Chief Executive in April 2011. He is also a Vice Chairman of Dah Sing
Life Assurance Company Limited, and a Director of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited and Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Mr. Wong was
appointed as a member of The EFAC Financial Infrastructure Sub-
Committee, a sub-committee under the Exchange Fund Advisory
Committee (“EFAC”) of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, in October
2014. He is a qualified solicitor in England and Wales and in Hong
Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong, the Chairman
of the Boards of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited and DSBG.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wang, aged 54, joined the Bank as the Group Financial Controller
in 1995 and was promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for
the overall financial management and control, operations and IT
functions of the Group for a number of years since then. He was
promoted as the Managing Director and Chief Executive of the Bank
in May 2011. Mr. Wang was appointed as an Executive Director of
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited in 2004. He is also a Director of
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau,
S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and Dah Sing Life Assurance
Company Limited. Mr. Wang is a qualified accountant, a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Wang has over 25 years of experience in financial management
and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 47, joined the Bank in 1998, and was appointed
as an Executive Director in 2007 and as the Deputy Chief Executive
in August 2011. He is currently an Executive Director of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited, Dah Sing Life Assurance Company
Limited, Macau Insurance Company Limited, Macau Life Insurance
Company Limited and Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited. He serves as
Head of Treasury and Corporate Finance of the Bank, responsible for
its treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew has over 25
years of experience in financial services both in the U.K. and Hong
Kong.
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Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Mr. Lau, aged 52, joined the Bank in 1992, and was appointed as an
Executive Director in May 2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive in
May 2014. He is currently the Head of Commercial Banking Division,
responsible for overseeing and supervising commercial banking
business. He was also a committee member of SME Standing
Committee of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong
in 2013-2014. Mr. Lau has over 25 years of experience in commercial
banking.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive

Ms. Wong, aged 48, joined the Bank as the Head of Retail Banking
business in February 2012, responsible for the development
and management of overall retail banking, bancassurance, retail
brokerage, wealth management businesses, private banking and
vehicle financing. She was appointed as an Executive Director in May
2012 and an Alternate Chief Executive in May 2014. Ms. Wong has
over 25 years of experience in retail and personal banking business
with other banks operating in Hong Kong, including Standard
Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank International.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hau-Tak Li (Gary Li)
Chief Credit Officer and Head of Group Risk Division

Mr. Li, aged 54, joined the Bank in 2005. He has been the Chief
Credit Officer since September 2009 and assumed the role of Head
of Group Risk Division since February 2013. Mr. Li graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Science degree and
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a Master of Business
Administration degree. He is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Mr. Li has over 25 years of experience in
banking.

Mr. Edmund Yue-Yeung Poon
Chief Operating Officer

Mr. Poon, aged 55, joined as the Chief Operating Officer of the Bank
in July 2013, and is responsible for overseeing operations and IT
functions of the Group. He graduated from the University of Waterloo
in Canada with a Bachelor Degree in Mathematics and a Master of
Mathematics (Computer Science) Degree. Mr. Poon has 30 years
of extensive experience in operations, IT and project management
mainly covering retail and corporate banking. He has the experience in
managing both operations and IT functions of banking in Hong Kong
in a senior capacity for many years.

Mr. Clement Poon
General Manager and Group Financial Controller

Mr. Poon, aged 45, joined the Bank in January 2003 as the Head of
Financial Accounting Department and was appointed as a General
Manager and the Group Financial Controller of the Bank in December
2014. He graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
attained a Degree of Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. He is a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the U.K. and an
Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Poon has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management in the banking industry.



NTEENSEEEABGN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

FPhBRL
BIEERFEBAN D ERELE

F4 4 - 50p% © 72000 F HIA AR ERFT I B 2005
FRATREEMERANERRETIE  BEAR
RITANERREREE - WEERBET XK
BREXBTBEUNAREFAARETHEREL
B - FUTHBE25FANERKER -

B S
BFIERIRTTRIBIRA GITTHABAREF

JLSHE © 525% - 20129 7 AMIAKRIRIT RIEE
ERRFIEZERITIRG AR A B (FRPIFEM AL
S)ZITRBERES - LA EHEB B 25 FRIT
RS EBER - SERBBEMIRITRIEAM
RIT - BITRITENEBREERT (BB BRA
BlZBE12F EFEREERITEREE -

WEREE
AFERTT (FE)) BIR L Al THABHARE F

BESCHE 0 B25% 0 F2012F 9 AMIARIRITRIEE
FRABTEZLEMNBARATRIT(FE)AE
FRAE] ([ RFERIT (RED) ) 2 BETBAAERE
BRI EE o 1N2014F12 AR E A KRFTR
T(PE) ZHITESRR2015F 2 ARZT AKX
FERTT(PE) 21TIRAEE, - FEtEEB 28 FHRE
REB R EABRITEBER  EMAKREITA - €
EREITRTZ AR REEBAL -

Ms. Florence Siu-Wai Lee
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources

Ms. Lee, aged 50, joined the Bank in 2000 and has been the
General Manager and Group Head of Human Resources since 2005,
responsible for human resources strategies and management of the
Bank. She graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Arts degree and obtained from The University of Hull,
U.K., a Master degree in Business Administration. Ms. Lee has over 25
years of experience in human resources.

Mr. Eddie Yiu-Fai Kong
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Kong, aged 52, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer and Director of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.
(incorporated in Macau) in July 2012. Mr. Kong has over 25 years
of experience in banking and finance business with other banks in
Hong Kong including Daiwa Bank, Standard Chartered Bank, and
with particular focus in corporate and institutional banking business
management for the last 12 years in DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited.

Mr. Vincent Ho-Wing Yau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Yau, aged 52, joined the Bank and was appointed as the Alternate
Chief Executive Officer and Head of Business Development of Dah
Sing Bank (China) Limited (“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary
of the Bank, in September 2012. He was appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB China in December 2014 and the Chief Executive
Officer of DSB China in February 2015. Mr. Yau has 28 years of
experience in the banking industry in China and Hong Kong, and had
assumed various senior executive positions in Standard Chartered
Bank before joining the Bank.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) are
the provision of banking, financial and other related services. The

principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 32 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 13.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Bank during the year are shown
in Note 44 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Bank during the
year are set out in Note 45 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,693,000.

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and of the Bank during
the year are shown in Note 33 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice-Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Andrew Kwan-Yuen Leung*

Lon Dounn*

Seng-Lee Chan*

Yuen-Tin Ng*

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Managing Director and Chief Executive

EEE Nicholas John Mayhew
HITEFEFETTIHARS Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
2UpkiE Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
HITEFFREFTTHAEH Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive
FEE Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
HITEFFREFTTHAEH Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive
B INTEE * Independent Non-Executive Directors
ARARITZABERMB U ESEEARESR There being no provision in the Bank’s Articles of Association for

ZRE  WERBREEFEERE-

retirement by rotation, all Directors continue in office.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the Share Option Schemes (the “Schemes”) as approved
by the shareholders of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)
and Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”), the Bank’s ultimate
and immediate holding companies respectively, eligible participants
may be granted options at a consideration of HK$1 per option to
subscribe for shares of DSFH or DSBG. The exercise price per option
share is varied by tranches of grant, which is concluded on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) being determined as no less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the relevant shares traded on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) on the date
of grant; and (ji) the average closing price of the relevant shares traded
on the SEHK for the 5 business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) for options granted before the commencement of
the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the nominal value of the shares
in the capital of DSFH and DSBG. (The Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), which came into force on 3 March 2014, adopts a mandatory
system of no nominal value for all Hong Kong incorporated companies
having a share capital and abolishes the concept of nominal value for
all shares. With effect from 3 March 2014, the shares of DSFH and
DSBG have no nominal value.) The options granted can be exercised
in varying amounts between the first and fifth anniversaries from the
date of grant in general.

The following were arrangements which subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year which enabled the Directors of the
Bank to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in its
holding companies.

Directors’ interests in the Schemes during the year are described
below:

(@) Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited Share Option Scheme (the
“DSFH Scheme”)

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”), the Bank’s
ultimate holding company, operates the DSFH Scheme whereby
certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries were granted
options to subscribe shares in DSFH.

During the year, Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Director of the
Bank, had outstanding options granted under the DSFH
Scheme.

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank and none of the Directors had acquired shares in DSFH by
exercising options granted under the DSFH Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

(®)

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Share Option Schemes (the
“Old DSBG Scheme” and the “New DSBG Scheme”)

On 12 June 2004, Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“DSBG”),
the Bank’s immediate holding company, adopted a share option
scheme (the “Old DSBG Scheme”) whereby certain directors
and employees of its subsidiaries were granted options to
subscribe shares in DSBG.

On 27 May 2014, the shareholders of DSBG approved the
termination of the Old DSBG Scheme in anticipation of its
expiry on 11 June 2014 and the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “New DSBG Scheme”) whereby eligible
participants may be granted options to subscribe shares in
DSBG.

No further options can be offered under the Old DSBG Scheme
after its termination but the provisions of the Old DSBG Scheme
shall remain in all other respects in full force and effect in
respect of any options granted prior to such termination but not
yet exercised at the time of termination.

During the year, Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong, Mr. Gary Pak-Ling
Wang, Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew, Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau
and Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong, Directors of the Bank, had
outstanding options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme.

During the year, no options were granted to Directors of the
Bank under the Old DSBG Scheme (before its termination) or
the New DSBG Scheme (since its commencement). Save for
Mr. Eddie Shing-Tat Lau who had acquired shares in DSBG
by exercising options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme,
no other Directors had acquired shares in DSBG by exercising
options granted under the Old DSBG Scheme or the New DSBG
Scheme.

Apart from the above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its

subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party

to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire

benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Bank or any other body corporate.

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors do not have any service contracts with the Bank.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Bank’s business to
which the Bank, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
companies was a party and in which a Director of the Bank had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 have been set out in Note 48 to the financial
statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014, the Bank has fully complied with the requirements set out in
the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority under section 60A of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
The Bank has fully complied with such disclosure requirements.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEI\/IENT

AR e

HZE2014F12 A31 HILFE
(LAPS ¥ T 7ThL57R)

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2014 2013
MBI A Interest income 4,932,721 4,363,880
FIEZH Interest expense (1,940,224) (1,562,212)
BRI E WA Net interest income 6 2,992,497 2,801,668
AR5 E KBS WA Fee and commission income 1,061,287 935,902
RSB RAe = H Fee and commission expense (229,567) (233,989)
FIREERASBA Net fee and commission income 7 831,720 701,913
FEBERA Net trading income 214,421 242172
HinE A Other operating income 59,586 53,109
EEWA Operating income 4,098,224 3,798,862
B Operating expenses 10 (2,150,366) (2,008,276)
?EI BRI BB 18 AT 2 & B T Operating profit before impairment losses 1,947,858 1,790,586
FORMEEE R E M S E R Loan impairment losses and

other credit provisions 12 (472,962) (309,806)
R EEEZ 2 EEER Operating profit after impairment losses 1,474,896 1,480,780
HE H A EE & E 2 FEE Net loss on disposal of other fixed assets 13 (2,579) (2,715)
WEMEATERAREZ Net gain on fair value adjustment of

U investment properties 14 41,127 18,415

HEFEFRE 2 F s (BE) Net gain/(loss) on disposal of

investments in securities 15 17,036 (100,341)
RELEHE A RRE 2 BB Loss on deemed disposal of

investment in an associate - (56,971)
FE(RESE & R B 2 3E4E Share of results of an associate 602,299 578,556
FEAEHLEIERIE RS 2 545 Share of results of jointly controlled entities 20,657 17,311
BB DR R Profit before taxation 2,153,436 1,935,035
I8 Taxation 16 (226,179) (235,558)
S8R 1T IR 3R PE AL 5 R A Profit for the year attributable to

shareholders of the Bank 18 1,927,257 1,699,477
’RE Dividends

2k B S Interim dividend paid 19 - 110,000

BRAREAAR S Proposed final dividend 19 - 250,000
Fo0BEF 227 B ZMsF NG ST ERET T — The notes on pages 20 to 227 are an integral part of these

2B e

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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I\‘/ \ I:| EF_\@LI 2%
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2014F12 A31HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2014
(LABETTh5IR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
2014 2013
FEERF Profit for the year 1,927,257 1,699,477
FEHMEEmRE Other comprehensive income for the year
TeEmHEERE Items that will not be reclassified to
e ARA9IER - the consolidated income statement:
1E Premises
REBENSBRITER Reserves arising from reclassification
KB R of premises to investment properties 36,533 122,248
Higngbesimois Items that may be reclassified subsequently
e WERMIER ¢ to the consolidated income statement:
BHFRE Investments in securities
RN < AR HEF S Fair value gains on available-for-sale
N ERE securities recognised in equity 258,976 47,691
AFE (W), EIEEE R Fair value (gain)/loss realised and transferred
B E R to income statement upon:
—HERHIEEES — Disposal of available-for-sale securities (21,692) (107,287)
— HERERRAHEE - Disposal of held-to-maturity securities
HRlREFHEE and investments in securities included
REI R FREEE in the loans and receivables category
B R ESGRIBLE R which were previously reclassified from
ZEBEHIGE the available-for-sale category 3,756 135,647
Tﬁ;ﬁéﬁfuﬁﬁmiﬂz LIEFRIA Deferred income tax on movements in
investment revaluation reserve (33,934) (19,998)
243,639 178,301
REGIMEEM B RRNELEZR Exchange differences arising on translation of
the financial statements of foreign entities (108,599) 105,918
HBRFIIRE 2 FEH MW= Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 135,040 284,219
HBpHRER2EFEIRESET Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2,062,297 1,983,696
EO0BEE 227 B M ARG A RE S — The notes on pages 20 to 227 are an integral part of these
ZR4y o consolidated financial statements.

RFRITARAR | 20144 5 |



e MBIRAR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2014412 A31H
(PAB R TITALTR)

As at 31 December 2014
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

L
Note 2014 2013

BE ASSETS
Re RIERITHA Cash and balances with banks 20 14,838,111 8,270,012
TESRITHITF SR Placements with banks 21 5,324,811 4,101,293
FIEEERARRE Trading securities 22 6,850,362 6,335,788
EENATETZH Financial assets designated at fair value

BEalEmEE through profit or loss 22 9,821 4,248
PTESmMTA Derivative financial instruments 23 756,829 687,069
FHEERREAMIEE Advances and other accounts 24 115,858,861 108,202,738
A HERS Available-for-sale securities 26 23,351,747 27,119,818
S LliEE Held-to-maturity securities 27 10,832,940 5,669,289
BN AR E Investment in an associate 29 3,746,918 3,304,993

HEZEHFBIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 30 65,694 59,657
Péﬁ%i Goodwill 31 811,690 811,690
B EE Intangible assets 31 61,844 66,242
TEREMEEEE Premises and other fixed assets 33 2,728,208 1,705,350
wEYZ Investment properties 34 745,166 600,540
FREFRTEE = Deferred income tax assets 41 80,591 22,975
BEA Total assets 186,063,593 166,961,702
=L LIABILITIES
|ITIER Deposits from banks 1,572,467 1,995,297
PTESRTE Derivative financial instruments 23 1,146,825 1,117,256
HIEEERZMNAE Trading liabilities 36 5,597,614 3,362,473
BPIFH Deposits from customers 37 143,234,437 129,945,133
B BITHFRE Certificates of deposit issued 38 6,109,777 6,132,561
BBITHESBES Issued debt securities 39 - 775,385
BIEES Subordinated notes 40 5,432,378 3,762,471
HAAR B RER Other accounts and accruals 2,645,717 2,602,907
BNEATH IR B (& Current income tax liabilities 206,392 200,072
FERIB A& Deferred income tax liabilities 41 55,056 21,268
BESE Total liabilities 166,000,663 149,914,823
FEZS EQUITY
[N Share capital 44 6,200,000 5,000,000
s (RERBER) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 45 13,862,930 11,796,879
FR R BAR 2 Proposed final dividend 45 - 250,000
ERE Total equity 20,062,930 17,046,879
EzRkBEES Total equity and liabilities 186,063,593 166,961,702

EE2N 201543 A 24 BHbE RIFREELM o

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24

March 2015.
FE FEME David Shou-Yeh Wong Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
EFE EE Director Director
=EE FHE Hon-Hing Wong Gary Pak-Ling Wang
EFE EEmiarE Director Managing Director
FEXBERFE22T B M I RGEEMEHRKR 2 — The notes on pages 20 to 227 are an integral part of these
B e consolidated financial statements.
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2014412 A31H
(PAB R TITALTR)

As at 31 December 2014

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

s

Note 2014 2013
BE ASSETS
e MERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 20 13,778,437 6,277,902
ERITHTF K Placements with banks 21 4,652,611 4,067,212
HIEEBERRNES Trading securities 22 6,850,362 6,335,788
PTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 23 776,476 710,805
FHEERMEMRE Advances and other accounts 24 96,910,623 89,945,740
A EES Available-for-sale securities 26 23,075,378 27,064,108
S LliEE Held-to-maturity securities 27 7,078,817 3,017,495
B NRIRE Investment in an associate 29 1,213,057 1,213,057
HEZEHEBIRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 30 20,000 20,000
mIAE Intangible assets 31 - 1,000
MIEB AR E RER Investments in and loans to subsidiaries 32 3,694,389 3,501,138
TEREMETEEE Premises and other fixed assets 33 2,279,787 1,232,737
B Investment properties 34 743,077 598,456
BESG Total assets 161,073,014 143,985,438
afE LIABILITIES
HRITIER Deposits from banks 2,612,806 3,149,653
TESRmITE Derivative financial instruments 23 1,141,386 1,109,217
BHIEEERZMAE Trading liabilities 36 5,597,614 3,362,473
EPER Deposits from customers 37 120,865,621 108,410,652
BEITHTRE Certificates of deposit issued 38 6,209,781 6,727,134
BEITHNEBRES Issued debt securities 39 = 775,385
BIEER Subordinated notes 40 5,432,378 3,762,471
HAbR B RIER Other accounts and accruals 2,215,292 2,294,433
BVEAFHIE B (& Current income tax liabilities 168,850 153,879
EEFTBEE Deferred income tax liabilities 41 47,204 19,934
BEAF Total liabilities 144,290,932 129,765,231
s EQUITY
&N Share capital 44 6,200,000 5,000,000
i (BERE &) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 45 10,582,082 8,970,207
HRAREAIR B Proposed final dividend 45 - 250,000
XA Total equity 16,782,082 14,220,207
EEkEES Total equity and liabilities 161,073,014 143,985,438

BEE2N 201553 A 24 B /E RIFREE M o

IFHE
EBEZ

R
EZ

F20EEF 27T AZMEDANGRMBEHRR 2 —

#Bo e

KERITAR AT | 2014545

March 2015.
F1HHE David Shou-Yeh Wong
o Director
EX (=) Hon-Hing Wong
EEpE Director

consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong

Director

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Managing Director

The notes on pages 20 to 227 are an integral part of these



GARREDE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2014F12 A31HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2014
(LABETTh5IR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
ZRERITIR R PE(h =
Attributable to the shareholders
of the Bank
[N Hit ks REZF EEEF
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings equity
201441 B 1 A&sER Balance at 1 January 2014 5,000,000 1,224,061 10,822,818 17,046,879
FEL2EREAEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - 135,040 1,927,257 2,062,297
BT ERRAR D Issue of ordinary shares 1,200,000 = = 1,200,000
LARR #E 2 1S LARR 19 1E 7= Provision for equity-settled
H RN 2 Bt share-based compensation - 3,754 = 3,754
2013 FARHIPE B 2013 final dividend - - (250,000) (250,000)
2014912 A 31 H&ER Balance at 31 December 2014 6,200,000 1,362,855 12,500,075 20,062,930
BZE12A31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2014 2013
BIERREAENA Proposed final dividend included
2 B AR BAAR B in retained earnings - 250,000

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 17



S ARRBHE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2014F12 A31 BIEFE (B) For the year ended 31 December 2014 (Continued)
(LB T TzoR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

ANERITAR R FE (G i 2
Attributable to the shareholders

of the Bank
A&7 H & RERETN Emas
Share Other Retained Total
capital reserves earnings equity
201341 A1 B## Balance at 1 January 2013 5,000,000 935,601 9,473,341 15,408,942

FEL2EREAEE Total comprehensive income

for the year 284,219 1,699,477 1,983,696

LARR#E 2 A5t LARR 19 1E 7% Provision for equity-settled

ELRE RN > B share-based compensation = 4,241 - 4,241
2012 FERHAIR & 2012 final dividend - - (240,000)  (240,000)
2013 FHHIR B 2013 interim dividend - - (110,000) (110,000)
20134 12 A 31 H&A#: Balance at 31 December 2013 5,000,000 1,224,061 10,822,818 17,046,879
E20BE 2 F 227 B 2k IR IR A MBHRERZ — The notes on pages 20 to 227 are an integral part of these
o o consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2014F12 A31HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2014
(LABETTh5IR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
L
Note 2014 2013
EEBH2EESRE Cash flows from operating activities
Z“‘%ﬁ@bmu?\/ FrA)IReFE Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 46(a) 6,442,760  (4,128,166)
RETHZHERE Cash flows from investing activities
FIMEE R B & A A Additional investment in
associate company - (330,000)
BETE  REVEK Purchase of premises, investment
E A [E 7E & 2 properties and other fixed assets (1,242,556) (227,923)
HETE  KEMER Proceeds from disposal of premises,
H A [ 7F & EFTS IR investment properties and
other fixed assets 178 2,897
XA BB TR R Net cash used in investing activities (1,242,378) (555,026)
MEZEZRERE Cash flows from financing activities
BITREER Issue of subordinated notes 1,731,250 -
SNBBEITREESRES Interest paid on subordinated notes
B Z MR and debt securities issued (246,560) (258,211)
B O ESE S Debt securities redeemed (775,285)  (1,938,463)
BT EERR G, Issue of ordinary shares 1,200,000 -
k3 E AR 2 Dividends paid on ordinary shares (250,000) (350,000)
BMEEBRA (FTH)ESFE Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 1,659,405 (2,546,674)
ReRERBESEREM Net increase/(decrease) in cash
(R2) 35 and cash equivalents 6,859,787  (7,229,866)
FURERERRESIEHR Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 9,305,124 16,501,531
EXREE 78 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (84,345) 33,459
ERBEERERRELEE Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 46(b) 16,080,566 9,305,124
EOo0EEE 227 B2 ARG A M ERE 2 — The notes on pages 20 to 227 are an integral part of these
RS o consolidated financial statements.
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(LABREFThzgI7R)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) provide retail banking, commercial banking and related
financial services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of
China.

The Bank is a financial institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The
address of its registered office is 36th Floor, Dah Sing Financial
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited,
a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 24 March 2015.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements for Part
9 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (“NCO”),
“Accounts and Audit” as set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule
11 to the NCO, the consolidated financial statements are prepared
in accordance with the applicable requirements of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the
comparative period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABREFThzgI7R)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, fair value-
hedged loans and receivables, financial assets and financial liabilities
held for trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) designated at fair value through profit or loss,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions
may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the
period the assumptions changed. Management believes that the
underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Group’s financial
statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(@ New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The following new standards and amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1
January 2014:

. Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
(2011), “Investment entities”, provide consolidation relief
to those parents which qualify to be an investment entity
as defined in the amended HKFRS 10. Investment entities
are required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss. These amendments do not have
impact to the financial statements of the Group.

° Amendments to HKAS 32, “Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities”, clarifies the requirements for offsetting
financial instruments and addressed inconsistencies in
current practice when applying the offsetting criteria in
HKAS 32, “Financial Instruments: Presentation”. There
is no material impact to the financial statements of the
Group as a result of this amendment.

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
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2. FESTHHEHEHSEmw 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
21 wmEE%E @) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(FF) ZFEERNZFRACIEFTER (%) (a New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets -
Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets”, removes certain disclosures of the recoverable
amount of cash generating units which had been included
in HKAS 36 by the issue of HKFRS 13. There is no material
impact to the financial statements of the Group as a result
of this amendment.

Amendments to HKAS 39, “Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting”, provides relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets
certain criteria. These amendments do not have impact to
the financial statements of the Group.

HK(IFRIC) 21, “Levies”, sets out the accounting for
an obligation to pay a levy that is not income tax. The
interpretation addresses what the obligating event is that
gives rise to the payment of a levy and when should a
liability be recognised. The Group is not currently subject
to significant levies so the impact on the Group is not
material.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2014, and have not been early adopted in preparing
these consolidated financial statements. None of these is
expected to have a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”, addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities and hedge accounting. HKFRS 9 was issued in
November 2009 and October 2010. It replaces the parts of
HKAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement
of financial instruments. HKFRS 9 requires financial assets
to be classified into two measurement categories: those
measured as at fair value and those measured at amortised
cost. The determination is made at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instrument. For financial liabilities,
the standard retains most of the HKAS 39 requirements. The
main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken
for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to
an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than in the income statement, unless this creates
an accounting mismatch. In December 2013, HKFRS 9 was
further amended when the requirements related to hedge
accounting (other than specific accounting for open portfolios
on macro hedging) were added.

In July 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board
published the full and final version of IFRS 9 (which is closely
followed by HKFRS 9) and set the effective date of IFRS 9 as
1 January 2018 although earlier adoption of the new standard
is permitted. The final IFRS 9 sets out, amongst other things,
the classification and measurement requirements for financial
instruments as described above, the requirement for a new,
expected-loss impairment model that will require more timely
recognition of expected credit losses, and a substantially-
reformed model for hedge accounting that aligns the accounting
treatment with risk management activities.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

The Group has already commenced the assessment of the full
impact and so far has not decided to early adopt the standard,
which shall be effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2018.

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

The NCO came into effect on 3 March 2014. On this effective
date, the concepts of nominal (par) value, share premium
and authorised share capital for all shares of Hong Kong
incorporated companies are abolished. Any amount received
for issuing equity shares of a company on or after 3 March 2014
should be recorded as part of share capital. The effect of this
transition on the Company is to subsume balance in the share
premium account into share capital as set out in section 37 of
Schedule 11 of the NCO. There is no impact on the number
of shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any of the
shareholders.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the NCO came into operation as from the Company’s
first financial year commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in
accordance with section 358 of the NCO. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of expected impact of the
changes in the NCO on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9 of the NCO. So far the
Group has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and only the presentation and the disclosure of information in
the consolidated financial statements will be affected.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.

(@)  Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the statement
of comprehensive income.
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2.

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowances for impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

(b)  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
as transactions with equity holders of the Bank. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s
investments in associates include goodwill (net of any
accumulated impairment loss) identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share
of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the
income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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2.

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates (Continued)

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
income statement.

In the Bank’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the Bank
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

(d)  Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and
the consolidated statement of financial position includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all instruments measured at amortised cost, available-for-sale
securities and certain financial assets/liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash
flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan syndication fees are
recognised as revenue when the syndication has been completed and
the Group retained no part of the loan package for itself or retained
a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.
Wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time are recognised
rateably over the period the service is provided.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the income statement when the Group’s
right to receive payment is established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets
26.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its investments at initial recognition, except for
subsequent reclassification meeting specified definition of relevant
asset reclassification.

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
at inception.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so
designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

The Group designates a financial asset upon initial recognition
as designated at fair value through profit or loss (fair value
option) if the following criteria are met:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification (Continued)

(@ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

(i) A group of financial assets is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the assets is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(i)  Financial assets with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial assets for which the fair value option is applied are
recognised in the statement of financial position as “Financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market, other than: (a) those that the Group intends to sell
immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held
for trading, and those that the Group upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that
the Group upon initial recognition designates as available-
for-sale; or (c) those for which the Group may not recover
substantially all of its initial investment, other than because of
credit deterioration.

(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may
be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest
rates, exchange rates or equity prices.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
26.1 Classification (Continued)
(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity.

26.2 Reclassification

The Group may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial
asset out of the held-for-trading category if the financial asset is no
longer held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. Financial
assets are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading
category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that
is unusual and highly unlikely to recur in the near term. In addition,
the Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet
the definition of loans and receivables out of the held-for-trading
or available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and
ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity at the date of reclassification. The Group may also reclassify
financial assets that no longer qualify for recognition as loans and
receivables to available-for-sale if the financial assets become quoted
in active market.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date.
Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as applicable, and
no reversals of fair value gains or losses before reclassification date
are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets
reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories
are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows from the financial assets will require

adjustment to the effective interest rates prospectively.

On reclassification of a financial asset out of the “at fair value through
profit or loss” category, all embedded derivatives are re-assessed
and, if necessary, separately accounted for.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Financial assets (Continued)
263 Recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The bases for the determination of fair value of financial assets are set
out in Note 3.5(a).

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair
value at inception are included directly in the income statement
and are reported as part of “Net trading income”. Interest
income and expense derived from and incurred on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are included under “Net
interest income” in the income statement.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost less any
impairment loss. For loans and receivables that are subject
to fair value hedge arrangements, the hedged elements of the
loans and receivables hedged are carried at fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.6

263

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement (Continued)
(c) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at
fair value which is the cash given including any transaction
costs. They are measured subsequently at fair value with
gains and losses (except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets classified
as available-for-sale) recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity until the financial assets are
derecognised.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
equity is reclassified into the income statement.

Interest is calculated using the effective interest method and
recognised in the income statement. Foreign currency gains and
losses on monetary assets classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income statement
under “Other operating income” when the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

(d)  Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. They are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows have expired.

Interest is included in the income statement and is reported
as “Net interest income”. If a held-to-maturity investment
is determined to be impaired, the impairment is reported as
a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and
recognised in the income statement as impairment charge on

held-to-maturity investments.
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2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset

or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is

objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

o Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or
interest;
o Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (for

example, high debt-to-equity ratio, low net income as a
percentage of sales);

. Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position;
° Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

o Downgrading below investment grade level.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes that asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable

market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (i.e. on the basis of the Group’s grading process
that considers asset type, collateral type, overdue status and
other relevant factors). Those characteristics relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due
according to the contractual terms of the assets are considered.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do
not currently exist.
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2.

2.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(@) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period (for example,
changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment
status, or other factors indicative of changes in the probability of
losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off
after all the necessary procedures have been completed and
the amount of the loss has been determined. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off decrease the
amount of the allowances for loan impairment in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in

the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2.

2.7

2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered in determining whether the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of
a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment
or individually significant and whose terms have been renegotiated
are no longer considered to be past due but are treated as new
loans. In subsequent periods, the asset if past due again is
considered to be and disclosed as past due loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial

liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and

recognised initially at fair value. The bases for the determination of fair

value of financial liabilities are set out in Note 3.5(a).
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2.

2.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(@)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities held
for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss at inception.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. It
is carried at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in

fair value are recognised in the income statement.

A financial liability is typically classified as fair value through
profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mis-match”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses
on them on different bases; or

(i) A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about the liabilities is provided internally to
the key management personnel such as the Board of
Directors and Chief Executive Officer; or

(iii)  Financial liabilities with embedded derivatives where the
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are
not closely related to the host contracts.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
include the Group’s own debt securities in issue and deposits
received from customers that are embedded with certain
derivatives. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised under “Net trading
income” in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Financial liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net of
transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the other financial liabilities
using the effective interest method.

If the Group purchases its own debt, it is removed from the
statement of financial position, and the difference between
the carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is
accounted for as a gain or loss in the income statement.

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at their fair value. The bases for the determination of fair
value of derivative financial instruments are set out in Note 3.5(a). All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such
as the conversion option in a convertible bond where it is not settled
by exchanging a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of own equity instrument, are treated as separate
derivatives when their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract
is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement unless the Group chooses to
designate the hybrid contracts at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value
of recognised assets or liabilities. Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(Continued)

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various
hedge transactions. The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective
in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

(@)  Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement under “Net trading income — Net gain/loss arising
from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”, together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset that are
attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to
profit or loss over the period to maturity and remains in retained
earnings until the disposal of the hedged item.

(b)  Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative
instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the income statement under
“Net trading income”. For derivatives that are managed in
conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their
fair value are included under “Net trading income — Net gain/
loss arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss”.

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

41



AR5 RR PoE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

2. FEEHBEBEm@

2.10 HFESWMITA

HWERMITERENEHALEEREEREE
NFREEGE S BREENRRSEAGER
TRMEERBBEREREYE  AE.IFFTAENY
BRI R A2 VA TE AT R Bl TR KRR
PR EM - MAE—RELBIZP A RMA
NEIEF-BHIRELY - BERE R E
B - A LR BIFAT ©

211 HEREEHZE

BRLENERBERS ([EERHE]) 285603
HeHZSHTFRECES B EHEMIRT
ZHRER - RITERREMERE RIRIRP 2R
EBREHZ((RAREHE]) MEBAZERD
EHEEREBRTHMRITRELERRBR
e HEERDBEZREENSRERER
BERMFZEZBHRDBRAE - B TRHYF
ZEFARBEFEREA

BRZEBFREETE=FAFEBARBER
BEREARKEXBEBEREERLAIN - BT
SEMBHERAER - BRBESZHFERTE
ERZZABNRFEANE -

212 REEE

EWEHERREE 2 ER TS WM - WEN
RREZNERE E 2 A EREE R -
RERENERME - AEEREEERIIOE
Be RS AT R SA Y HEAB #E K (3 W EL R4 3 EE AN
REEELEHRAE HEAIERD KRR LE
R RITENMEERRG 2 EERFBHEL
RN [RAEERREMEKR —EHMEEI BT -

KERITAR AT | 2014545

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterparty.

2.11 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent to
counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the financial statements,
unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the purchases and
sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in trading income.
The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as a trading
liability.

2.12 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the statement of financial position
with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances made. In the case
of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have been foreclosed
and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal arrangements or
court orders, and with the legal title of the assets having been passed
to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The foreclosed assets
held for resale are included in “Advances and other accounts — Other
assets”.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating
decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on
an arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs
being eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining operating
segment performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8, the Group has the following
segments: Personal Banking, Commercial Banking, Treasury,
Overseas Banking and Others.

2.14 Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation
currency and the functional and presentation currency of the
Bank and major part of the Group.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign

currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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2. FESTHEHEHE@ 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 SNEBRE )

(Z) XBREE (&) (b)  Transactions and balances (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
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All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the income
statement are presented net in the income statement within
the corresponding item. Foreign exchange gains and losses
on other comprehensive income items are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within the corresponding

item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as available-for-sale,
a distinction is made between translation differences resulting
from changes in amortised cost of the assets and other changes
in the carrying amount of the assets. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
income statement, and those related to changes in the carrying
amount, except for impairment, are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items,
such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies (Continued)

(i)  income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income statement
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land
classified as finance lease and all other fixed assets are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Premises and other fixed assets (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its
intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance
lease and depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Premises Over the shorter of 50 years or

remaining period of lease

—  Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives
and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10

years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.18).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating lease and
buildings held under finance lease.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value.
Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International Valuation
Standards Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by
external valuers. Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which the market has
become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the
date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises
and other fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain
reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

2.17 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised
separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from
contractual or other legal rights, and their value can be measured
reliably. They include core deposits, contracts and customer
relationships intangible assets, and trade names. Intangible assets
are stated at cost less amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated based on estimated useful life
ranging from 5 to 12 years using a diminishing balance method.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or associate is also required upon receiving
dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the Bank’s share of
the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity in the
Bank’s statement of financial position exceeds the Bank’s share of
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In such case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income

within the corresponding item.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Bank and the subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-
for-sale investments, which is charged or credited directly to equity,
is also credited or charged directly to equity and is subsequently
recognised in the income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.

2.20 Employee benefits
(@ Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)  Share-based compensation

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
the fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at
each reporting period with any change in the cost recognised
in the income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’
funds. The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at
the grant date, is charged to income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When
the options are exercised, the holding company will issue new
shares to settle its obligation, and transfer applicable amount
from the “Share-based compensation reserve” to the “Share
capital” account, in addition to the booking of paid-up capital
at par for each new share to be issued upon the exercise of the
option.

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

2.22 Leases
(@) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets
leased out are included in fixed assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position. They are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar owned
fixed assets. Rental income (net of any incentives given to
lessees) is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(b)  Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at
the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to
achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included as liabilities. The investment properties acquired under
finance leases are carried at their fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)
(b)  Finance lease (Continued)

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, the amounts
due under the leases, net of unearned finance income, are
recognised as a receivable and are included in “Advances and
other accounts”. Finance income implicit in rentals receivable is
credited to the income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding for each accounting period.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary
capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of
individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded
from the Group’s financial statements, as they are not assets of the
Group.

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the period in which they are approved by
shareholders.

2.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity
from the date of acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and
certificates of deposit and investment securities which are readily
convertible to cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and other bodies
on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities, and to other parties in connection with the performance of
customers under obligations related to contracts, advance payments
made by other parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of import
duties.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability relating to
financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the

control of the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Continued)

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking
risk is core to the financial business, and operational risks are an
inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return
and minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy
and policies approved by the Board of Directors. The EC and the
Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the
authority delegated by the Board oversee and guide the management
of different risks which are more particularly managed and dealt
with by the Group Risk Division (“GRD”) and different functional
committees. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and the control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that
also covers the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement in 2013. The Risk
strategy sets out the core values and high level risk management
direction of the Group, taking account of the overall business strategy
and direction. As for the Risk Appetite Statement, it sets out the
tolerance for the assumption of risk by the Group in the pursuit of
return and key corporate objectives and covers the areas including
target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency and other
key risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the ongoing monitoring
of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement and the regular
reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of
assets. The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating
short-term funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while
maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its
lending to commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers
appropriate fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk
and market conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance
sheet loans and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees
and other commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds
and other bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes
positions in exchange-traded and over-the-counter instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currency and interest rate.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the
use of derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash
amounts required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in
interest rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate
assets or increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of
these financial instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and
the terms of hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates,
hedge period and purpose are determined and documented at the
inception of each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed
at inception on a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing
basis, based on actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge
relationships that do not meet the effectiveness test requirement
of hedge accounting are discontinued with effect from the date of
ineffectiveness of the fair value hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,
and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving major credit
exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of
the loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees are
all chaired by the Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
with certain Executive Directors and senior business and credit
officers as members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval
and monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis.
Credits are extended within the parameters set out in the credit
policies and are approved by different levels of management based
upon established guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit
exposures, limits and asset quality are regularly monitored and
controlled by management, credit committees and GRD. The Group’s
internal auditors also conduct regular reviews and audits to ensure
compliance with credit policies and procedures, and regulatory
guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval
and review of new products and activities, and credit policies
with details of the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and
impairment policies.

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement
(@) Loans and advances

In measuring credit risk of loans and advances to customers and
to banks and other financial institutions at a counterparty level,
the Group focuses on three components, namely (i) credit risk
of the client or counterparty; (ii) current exposures to client or
counterparty; and (jii) the amount of impairment allowances.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(@
(i)

(i)

(i)

(®)

Loans and advances (Continued)

The Group assesses the credit quality of corporate clients
using an internal rating tool. It is developed internally
and combines general credit analysis and judgements
of credit officers, and is reviewed, where applicable, by
comparison with externally available data. The Group’s
rating scale has 13 grades which are segmented into
three broad rating classes as shown in Note 3.2.3.
Credit exposures migrate between credit grades and
rating classes as the assessment of credit quality on the
borrower and business environment changes. The rating
tool is kept under review and upgraded as necessary.

Credit quality of personal clients is assessed using
established criteria in credit policies and external
market data from credit bureau. Loans to individuals not
relating to commercial banking business are monitored
on portfolio basis primarily based on their delinquency
status.

Current exposure represents the actual utilisation of a
credit facility and contractual obligations including both

outstanding exposure and undrawn commitment.

The assessment of individual and collective impairment is
detailed in Note 3.2.3.

Credit-related commitments

Credit related commitments include bank guarantee, documentary

letter of credit, standby letter of credit and undrawn commitment

on legally bound facilities. Their credit risk is similar to loans except

for documentary letters of credit which are usually short term

and self-liquidating and carry a low level of credit risk and capital

charge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(c) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities and treasury bills, external credit ratings
from international credit rating agencies such as Standard &
Poor’s are used to assist in credit risk assessment on top of
internal credit analysis. These investments help to diversify
risk exposures and income streams, and to maintain a readily
available source of liquidity to the Group.

(d)  Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Group enters into a variety
of derivative transactions including forwards, futures, swaps
and options transactions in the interest rate, foreign exchange
and equity markets. Derivative transactions are conducted for
both trading and hedging purposes. The Group’s objectives in
using derivative instruments are to meet customers’ needs by
acting as an intermediary, to manage the Group’s exposure to
risks and to generate revenues through trading activities within
acceptable limits.

The Group is exposed to counterparty risk arising from its
positions in derivative financial instruments, which is either
“valuation risk” for the credit risk on receiving mark-to-market
gains upon the default of a counterparty prior to scheduled
settlement, or “settlement risk” for the possibility of not
receiving the expected cash flow of a derivative transaction
upon the expiry of a derivative contract on the settlement date.

The notional amounts of financial instruments do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current
fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The derivative
instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, equity prices and credit market
conditions. The aggregate contractual or notional amount of
derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to which
instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the
aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities,
can fluctuate significantly from time to time.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

(d)  Derivatives (Continued)

The Group maintains strict control limits on net open derivative
positions (i.e., the difference between purchase and sale
contracts), by both amount and term. At any one time, the
amount subject to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments that are favourable to the Group (i.e., assets where
their fair values are positive), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding.

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentrations risk with respect to individual borrower or
counterparty group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower
or counterparty group, industry or country are in place and their
exposures are monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of the
overall credit portfolio. Country limits are also set up with reference to
the sovereign credit rating from international credit rating agencies. All
these limits aim to achieve a more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit risk
exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions, the Group
limits its derivative dealings with approved financial institutions, and
uses established market practices on credit support and collateral
settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative counterparties.
Overall credit risk limit for individual financial institution counterparty,
including valuation limit for derivatives, is approved by the Group
Credit Committee with reference to the financial strength and
credit rating of individual counterparty. The acceptable types of
collateral and their characteristics are established within the credit
policies, as are the respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal
documentation establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and
unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or other credit
enhancements provided.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally
cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not
expose the Group to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are
based upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow
position and ability to repay.

(@ Loans and advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral for securing loans and advances. The
principal collateral types are:

° Mortgages over properties;

° Charges over business assets such as premises, inventory
and accounts receivable;

° Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities; and

° Charges over deposits.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will,
where possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual
loans and advances.

(b)  Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured,
with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial
instruments or underlying assets.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such
as setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement
limits and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover,
the Group requires all derivative contract counterparties to
enter into International Swaps and Derivatives Association
(“ISDA”) Agreement or analogous master agreement in order
to follow the standardised market practice of close-out netting
arrangement in the event of default or early termination.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.23 Impairment and provisioning policies

Impairment allowances are recognised for loans, securities and
derivative exposures which have objective evidence of impairment at
the end of the reporting period for financial reporting purposes (see
Note 2.7).

In determining whether objective evidence of impairment exists under
HKAS 39, the following criteria are assessed:

° Delinquency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
. Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower (e.g. equity to
debt ratio, net income percentage of sales);

° Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

o Initiation of bankruptcy proceedings;

o Deterioration of the borrower’s competitive position; and
° Deterioration in the value of collateral.
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3.2 SER@m
323 BEBREERR &)

AEBZBRRRERDBF R LEEHIBER
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.23 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above pre-set thresholds at least annually or more regularly
when individual circumstances warrant. Individual impairment
allowances on all individually significant accounts are determined by
an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis. The assessment normally encompasses
collateral held (including re-confirmation of its enforceability) and
the anticipated receipts from liquidating collaterals for that individual

account.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for:
(i) portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below
materiality thresholds; and (ii) assets that are individually assessed but
do not have individual impairment.

The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s on-balance
sheet items relating to loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowances (both individually and collectively assessed)
covering on- and off-balance sheet amounts for each of the three
broad internal rating classes.

2014 2013
WEERE BIEZER
IEERERE IEEREREE
BoL ERaNsd
Impairment Impairment
EXREBH  allowance EFHKEF  allowance
Ao as a % of Btk as a % of
Loans and loan Loans and loan
L] Group advances balance advances balance
% % % %
451 Class
1—1ES 1 - pass 99.2 0.2 99.2 0.2
2—HRIEE 2 - special mention 0.2 10.1 0.2 6.5
3— IR IAT 3 - sub-standard or below 0.6 41.7 0.6 44.6

100.0 100.0
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3. WXEERERE @)
3.2 SER@m
323 HEBREERR &)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.23 Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

2014 2013
WEERE BEERE
IEE R IEE R
Batt Batt
Impairment Impairment
BERRBH  allowance EBRREN  allowance
Aatt as a % of Aok as a % of
Loans and loan Loans and loan
$RAT Bank advances balance advances balance
% % % %
bl Class % % % %
1—1E8 1 - pass 99.3 0.1 99.4 0.1
2—HRIEE 2 - special mention 0.2 11.1 0.1 11.4
3— IR IAT 3 - sub-standard or below 0.5 32.5 0.5 32.6

BRAKEZAERTER 2EEFD SR
Mo RRMR

F1AERER] B2AEERNAERTRF LD
ZFAIREIR  KREREFARFOPES KB E
AE2BNENEMERRE ZENA T ERE ©

F247 [FHEE] B8 A RBEABERTRR
RR B0/ - KRERALRRESE - RiEH
EEBHEERRERL  AINESAKERRE
BBK-

F3MR [RFEFZAT ] BERNEERNIERTR
EBPZENEFIIR - KREFRALREAR
BefE T8 2 M - SN Al AL 2 Bl ol B AR [
REBNMBLEBAZERRAFER - BHA
EEAER/FFEBBRZER - XKFZERK
RREZMEEE T REEHERAEERD -
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100.0 100.0

As far as the commercial banking business of the Group is concerned,
the credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal loan
grading system, represents loans for which borrowers are current in
meeting commitments and for which the full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which borrowers
are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to credit losses to the
Group if the deterioration in loan quality cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking
into account the fair value of collateral less cost to sell; or loans that
are considered uncollectible after all collection options have been
exhausted.
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324 Rt AFBEZEFBARMEERET

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.24 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held

FiZREEEREEE or other credit enhancements
%8 BT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
EHEERRRNEEL Credit risk exposures relating to
EERBRENT : on-balance sheet assets are as follows:
Re RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 14,838,111 8,270,012 13,778,437 6,277,902
TERITHER Placements with banks 5,324,811 4,101,293 4,652,611 4,067,212
RIEEBERZRES Trading securities 6,850,362 6,335,788 6,850,362 6,335,788
EENATEFEAHE Financial assets designated at fair
HABRREREE value through profit or loss 9,821 4,248 = =
TESRTIA Derivative financial instruments 756,829 687,069 776,476 710,805
XEERRBZR Loans and advances to customers
(EUN-EOEEA Loans and advances to individuals
—f=AFK - Credit cards 4,057,656 4,162,473 3,844,933 3,956,449
—RBER - Mortgages 29,109,305 27,122,139 23,354,702 22,137,902
—Hfh - Others 8,660,111 6,674,529 7,243,876 5,708,366
TEER LR Loans and advances to
corporate entities
—EHER - Term loans 29,903,231 27,590,155 24,532,541 22,039,535
—RBER - Mortgages 14,082,486 13,148,257 11,356,879 10,584,833
—Bo5RE - Trade finance 7,135,572 6,911,081 6,517,342 5,918,454
—Hft - Others 12,289,676 12,377,528 11,357,072 11,028,919
B5%E Trade bills 7,384,057 5,925,648 7,409,361 6,271,548
Hin&E Other assets 3,771,683 3,673,803 1,563,158 1,680,146
BEEERRENZEER Investments in securities included in
LBHRE the loans and receivables category - 1,137,631 - 908,239
At EES Available-for-sale securities
—EBESR - Debt securities 22,960,307 26,851,790 22,743,506 26,851,790
RHEHES Held-to-maturity securities 10,832,940 5,669,289 7,078,817 3,017,495
177,966,958 160,642,733 153,060,073 137,495,383
FHEEBRERINAEZ Credit risk exposures relating to
SERBREDT : off-balance sheet items are as follows:
B EREEMEERR Financial guarantees and other credit
KRBE related contingent liabilities 1,487,700 2,795,495 691,133 742,107
BRUREREMEEER Loan commitments and other credit
A related commitments 69,193,856 67,734,378 64,359,701 63,540,736
70,681,556 70,529,873 65,050,834 64,282,843
12 5318 At 31 December 248,648,514 231,172,606 218,110,907 201,778,226
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324 Rt AFEZHAAGREMISEEIES
FiZREEEREEE ®)

ERIIRAEE N ARITR 2014 F % 2013 F 12
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RELHEHE BRAABENE @ ExmEE
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o  ERRBFMAP5%HEDBEANLTRER
FHRmERA (20134 : 6%)

s HWHAERIZEADBEZIEBERIBERSR
ZIEE

o  EBRIRBFMEET 8% A EEF
JRME (2013 4F : 98%)

s AKEERARITZERKLGEREZEF
ERRBFEEFERRBREEI A
0.35% (2013 4F : 0.40%) }.0.27% (2013
F:0.25%) &

. BISHE 5 R EHAMESF R EF 71% (20134 :
75%) e AEA- EEAA
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.24 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements (Continued)

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure for the Group and the Bank at 31 December 2014 and
2013, without taking into account of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements attached.

The maximum exposure to credit risk for financial assets recognised
on the statement of assets and liabilities is the carrying amount.
For contingent liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount the Group would have to pay if the instrument is
called upon. For undrawn facilities, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the full amount of the undrawn credit facilities granted to

customers.

The Group’s exposures to credit risk, measured using the expected
gross credit exposures that will arise upon a default of the end obligor,
are shown in the disclosures required under the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

The results of credit performance of the Group can be further
assessed with reference to the following:

. 5% of the loans and advances portfolio are categorised in the
top grade of the internal rating system (2013: 6%);

° Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
portfolio, are backed by collateral;

° 98% of the loans and advances portfolio are considered to be
neither past due nor individually impaired (2013: 98%);

o Loans and advances to customers that are either individually

or collectively impaired constituted 0.35% (2013: 0.40%)

and 0.27% (2013: 0.25%) of the total loans and advances to

customers of the Group and the Bank respectively; and

71% (2013: 75%) of the investments in debt securities and other

bills have at least an A- credit rating.
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3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 SER@m
325 BEFREB5

BEFERRBHBAMT :

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.25 Loans and advances

Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:

55 Group 2014 2013

fm e B % (8 R DR E Neither past due nor individually
impaired 103,548,804 96,249,076
Past due but not individually

BHERERRE

impaired 1,340,946 1,356,146
& RIRE Individually impaired 348,287 380,940
Feke Gross 105,238,037 97,986,162
B ORIEZEE Less: allowance for impairment (508,813) (442,026)
R Net 104,729,224 97,544,136
$R1T Bank 2014 2013
fm i 2R K (8 B R (E Neither past due nor individually

impaired 86,829,645 80,010,141
#80 BRE R R DRUE Past due but not individually

impaired 1,153,007 1,172,164
&R E Individually impaired 224,693 192,153
4azE Gross 88,207,345 81,374,458
B R EZEE Less: allowance for impairment (263,688) (210,196)
FEE Net 87,943,657 81,164,262
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)

£E Group 2014 2013

BEER RN Impaired loans and advances

—{ERIEE (7 (F)) - Individually impaired (Note (a)) 348,287 380,940

—mmAamE(F(2)) - Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 20,179 15,355
368,466 396,295

VERER Impairment allowances made

— @RI (FE(R)) — Individually assessed (Note (c)) (217,744) (244,294)

—#RAFHE (F(2)) — Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (18,578) (13,838)
(236,322) (258,132)
132,144 138,163

FEEARATE Fair value of collaterals held * 169,394 92,205

BEERLRBRIERFER Impaired loans and advances as a % of

RBgBE s ADL total loans and advances to customers 0.35% 0.40%

$R1T Bank 2014 2013

BEER RN Impaired loans and advances

—{ERIRE (G () — Individually impaired (Note (a)) 224,693 192,153

— 4R ARE (GE(2)) - Collectively impaired (Note (b)) 14,890 11,048
239,583 203,201

BB Impairment allowances made

— & RIEHE (G () — Individually assessed (Note(c)) (121,215) (110,549)

—kraaHE (R (2)) - Collectively assessed (Note (b)) (14,890) (11,048)
(136,105) (121,597)
103,478 81,604

HEERRATE Fair value of collaterals held * 104,610 77,727

BREEREBREEFER Impaired loans and advances as a % of

hEgBEs ANl total loans and advances to customers 0.27% 0.25%
* EHRGAFEDNRBERFERMERERREELS * Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market value of

# MEPREEEE

KERITAR AT | 2014545

collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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3. HMBERERE @
3.2 FERR®@
325 B R 4
=5

() ERRERRIZEBNRERREERELET
— R EREREERENTERERSER ([1BX
=D WER - MZBEREFEZER R
RREREBEKTE WA SFHMEE

(2) HFRMERRRBIIEZE NGRS EEERER
HEVEER RN E2HRE B SR ERBBHIORZ
ERRBR - ZER D25 2 REETRERE R
BEEFTERGAREERN—ED °

(A) ALERREEREZRBEBERN2A318E
Z B AmEE -

AEEEARITZERRBRZ BEEEBRES
511 %508,813,000% 7T (2013 4 : 442,026,000 %
) }.263,688,000/& 7T (2013 4 : 210,196,000
BT BRHENREERZEED R
217,744,000 %8 7T (2013 4F : 244,294,000/87T)
% 121,215,0007% 7T (20134 : 110,549,000 8
7T) KRR e ERFENER 2 REREER
5 51 %%291,069,000 7% 7T.(2013 F : 197,732,000
#7T) ]2 142,473,000/% 7T (2013 4 : 99,647,000
BIT) M4 RRHEZ REFERRBRNE
fiik B 1E 2 BUEEEE R

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances (Continued)

Individually impaired loans are defined as those loans having objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated cash flows of the loans that can be
reliably estimated.

Collectively impaired loans and advances refer to those unsecured loans
and advances assessed for impairment on a collective basis and which
have become overdue for more than 90 days as at the reporting date.
The collective impairment allowance for these impaired loans, which is a
part of the overall collective impairment allowances, is shown above.

The above individual impairment allowances were made after taking into
account the value of collaterals in respect of such advances as at 31
December.

The total impairment allowance for loans and advances of the Group
and the Bank is HK$508,813,000 (2013: HK$442,026,000) and
HK$263,688,000 (2013: HK$210,196,000) respectively, comprising
an allowance of HK$217,744,000 (2013: HK$244,294,000) and
HK$121,215,000 (2013: HK$110,549,000) respectively for the
individually impaired loans and the overall collective impairment
allowances of HK$291,069,000 (2013: HK$197,732,000) and
HK$142,473,000 (2013: HK$99,647,000) respectively provided on
loans assessed on a collective basis. Further information on the

impairment allowances maintained for each of loans and advances to

customers, and other accounts is provided in Note 24.
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3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BHREBS (&) 325 Loans and advances (Continued)
(FF) #mE A RAEERRES B R EHN (@ Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
impaired
ERNBREAR EEEEAERIERE The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that
& BB E T — AR BRI 52 8.2.3 38 M3 K were neither past due nor individually impaired is normally
ZEHVERE - assessed based on the three broad gradings mentioned in Note
3.2.8.
A (ZERF) ¥ RRERR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities BRER
=il 5% Total loans
£F Group Credit  REER A BHER  EBER Trade Eft and advances
014F12831A At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
A5 Class:
1-I% 1-pass 4,001,781 28,709,991 8495624 29,800,290 13,931,329 6,847,063 11,644,961 103,431,039
2-KAlEE 2 - special mention - - - 18,500 31,028 37,122 16,689 104,234
3-RBIUT 3 - sub-standard or below - 297 954 11,184 1,026 - 70 13,531
A Total 4,001,781 28,710,288 8496578 29,829,974 13,964,278 6,884,185 11,661,720 103,548,804
A (ZEZF) &% RPEHR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities 20
i 2584 Total loans
£8 Group Credit  %EBEH e BHER  EBER Trade Eff and advances
2013124318 At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
i Class:
1-I% 1-pass 4108044 26739025 6558120 27,450,103 12,993,489  6,707415 11,677,906 96,234,102
-kl 2 - special mention - - - - 11,319 - 978 12,297
3-RBIUT 3 - sub-standard or below - 321 585 - 1,222 - 549 2,677
A Total 4108044 26,739,346 6558705 27,450,103  13,006030 6,707,415  11,679433 96,249,076
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BHRBS (&) 325 Loans and advances (Continued)
() @R R AN SR EZ B3R B (@ Loans and advances neither past due nor individually
(%) impaired (Continued)
fiA(BERF) i - EFERR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities EE
R+ 5% Total loans
#i Bank Credit  REEX At BHER  RBER Trade Eff and advances
20145125318 At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others to customers
a5 Class:
1-E% 1 - pass 30806,328 23,070,358 7,114,086 24489323 11,217,379 6,302,062 10,724,482 86,724,018
2-HHIER 2 - special mention - - - 18,500 31,923 31,122 16,689 104,234
3-RBFAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 297 - - 1,026 - 70 1,393
At Total 3,806,328 23,070,655 7,114,086 24,507,823 11,250,328 6,339,184 10,741,241 86,829,645
fA(ZERF) % ZFERR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities B3e%
B 2504 Total loans
#f1 Bank Credit  EER Hfh  AHER  REER Trade Zft and advances
013512 431R At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
a5 Class:
1% 1 - pass 3915963 21883584 5621176  22,014646 10460309 5770777 10329297 79,995,752
2-HlEE 2 - special mention - - - - 11,319 - 978 12,207
3-RBFUAT 3 - sub-standard or below - 321 - - 120 - 549 2,002
At Total 3915963  21,883905 5621176 22,014,646 10472850 5,770,777 10,330,824 80,010,141
ERBR A TR Z IR IBE R E EEHK Mortgage loans in the sub-standard or below class were assessed as
W2 BN EBEREE AKRBIE ° not impaired after taking into consideration the value and recovery of
collaterals.
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(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZERE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BHREBS (&) 325 Loans and advances (Continued)
(Z) EEHERFIES B R (b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired
EA(BEEF) % EFERR
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities BRER
=ik 5% Total loans
£F Group Credit REER A HHER BEER Trade Eftr and advances
014F1231A At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
B ERINUT Past due up to 1 month 33,321 355,169 129,107 13,059 101,648 48,782 449,440 1,130,526
BE1EANL Past due more than 1 month
23fAA and up to 3 months 11,654 24,033 22,858 - 8,237 24,294 52,159 143,235
@3 EANL Past due more than 3 months
Z6f8A and up to 6 months 6,566 10,669 6,309 - - - 12,444 35,988
AH6EANE Past due more than 6 months 4,334 4,761 5 - = 20 21,857 31,197
At Total 55,875 394,632 158,279 13,059 109,885 73316 535900 1,340946
BEERRZATE Fair value of collaterals * - 390,398 3,367 3,469 109,623 12,987 463,764 983,608
EA(ZERR) % RPEIR
Individual (retai customers) Corporate entities B
iR B58E Total loans
£8 Group Credit  REEH i EHER  REER Trade Eff and advances
2013%12A318 At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers
A1 ERANT Past due up to 1 month UAE 334907 91,050 - 13151 BAT9 S04 1147047
BE1EANL Past due more than 1 month
E3f8A and up to 3 months 10,626 29,526 15,149 - 1,966 14,081 86,729 158,077
B3 EANE Past due more than 3 months
Z6{8A and up to 6 months 5,860 320 5,982 - - 523 7,393 20,078
BH6EANL Past due more than 6 months 3,495 4,842 - - - 203 22,284 30,844
A Total 54,429 369,595 112,181 - 133,480 53,006 633,455 1,356,146
HERARCATE Fair value of collaterals * - 367,188 3,329 - 133,102 10,647 565,914 1,080,180
* KRGz ATEDIEBIERGTERER * Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market value of

KREBLEH  MEPREEME ° collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 SER@m 3.

2 Credit risk (Continued)

325 EF KRB &) 3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)

(Z) BEHEFRREZ B R ()

(b) Loans and advances past due but not impaired (Continued)

EA(BEEF) % ZFERR

Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities BRER

i3 g5E Total loans

#17 Bank Credit  REER A BHER  EBER Trade Eft and advances

014F1231A At 31 December 2014 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers

BE1EASAT Past due up to 1 month 24,889 258,481 105,997 4312 91,893 48,782 441,351 975,705

BE1EANE Past due more than 1 month

38R and up o 3 months 8,061 10,136 17,479 - 7,269 24,294 48,123 115,362
B3 EANL Past due more than 3 months

Z6f8A and up to 6 months 5,655 10,669 6,309 - - - 12,444 35,077

aH6EANE Past due more than 6 months - 4,761 5 - = 20 21,857 26,863

At Total 38,605 284,047 129,790 4312 99,162 73,316 53775 1,153,007

EERARZATE Fair value of collaterals* - 280,047 756 3,469 99,162 12,987 463,764 860,185

EA(ZERR) 13 EFEFR

Individual (retai customers) Corporate entities B

ERR B58E Total loans

BT Bank Credit HIBER -t HHER ZRER Trade £l and advances

2013%12 8318 At 31 December 2013 cards  Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others  to customers

A1 ERANT Past due up to 1 month 755 242406 71,020 - 10287 BAT9 SIT0M9 999,162

BE1EANE Past due more than 1 month

Z3f8A and up to 3 months 7,886 6,429 10,188 - 1,078 14,081 86,729 126,386
fHsEANE Past due more than 3 months

Z6{8A and up to 6 months 5,049 320 5,982 - - 523 7,393 19,267

BE6EAN £ Past due more than 6 months - 4,842 - - - 223 22,284 27,349

At Total 40,486 253,997 87,190 - 104,030 53,006 633,455 1,172,164

FEERm ATE" Fair value of collaterals* - 251,853 - - 104,030 10,647 565,914 932,444

* ERmZ A FEDREERRTELER
REEEH  MEPREEME

VIR TER E R R B - HEARRm 2
FEDKEEFGEBEEEZGET AN
o BERERE ZBERBZAFEDNZE
T35 B8 2RI IR A B 18 B 2 #T ©

*

Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market
value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Upon initial recognition of loans and advances, the associated
collateral is valued based on valuation techniques for the
particular assets. In subsequent periods, the fair value of such
collateral is updated by reference to market price or indexes of
similar assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMBERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 FEREM @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 B RB5 &) 325 Loans and advances (Continued)
() 1EFREZ ZFEHRBH (c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired

REERARRITARET AREFAHEF S
ZBRenAzElANBEE,ERRB
K D Bl £348,287,000/8 T (20134 :
380,940,000 JT. ) }224,693,000% JT
(20134 : 192,153,000/87T) °

The individually impaired loans and advances to customers
of the Group and the Bank before taking into consideration
the cash flows from collateral held is HK$348,287,000 (2013:
HK$380,940,000) and HK$224,693,000 (2013: HK$192,153,000)
respectively.

18 BB B R S Bk 2 4B 88 Je AN SR [ P 5
TEER ZAARER G A FEZER DT

The analysis of the gross amount of individually impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related

74

T collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:
HEER-
fiA(BERF) % BRI
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
E5RE allowances -
&8 Group RBER 2 EHEX  REER Trade Eft & individual
2014512R31A At 31 December 2014 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment
[ERIREER Individually impaired loans 4,385 5,54 60,198 8,323 178,071 92,056 348,267 217,744
EERARZATE Fair value of collaterals* 4,385 3,391 6,509 7,304 91,168 56,637 169,304
WEER-
A (ZERR) % (A1
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
BHRA allowances -
£H Group RS A AHER  REER Trade it A3 individual
20135124318 At 31 December 2013 Mortgages Others ~ Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERREER Individually impaired loans 13,198 3,643 140,052 8,747 150,660 64,640 380,940 244,294
FEARRZATE" Fair value of collaterals* 13,198 - 8,829 8,318 32211 29,649 92,205

* ER Mz AFEDREERATERER

RNEEES  MEPREEME -

KERITAR AT | 2014545

value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.

Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 FERE @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 BHRBS (&) 325 Loans and advances (Continued)
() 1EFREZ ZFEHRBL (&) (c) Loans and advances to customers individually impaired
(Continued)
AEER-
fIA(SEEF) ¥ {ERIHE
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
E5E allowances -
#17 Bank BRBEX Hff  BHEX  REER Trade ) At individual
2014%12R31A At 31 December 2014 Mortgages Others  Termloans  Mortgages finance Others Total ~ assessment
[ERIREER Individually impaired loans - - 20,406 7,389 104,842 92,056 224,693 121,215
EERARZATE Fair value of collaterals* - - 6,509 6,370 35,094 56,637 104,610
EER-
{AA(ZERP) % (BRI
Individual (retail customers) Corporate entities Impairment
BHRA allowances -
#f1 Bank RS At BEEN  RZBEEX Trade it A3 individual
20135124318 At 31 December 2013 Mortgages Others ~ Termloans ~ Mortgages finance Others Total  assessment
{ERREER Individually impaired loans - - 24,889 7,953 94,671 64,640 192,153 110,549
FRlRn ATE" Fair value of collaterals* - - 8,829 7,538 31,711 29,649 71,721
* B R2 AFEDBBEEAGTERER * Fair value of collaterals is determined at the lower of the market
REBZR  MEFREEME value of collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 EERK @ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
325 B KRB (&) 3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)
(T) #2EI3 187U LEZEH KRB (d)  Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
)y BwHREEERERE ()  Gross amount of overdue loans
£E #17
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
AHEE AEREE aHFrEE AEREE
e EnaE EREE EnBE
Gross 4% Gross lheg Gross g Gross g
amount of BA  amount of A7 amount of BAtE  amount of Bnlt
overdue loans % of total overdue loans % of total overdue loans % of total overdue loans % of total
RERRFER Gross advances to
i Al customers which
have been overdue for:
—3fAANLE - six months or less but
6/ A over three months 97,112 0.09 100,260 0.10 74,021 0.09 67,433 0.08
—6HANLE1E - one year or less but
over six months 39,052 0.04 69,831 0.07 36,433 0.04 21,400 0.03
150 E - OVer one year 185,726 0.18 127,380 0.13 162,279 0.18 75,350 0.09
321,890 0.31 297,471 0.30 272,739 0.31 164,183 0.20

(i) BHEREEERRBRZBEEER

(i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances

i mE against overdue loans and advances

ERRBH il BEERE-

AERYE B Efm Efm RftfRE fBRIHE

Outstanding Current  FrA®HG ReEAEFH BRABEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion Portion Other allowances -

£ Group loans and value of covered  not covered creditrisk individually

201451258310 At 31 December 2014 advances collateral by collateral by collateral mitigation assessed
BEAEEEFERREA  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 321,890 233,734 160,454 161,436 - 146,562
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. HMBERERE @
3.2 FERR®@
325 B R 4
(T) BE3EA U EZ B REZ (4)

(i) BHAREEERRBRZBELERK

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)

(d) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months
(Continued)

(i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances

P i miE () against overdue loans and advances (Continued)

ERRE® it HEERE-

AEREH Biifa B B EtEE [EIRIET (R

Outstanding Curent  FAESH AeAdESHn  BBAEEREE  Impairment

amount of market Portion Portion Other  allowances -

3L Group loans and value of covered  not covered creditrisk  individually

2013%12 A 318 At 31 December 2013 advances collateral by collateral by collateral mitigation assessed
BHKEEEPESREF  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 297,471 177,543 121,065 176,406 - 160,454

PRI m E B AEMFRRIZBYE -

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits and
mortgage over properties.

EXRRBH B HEERE-
FEBHE R B B At g {B R
Outstanding Current  FrA®HG REAEFH BERAZEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion Portion Other allowances -

AT Bank loans and value of covered  not covered creditrisk individually

20145128310 At 31 December 2014 advances collateral by collateral by collateral mitigation assessed
AEAEEEEERRER  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 272,739 191,219 141,826 130,913 - 116,269

EHREHN gt HEER-

AEEHH B B Bfm AffEE (BRI

Outstanding Current  FTAESGH AeAdEsdn  BBRAEEHEE  Impairment

amount of market Portion Portion Other  allowances -

il Bank loans and value of covered  not covered creditrisk  individually

201312318 At 31 December 2013 advances collateral by collateral by collateral mitigation assessed
BEAEEEPERREN  Overdue loans and advances

to customers 164,183 129,291 95,523 68,660 - 57,781

PRFFRIR M E B RER TR RIZIBYE -

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits and
mortgage over properties.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. HMBERERE @
3.2 FERR®@
325 B R 4
(X) #EME (B A B Fat.2 8

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.25 Loans and advances (Continued)

() Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

HE) overdue advances shown above

&8 BT

Group Bank
AR HEEEY HEAREAL hEBEY
2014 % of total 2013 % of total 2014 %of total 2013 % of total
RFER Advances to customers 171,817 0.16 148,512 0.15 159,188 0.18 147,668 0.18

HEEE Impairment allowances - - = -
326 BZZE 3.26 Trade bills

M2014F12 A31H  AEEWHEBEREZES
& A LA E(20134F : @EAKRERSEA A EE61E
B2 B 5ZE /475,000 ) SREZE S E R
(20134 : fH) o

3.2.7 WEI# g
REXRFH ZWOEH BT :

As at 31 December 2014, there were no trade bills that were overdue
for more than 3 months (2013: trade bills of HK$475,000 were overdue
for more than 3 months and up to 6 months) or impaired (2013: Nil).

3.2.7 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

55 8R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BEHE Nature of assets
BEkyES Repossessed properties 69,680 87,660 3,452 19,800
HA Others 315 85 315 85
69,995 87,745 3,767 19,885

WEHERRRATEREREE - BURKIBAMN
BWIER B BRAREEER

fh 5T AT & 38 48{8 5 66,228,000/ JT (2013 4F :
67,860,000% 7T ) 2 1 B A 30 B9 & T H 4
¥ - DA ERED BERHAREM 2 AL AT
LA E i R B o 3% 3K 30 G A2 2 3R K52 35
Z[EMEE|BTORERLE ZEE - 82
BB AR LR -

KERITAR AT | 2014545

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$66,228,000 (2013: HK$67,860,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders
issued by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the
Group for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note
35. The relevant loans had been derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HBEBRERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 FERR®@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

328 EHEF 328 Debt securities
(FF) etk Ig15E 2 5FR 5T (a)  Analysis by rating agency designation
TRIRMN2014F K% 2013F 12 A31 BiZ The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
AR E 2 RO 2 BISE S o agency designation as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

BFEE BEN TWHEERE BZUBRE eV
BBEE  AVEHE  Available- Held-to- EXFE

8 Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity Loans and &t
20145128318 At 31 December 2014 assets  atfairvalue investments investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA 245 - 1,072,104 - - 1,072,349
AA- Z AA+ AA- to AA+ 6,849,743 - 6,120,273 1,591,932 - 14,561,948
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 374 - 9,930,632 3,456,521 - 13,387,527
BAREERA- Rated but lower than A- - 9,588 3,918,441 1,749,218 - 5,677,247
FER Unrated - 233 1,918,857 4,035,269 - 5,954,359
= Total 6,850,362 9,821 22,960,307 10,832,940 - 40,653,430

FEEE BEN FUHHERE HEIHRE 6054

figdE  ATEHE  Avalable- Held-to- EUEE
3L Group Trading  Designated for-sale maturity  Loans and At
201312 A31H At 31 December 2013 assets  atfairvalue  investments investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA 10,240 - 1,377,938 - - 1,388,178
AA- Z AA+ AA- to AA+ 6,325,368 - 7,016,032 867,349 - 14,208,749
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 103 - 12,730,721 1,806,195 37,220 14,574,239
B RBERA- Rated but lower than A- - 4,224 4,065,664 845,524 1,100,370 6,015,782
RBTR Unrated 77 24 1,661,435 2,150,221 41 3,811,798
= Total 6,335,788 4248 26,851,790 5,669,289 1,137,631 39,998,746
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 ZEREE@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
328 EXEF @) 3.2.8 Debt securities (Continued)
(FF) 1ZEFaRiEIEIEE 2 RS IT (48) (a)  Analysis by rating agency designation (Continued)

BFEE BEN THEERE BEIHRE BRR
BiEEE  AVEHE  Available- Held-to- FEE

1T Bank Trading  Designated for-sale maturity  Loans and &5t
20145128318 At 31 December 2014 assets  atfairvalue investments investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA 245 - 1,072,104 - - 1,072,349
AA- £ AA+ AA- to AA+ 6,849,743 - 6,120,273 1,231,126 - 14,201,142
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 374 - 9,893,867 3,106,365 - 13,000,606
BHRBERA- Rated but lower than A- - - 3,738,405 1,616,199 - 5,354,604
AETR Unrated - - 1918857 1125127 - 3,043,984
At Total 6,850,362 - 22,743,506 7,078,817 - 36,672,685

FEEE REN TREERE HEIBRE Bk

FRdE  DYVERHE Available- Held-to- EMGE
il Bank Trading  Designated for-sale maturity  Loans and At
2013127311 At 31 December 2013 assets  atfairvalue  investments investments  receivables Total
AAA AAA 10,240 - 1,377,938 - - 1,388,178
AA-ZAA+ AA- to AA+ 6,325,368 - 7,016,032 491,913 - 13,833,313
A-ZA+ A-to A+ 103 - 12,730,721 1,403,023 - 14,133,847
BHRBERA- Rated but lower than A- - - 4,065,664 712,006 908,198 5,685,868
AETR Unrated 7 - 1,661,435 410,553 41 2,072,106
At Total 6,335,788 - 26,851,790 3,017,495 908,239 37,113,312
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. UHEEEE@m
3.2 FEREM @
328 EHEF &)

(Z) ZEHEEAT

IR 00 FERR RS 70 KR /8 B 5% B B MR TR 2 78
HIRE - NERE R 12 A 31 B RmBm T

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Debt securities (Continued)

(b)  Analysis by overdue period

Investments in securities which were classified as loans and
receivables upon initial recognition, and were overdue at

KRITR - the time of recognition, and which remain overdue as at 31
December are shown below:
EERIRTT Group and Bank 2014 2013
R ERRE D ERER K Investments in securities classified
R IRZ FHIRE as loans and receivables upon
initial recognition
%60 5 Overdue for
—1FUE — over one year - 41

R IR FERR RS 20 $R A8 B 5K I B MR IR 2 78
FREMASHECRERD LB HRER
R EBEEMFIRNRIER

329 MH#BErRERBRZEHMEEZREBE
FREE

(FF) Z3
BEPERZBRIESMIIRIEE Z BE R
BRrRZERAFELDE - —RM =5 &
EFRMERTENEERATRZ R
B RS RER o

3.29

The entire portfolio of investments in securities classified as
loans and receivables upon initial recognition was recognised
in the statement of financial position at a value after taking into
account the above overdue status.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure

(@) Geographical sectors

Advances to customers by geographical area are classified
according to the location of the borrowers after taking into
account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies
when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area
which is different from that of the borrower.
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(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 FERR®@ 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 WHEEERBZEHEEZ AEE 329 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HFEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(FF) [E1 () (a)  Geographical sectors (Continued)
TRABFEEFAERRIG DN - The following table analyses gross advances to customers by

geographical area.

2014 F 20134

12A31H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

£B8 Group 2014 2013
BEFE#EE Gross advances to customers

— B8 - Hong Kong 83,856,418 77,492,360

—HE - China 8,278,746 8,890,132

— R - Macau 11,443,268 10,196,127

—Hft - Others 1,659,605 1,407,543

105,238,037 97,986,162

2014 & 20134

12A31H 12H31H

At At

31 December 31 December

BT Bank 2014 2013
BEFEREE Gross advances to customers

— &5 - Hong Kong 82,207,780 76,045,718

—HE - China 4,011,405 3,419,102

—RP - Macau 589,321 763,375

—Hfth - Others 1,398,839 1,146,263

88,207,345 81,374,458
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEEMRERE @
3.2 SER@m

329 FEECEREZEHBEES AREE 329 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

HEE (&)
() B (s)

TRAAEEEHERLRR  BHRE
RAESRITOARANTER B REEIT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

@

securities, and balances and placements with banks.

Geographical sectors (Continued)

The following table analyses the cross-border claims of the
Group in relation to loans and advances, investments in

Group
RITRHAth
SRR
Banks DNERE
and other Public
2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 financial sector Hth et
BHEBTT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TRE - TNEEABEA  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 25,948 2,041 22,022 50,011
EEREE North and South America 911 548 2,122 3,581
BN Europe 5,672 = 359 6,031
32,531 2,589 24,503 59,623
R1T
Bank
RITRHAb
SRR
Banks DNEBRE
and other Public
2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 financial sector Ht et
BHEBTT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
TRE - TNEEABEA  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 21,714 118 11,909 33,741
EEREE North and South America 762 548 1,936 3,246
BN Europe 5,530 = 358 5,888
28,006 666 14,203 42,875
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. BMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 SERB@m 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
329 WHEEERBZLHEEZRREE 329 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
HFEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(FF) =1 4) (a)  Geographical sectors (Continued)
3L
Group
SR1T R H At
©RiE
Banks N
and other Public
2013412 B 31 H At 31 December 2013 financial sector =i “Et
BEBT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
DAE - MEERBEN  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 20,456 254 17,165 37,875
EERmEZE North and South America 213 775 2,332 3,320
BN Europe 2,544 - 867 3,411
23,213 1,029 20,364 44,606
RAT
Bank
SR1T R H At
T RiE
Banks N
and other Public
2013412 B 31 H At 31 December 2013 financial sector =i #BEt
BEAT In millions of HK$ institutions entities Others Total
DRE - NMEIEEBEA  Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong 18,669 229 11,501 30,399
EEKEE North and South America 75 775 2,148 2,998
BN Europe 2,324 - 865 3,189
21,068 1,004 14,514 36,586
LillEREEENETERRARNER The above information of cross-border claims discloses
1& - RIRZ 5 ¥ TF 7 BT 2 3 i #% 5R EE A exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate
WX SEFREMENRAR - —BM=E - risk lies, and is derived according to the location of the
ERXRZGHFNEERBETRBERMN S — counterparties after taking into account any transfer of risk.
FHER SETEER —HRTHEND In general, transfer of risk from one country to another is
7 MELFRERTRNER @ 1 E recognised if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed
RERE -—EARBEBES XK - by another party in a different country or if the claims are on

an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in a
different country.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @
3.2 SERB@m

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

329 FEEEEREZEHBEES AREE 329 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

HFEE (&) exposure (Continued)
(2) 7% (b)  Industry sectors
BREERRE - RITEREFRES Gross advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans
£8 BT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
EREBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Trges Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MEER — Property development 1,741,185 2,015,552 1,741,185 2,015,552
— R E - Property investment 15,752,867 15,122,078 15,752,867 15,122,078
— Rt - Financial concerns 821,938 740,178 1,305,005 1,108,665
—BRELL — Stockbrokers 133,234 109,264 133,234 109,264
—PEERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 4,497,466 4,006,724 4,497,466 4,006,724
—BlEE — Manufacturing 2,971,483 1,975,672 2,971,483 1,975,672
— B RERRE — Transport and transport
equipment 4,612,041 5,050,680 4,612,041 5,050,680
—FREEE) — Recreational activities 277,832 300,505 277,832 300,505
— BRHR — Information technology 22,938 24,916 22,938 24,916
—HAh — Others 5,036,198 3,571,083 5,036,198 3,571,083
35,867,182 32,916,652 36,350,249 33,285,139
[EYN Individuals
-BEEER — Loans for the purchase of

HEE - [FLA
2EEERE R
[EEEHEFE
BFER
—BEEEMEE
MEER
—=RFER
—Hft

EEBEROER

BoEE(E0))

EEBAIMERNEN
(£(2))

flats in Home Ownership
Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 962,720 1,080,873 962,720 1,080,873
— Loans for the purchase of
other residential properties 19,451,578 18,041,141 19,446,383 18,041,141
— Credit card advances 3,838,208 3,949,544 3,838,208 3,949,544
- Others 8,355,472 6,880,302 7,900,471 6,556,016

32,607,978 29,951,860 32,147,782 29,627,574

Loans for use in Hong Kong 68,475,160 62,868,512 68,498,031 62,912,713
Trade finance (Note (1)) 6,517,342 5,918,454 6,517,342 5,918,454
Loans for use outside

Hong Kong (Note (2)) 30,245,535 29,199,196 13,191,972 12,543,291

105,238,037 97,986,162 88,207,345 81,374,458
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (Continued)

3.29 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b)  Industry sectors (Continued)

Notes:

(1) Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance
of imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong
Kong and merchandising trade classified with reference to the
relevant guidelines issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA?).

Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank)
totalling HK$618,230,000 (31 December 2013: HK$992,627,000)
are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet positions arising from movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of the Bank, run their
treasury functions locally under their own set of limits and policies
and within the overall market risk controls set by the Bank. The RMCD
of the Bank oversees and controls the market risk arising from the
treasury operations of BCM and DSB China.

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking
books.

33.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

The following descriptions relate to the Bank and BCM.

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and
control market risk are outlined below.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(@

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)

(i) Value at risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities of
the market risk factors over an observation period of 250
days (or one year) using a method known as parametric
VaR methodology.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and
reviewed by the Board and its delegated committees
at least annually for all trading positions and allocated
to business units. Actual exposures, including VaR,
are monitored against limits on a daily basis by RMCD.
Average daily VaR for the Group for all trading activities
during the year was HK$1,821,000 (2013: HK$1,453,000).
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
331 FEEERZ H5EE#) 33.1 Market risk arising from the trading book (Continued)
(FF) MEBREEGEZE % (&) (a)  Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
@iy EIDAR (i)  Stress tests
BR 7RIS IR A i 15 0 N Al B 3R 2 Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
BEBKZAEE - AR EE REES losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
HEITHEDAFEEE - REERES tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress
AR - BEREZRRENP BT testing, where stress movements are applied to each risk
BEHIEE  REXEESHE - Hx category; and scenario stress testing, which includes
BRHASER RN SEERFERE applying possible stress events to specific positions or
SAEEETRIE o Uboh - TRat ERHE portfolios. Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading
BEERBAE ZTETEHRAGHE B portfolio is measured to evaluate the expected size of
HIEEEEKERENERES AR extreme trading loss beyond a specified confidence level
HIRIREE S EEBANTEEE o 1 and over a longer holding period. In addition, reverse-
N TR RIS EA— B W stress tests are performed as a useful tool to evaluate the
TEANTFEAREBRBEREEZAR maximum size of market stress that the Group can endure
RIKFRIFTREA S AT 5B DR AL before hitting the prescribed tolerable levels.
o
BhlszERhEEe REREY The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
ZEgTEHEHN - and its delegated committees regularly.
(2) T5EfEETZE (b)  VaR summary of trading portfolio
HZ2014512B31 ALL12M8A BZ2013512A31B1E128A
12 months to 31 December 2014 12 months to 31 December 2013
¥ -1 404 4 53] {8
£E Group Average High Low Average High Low
SNE R Foreign exchange risk 1,396 2,166 706 934 1,529 450
F=E R Interest rate risk 1,089 3,201 240 1,058 2,193 330
g e All risks 1,821 3,460 1,120 1,453 2,625 689
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
332 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated
with positions in debt and equity securities.

(@)  Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities.
In addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including
reverse-stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest
rates on the Group’s on-and off-balance sheet positions
and credit spreads on the Group’s investment securities are
regularly performed to gauge the market risk inherent in the
Group’s banking book portfolios and manage it against the
established control measures.

VaR methodology is not currently being used to measure and
control the market risk of the banking book.

(b)  Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of overseas subsidiaries
in Macau and Mainland China. The net exposure positions
including the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by
individual currency and in aggregate, are managed by
the Treasury Division of the Group on a daily basis within
established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that this
is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

Q) SNERK @)

(Z) FHIFHEBEEFGME 2 HBEDT (#) (b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

RK2014%F12 5318 © A HibE At 31 December 2014, if HK$ had weakened by 100 basis
HURFE TCE A REERZ(E 100 points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
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the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$10 million higher (2013: HK$16 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HK$ had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$10 million lower (2013: HK$16 million lower).

(i)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in its
Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate Risk
Management. From an earnings perspective, interest rate
risk is the risk that the net income arising from future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. From an economic value
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the economic
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on
interest rate risk from both perspectives in the banking
book. As such, the interest margins or net interest income
and the economic value of the capital may increase or
decrease as a result of such changes or in the event that
unexpected movements arise. The Board and the Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALCQO”) set limits
on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that may
be undertaken, which are monitored regularly by RMCD.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(Z) EFRFIEBEFFMEZHEES (&) (b)  Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

92
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(i)  Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2014, if HK$ and US$ market interest
rates had been 200 basis points higher with other
variables held constant, the profit after tax over the
next 12 months and the economic value would have
been HK$201 million lower (2013: HK$193 million lower)
and HK$843 million lower (2013: HK$970 million lower)
respectively.

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity
analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are
on the same basis for both 2013 and 2014.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk, the Group’s investments in debt securities and
equity securities are also exposed to other price risks.
Consequently, the value of such investments could
change significantly depending on a variety of factors
including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events
that might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.



P E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @)
3.3 mWiEE @)
333 JMEREEE

TRBFIAEE RANRITIREEE D RIABE
BIlEzeMEERBEESRE -

4

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
333 Currency risk

The table below summarises the Group’s and the Bank’s financial
assets and liabilities translated into equivalent HK$ amounts,
categorised by currency.

58 Group BT ES gk AR¥% Hit At
2014F12A 318 At 31 December 2014 HKD usD MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
B RERTNES Cash and balances with banks 2,181,349 8,857,621 383,548 2,631,821 783,772 14,838,111
ERTNER Placements with banks - 3,220,767 - 1,970,543 133,501 5,324,811
HEEERERES Trading securities 6,849,988 - - 374 - 6,850,362
BEAATEFEAEE Financial assets designated at

STAERNEREE fair value through profit or loss - 9,821 - - - 9,821
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 28,748 702,458 = 43 25,580 756,829
FREFRAMEE Advances and other accounts 81,402,231 15015931  5466,920 13,145,687 828,092 115,858,861
AHHEES Available-for-sale securities 1,972,063 20,383,519 631 673,141 322,393 23,351,747
SEIHES Held-to-maturity securities 1,199,530 7,212,714 920,497 1,139,908 360,291 10,832,940
SREERT Total financial assets 93,633,909 55,402,831 6,771,596 19,561,517 2,453,629 177,823,482
=L Liabilities
RITFH Deposits from banks 60,580 1,505,241 101 255 6,200 1,572,467
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 25,820 1,048,669 = = 72,336 1,146,825
HEESERERNER Trading liabilities 5,597,614 - - - - 5597614
KPR Deposits from customers 96,125,906 15,869,202 7,205,756 18,067,795 5965688 143,234,437
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,799,744 310,033 = = - 6,109,777
BEINELES Issued debt securities = - - - - -
BEES Subordinated notes - 4,131,026 - - 1,301,352 543,378
Hitfk A kR Other accounts and accruals 1,308,567 726,394 57,035 485,554 73,167 2,645,717
SRAeEaT Total financial liabilities 108,913,231 23,590,655 7,262,892 18,553,604 7,418,833 165,739,215
EEAERLEREE Net on-balance sheet positions  (15,279,322) 31,812,176 (491,206) 1,007,913  (4,965,204) 12,084,267

BEBBRIMFRERFE" Off-balance sheet net notional

positions*

EERE Credit commitments

* BERBERIMNGERRFREIZANREARE
ENEZ PR ZIINESBITET ANEEF
e

25,959,998  (31,213,945)

340,548 4,855,770 (57,629)

62,216,083 3,930,806 495,194 3,848,740 190,733 70,681,556

Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional
amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which
are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 mWiZE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.3.3 JMER B () 3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)
£8 Group BT e B ARE i At
20134512 A31H At 31 December 2013 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
R$ RAERITRA S Cash and balances with banks 879,053 1,419,021 442598 4,905,415 623,925 8,270,012
ERTNER Placements with banks - 1,343478 - 2757815 - 4,101,293
KIEEERRRNES Trading securities 6,335,608 - - 180 - 6,335,788
BEARTEFEAAEY Financial assets designated at
TABENERAE fair value through profit or loss - 4,248 - - - 4,248

fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 26,945 608,954 - - 51,170 687,069
RHEFREAERE Advances and other accounts 76,526,290 13,304,523 4,547,504 12,254,168 1,570,253 108,202,738
A EES Available-for-sale securities 2,172,592 24,033,176 485 649,869 263,696 27,119,818
FEIEES Held-to-maturity securities 549,637 3,174,645 590,539 951,316 403,152 5,669,289
SREEA Total financial assets 86,490,125 43,888,045  5581,126 21518763 2,912,196 160,390,255
afE Liabilities
BITHER Deposits from banks 59,591 1,886,917 256 30,574 17,959 1,995,297
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 30,834 912,746 - - 173676 1,117,256
REEERRMAR Trading liabilities 3,362,473 - - - - 3362473
KPER Deposits from customers 82,357,809 14,886,479 6,395,628 19,399,000 6,906,217 129,945,133
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,356,465 775,465 631 - - 6,132,561
BRITMERE Issued debt securities - 775,385 = = = 775,385
BEER Subordinated notes - 2,398,493 - - 1363978 3,762,471
HibiE B kB Other accounts and accruals 1,187,019 878,960 58,889 389,527 88,512 2,602,907
SREEA Total financial liabilities 92,354191 22,514,445 6455404 19,819,101 8,550,342 149,693,483
BERBRLERTH Net on-balance sheet positions (5,864,086) 21,373,600 (874,278) 1,699,662  (5,638,146) 10,696,772
BEABRRINGREE TR Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 14,936,216 (20,476,354) 249,867 (163,843) 5,384,119 (69,995)
EERAE Credit commitments 61,463,280 4,261,313 454286 4,187,601 163,393 70,529,873
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

817 Bank BT S AR Hit =l
2014%E12A 318 At 31 December 2014 HKD usb RMB Others Total
BE Assets
R RERITHER Cash and balances with banks 2,221,250 9,235,588 1,521,322 800,277 13,778,437
ERTNER Placements with banks 30,842 3,833,613 654,655 133,501 4,652,611
KIEEERRRNES Trading securities 6,849,988 = 374 = 6,850,362
EENATEFZAEE Financial assets designated at

FTABRRNEREE fair value through profit or loss = = = = =
fTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 28,748 723,717 44 23,967 776,476
RHEFREAMIRE Advances and other accounts 75,587,246 13,206,639 7,336,493 780,245 96,910,623
A EES Available-for-sale securities 1,962,691 20,155,320 673,141 284,226 23,075,378
FEIHES Held-to-maturity securities - 6,766,515 = 312,302 7,078,817
SREEAT Total financial assets 86,680,765 53,921,392 10,186,029 2,334,518 153,122,704
afs Liabilities
BITHER Deposits from banks 184,153 1,588,297 402,670 437,686 2,612,806
TESRTE Derivative financial instruments 25,582 1,046,531 - 69,273 1,141,386
HIEEERAMAR Trading liabilities 5,597,614 = = = 5,597,614
REHEH Deposits from customers 91,259,630 14,928,575 9,235,105 5,442,311 120,865,621
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,899,748 310,033 - - 6,209,781
BRINERES Issued debt securities = - - - -
BERER Subordinated notes - 4,131,026 - 1,301,352 5,432,378
HihiE B kB Other accounts and accruals 1,186,970 712,871 247,033 68,418 2,215,292
SRAEAT Total financial liabilities 104,153,697 22,717,333 9,884,808 7,319,040 144,074,878
BEAERLERTE Net on-balance sheet positions  (17,472,932) 31,204,059 301,221 (4,984,522) 9,047,826
BEEBRRIMNSEBETE" Off-balance sheet net notional

positions* 25,776,496 (31,044,380) 340,548 4,868,178 (59,158)

FEAE Credit commitments 61,090,856 3,792,486 11,142 156,350 65,050,834

* BEERBERIMNGR BRI FERTIZANMEARR
TTHNEZSRER IESRITETANRRF

2H o

*

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

principally used to reduce the Bank’s exposure to currency movements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

R1T Bank BT E AR Htty At
20134512 A31 1 At 31 December 2013 HKD UsD RMB Others Total
BE Assets
R$ RIEFITRA R Cash and balances with banks 1,196,135 1,442,075 3,017,171 622,521 6,277,902
ERTNER Placements with banks 266,266 1,846,420 1,939,774 14,752 4,067,212
BEEERRNES Trading securities 6,335,608 - 180 - 6,335,788
EEARTEFEAAEY Financial assets designated at
FTABRRNEREE fair value through profit or loss = = = - -
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 26,945 633,444 - 50,416 710,805
EHEFREAMIRE Advances and other accounts 71,059,080 11,819,760 5,581,949 1,484,951 89,945,740
A EES Available-for-sale securities 2,163,835 23,986,708 649,869 263,696 27,064,108
BRI HES Held-to-maturity securities - 2,666,741 - 350,754 3,017,495
SREEA Total financial assets 81,047,869 42,395,148 11,188,943 2,787,090 137,419,050
afE Liabilities
IR Deposits from banks 525,548 1,898,430 226,627 499,048 3,149,653
fTESHMIA Derivative financial instruments 30,463 909,617 = 169,137 1,109,217
BEEEERRNAR Trading liabilities 3,362,473 - = - 3,362,473
REGER Deposits from customers 78,168,689 13,857,253 10,060,493 6,324,217 108,410,652
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 5,951,669 775,465 = - 6,727,134
B INELE Issued debt securities - 775,385 - - 775,385
BERER Subordinated notes - 2,398,493 - 1,363,978 3,762,471
HihiE B kB Other accounts and accruals 1,123,953 874,656 210,348 85,476 2,294,433
LRBEAH Total financial liabilities 89,162,795 21,489,299 10,497,468 8,441,856 129,591,418
BERBRLERTH Net on-balance sheet positions (8,114,926) 20,905,849 691,475 (5,654,766) 7,827,632
BEABRRINGREE T Off-balance sheet net notional
positions* 15,186,163 (20,475,615) (163,843) 5,401,396 (51,899)
EEAE Credit commitments 60,243,774 3,866,183 27,016 145,870 64,282,843
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Market risk (Continued)
334 |Interest rate risk

The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.

3EAME 5L

38R BE E5E
FUT Over Over SENE FHE

) Group 3months  3months to 1 yearto Over  Non-interest At
20145128311 At 31 December 2014 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
EE Assets
RERERIRER Cash and balances with banks 12,616,114 464,207 - - 1,757,790 14,838,111
fERatER Placements with banks 2,289,629 3,035,182 - - - 5,304,811
FEEERENES Trading securities 2,051,864 4,769,256 29,042 - - 6,850,362
RENATEEAEEY Financial assets designated at

TABRNEBEE fair value through profit or loss - - - - 9,821 9,821
fE4RIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 756,829 756,829
BRERRAMARE Advances and other accounts 83,299,564 10575020 11,120,258 6,104,592 4759427 115,858,861
REEES Available-for-sale securities 2,417,059 2,004,641 12,424,145 6,034,710 381,192 23,351,747
FRHEES Held-to-maturity securities 2,031,325 2,186,169 6,415,446 - - 10,832,940
SHEERH Total financial assets 104,905,555 23124475 29,989,091 12,139,302 7,665,059 177,823,482
Bk Liabilities
FIER Deposits from banks 1,501,734 - - - 70,733 1,572,467
ITESBTIE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,146,825 1,146,825
FEEERRMAE Trading liabilities 3,016,569 2,533,351 47,694 - - 5,597,614
RPER Deposits from customers 117,852,846 19,276,547 789,799 - 5315245  143,234437
EEHERE Certificates of deposit issued 2,460,682 1,014,801 2,634,204 - - 6,109,777
BETNERES Issued debt securities - - - - - _
kEEH Subordinated notes - - 3,516,676 1,015,702 - 5,432,378
EtbiRE kB Other accounts and accruals - - - - 2,645,717 2,645,717
SRAEAT Total financial liabilties 124,831,831 22,824,699 6,088,463 1,915,702 9178520 165,739,215
NESBERAH (REHR)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)  (19,926,276) 299,776 23,000,628 10,223,600
NEfEIRAHZEE Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 2,646,315 409,492 712,526 (3,842,627)
NEHREEAH (89%) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (17,279,961) 709,268 23,713,154 6,380,973

* AMEFHENSEREBIREEBBRNEEM
BENKAEEET - CRHENSHBREEEFA
SRR R = @ T 1T A R OTAE T A S KM

Ho

*

Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of
on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
into to mitigate interest rate risk.
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3. HEEKBER@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.34 FIERE R %) 334 Interest rate risk (Continued)
SEANL 155 F
3f8A EE E5F
FUT Over Over 5EHE AFtE
%8 Group 3months 3 months to 1yearto Over  Non-interest 8%
2013612 4311 At 31 December 2013 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Re RERTNER Cash and balances with banks 7,329,504 - - - 940,508 8,270,012
ERINER Placements with banks 1,889,032 2,212,261 - - - 4,101,293
FIEEBRENES Trading securities 631,934 5,368,325 335,529 - - 6,335,788
EEALTESEAEALY Financial assets designated at fair value
TABRNEREE through profit or loss - - - - 4,048 4,048
fESEIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 687,069 687,069
ERERRAMEE Advances and other accounts 84,981,809 8,473,687 9,791,152 727,150 4228940 108,202,738
A EERR Available-for-sale securities 920,545 1,992,504 18,939,775 4,994214 272,780 27,119,818
REIHES Held-to-maturity securities 1,446,017 1,655,194 2,568,078 - - 5,669,289
SHEEAT Total financial assets 97,198,841 19,701,971 31,634,534 5,721,364 6,133,545 160,390,255
S Liabilities
BOHER Deposits from banks 1,759,613 - - - 235,684 1,995,297
TheRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,117,256 1,117,256
FEEERENARE Trading liabilties 478,501 2,767,145 116,827 - - 3,362,473
REHR Deposits from customers 103,321,781 19,134,646 1,608,375 164,673 5,715,658 129,945,133
BRIMEE Certificates of deposit issued 2,259,279 2,107,785 1,765,497 - - 6,132,561
BENERES Issued debt securiies 775,385 - - - - 775,385
kERH Subordinated notes - - 1,850,719 1911,752 - 3,762,471
HiniR A kR Other accounts and accruals 100,993 - - - 2,501,914 2,602,907
SHAREAT Total financial liabilities 108,695,552 24,009,576 5,341,418 2,076,425 9,570,512 149,693,483
MEGREEAH (REHR)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)® (11,496,711 (4307605 26,293,116 3,644,939
HEfETRANZ T2 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,226,603 2,950,892 (4,061,258) (3,130,229)
NEGREERG (SHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (7,270,108) (19356713 22,231,858 514,710
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Market risk (Continued)

334 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EANUL 180
38R Z1f B5F
FHUT Over Over SEME THE

#17 Bank 3months 3 months to 1 year to Over  Non-interest Rt
20145128311 At 31 December 2014 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
BE Assets
Be RESTHER Cash and balances with banks 12,002,317 - - - 1,776,120 13,778,437
ERTRER Placements with banks 1,786,287 2,866,324 - - - 4,652,611
FEEERRNES Trading securities 2,051,864 4,769,256 29,24 - - 6,850,362
EEALTEHEAELY Financial assets designated at

TABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - =
ITESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 776,476 776,476
EEETR RS Advances and other accounts 81,457,820 6,766,828 5,635,738 235,956 2,814,281 96,910,623
EHERS Available-for-sale securities 2,417,059 2,094,641 12,350,694 5,891,360 321,624 23,075,378
BREHES Held-to-maturity securities 1,147,348 324,761 5,606,708 - - 7,078,817
SREERHT Total financial assets 100,862,695 16,821,810 23,622,382 6,127,316 5,688,501 153,122,704
B Liabilities
e Deposits from banks 2,450,561 55,107 - - 107,138 2,612,806
SRR Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,141,386 1,141,386
FEEERBMAE Trading liabilties 3,016,569 2,533,351 47,694 - - 5,597,614
RERH Deposits from customers 102,470,827 12,973,795 3,267 - 57,732 120,865,621
BEANENE Certificates of deposit issued 2,460,682 1,114,805 2,634,204 - - 6,200,781
BETHERES Issued debt securities = = - - - -
REEH Subordinated notes - = 3,516,676 1,915,702 = 5,432,378
iR E RER Other accounts and accruals - = - - 2,215,292 2,215,292
SRaEAH Total financial liabilities 110,398,639 16,677,058 6,201,931 1,915,702 8,881,548 144,074,878
NEHREEA (RSHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (9,535,944) 144,752 17,420,451 4,211,614
il =y g7 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 2,509,675 409,492 849,166 (3,842,627)
NESBEESH (LRE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (7,026,269) 554244 18,260,617 368,987
* REFHENEREEETREERBRAEEM * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of

BENFAEETE - KHEBNRREZEEFA
BERE A = @B T T VA ROTAE T AS A EIR
£ into to mitigate interest rate risk.

on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered
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3. HM¥KEKRER@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.3 mWiEE @) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)
3.34 FIZEE: &) 334 Interest rate risk (Continued)
3EANE 1€ E
3f@8A EF 5%
AT Over Over 5EpE N8
ichl Bank 3months  3Imonths to 1yearto Over  Non-interest At
2013612 4311 At 31 December 2013 or less 1 year 5 years 5 years Bearing Total
AE Assets
RERERONER Cash and balances with banks 5,349,643 - - - 928,259 6,277,902
ERER Placements with banks 1,083,682 2,083,530 - - - 4,067,212
FEEERRNES Trading securities 631,934 5,368,325 335,529 - - 6,335,788
BENATEEAERY Financial assets designated at
TABRNEREE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - =
ITESBTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 710,805 710,805
EREEFREMER Advances and other accounts 75,984,676 5,396,799 5,560,232 207,715 2,796,318 89,945,740
AT EES Available-for-sale securities 920,545 1,992,504 18,939,775 4,994 214 217,070 27,064,108
BREHES Held-to-maturity securities 1,206,705 232,971 1,577,819 - - 3,017,495
SREEAF Total financial assets 86,077,185 15,074,129 26,413,355 5,201,929 4,652,452 137,419,050
aff Liabilities
/ITER Deposits from banks 2,804,187 70,805 - - 274,661 3,149,653
ESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,109,217 1,100,217
FEEEREMAE Trading liabilties 478,501 2,767,145 116,827 - - 3,362,473
ZEHER Deposits from customers 89,928,992 12,689,855 6,452 - 585,353 108,410,652
BRGNS Certificates of deposit issued 2,258,694 2,702,943 1,765,497 - - 6,727,134
BEINEEES Issued debt securities 775,385 - - - - 775,385
&RREH Subordinated notes - - 1,850,719 1,911,752 - 3,762,471
A RER Other accounts and accruals 100,993 - - - 2,193,440 2,294,433
SRARAH Total financial liabiliies 96,346,752 18,230,748 3,739,495 1911752 9362671 129,591,418
MEGREEAH (REAE)" Total interest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)”  (10,269,567) (3,156,619) 22,673,860 3,290,177
MEHETEANZ 72 Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 4,085,215 2,950,892 (3,919,870) (3,130,229)
NEGREERG (AHE) Total interest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* (6,184,352) (205727) 18,753,990 159,948
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

34.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory liquidity ratio and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand a prolonged period of liquidity stress of
not less than a month. During the period, the Group had maintained
a sufficiently high liquidity ratio well above the statutory minimum of
25%.

Moreover, the Group maintains the liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the requirements set forth in the
SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk
Management” issued by the HKMA in April 2011. The SPM LM-2 is
developed to implement the liquidity sound principles formulated by
the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel Committee”) to
strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of banks. During
the year, the HKMA has conducted a series of consultations in relation
to the implementation of the new liquidity standards under the Basel
Il framework in Hong Kong. In particular, authorized institutions
are classified into 2 categories, taking into account of their nature,
size and complexity of operations. Category 1 banks are subject to
Liquidity Coverage Ratio requirement while Category 2 banks have to
comply with the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio, which is an enhanced
version of the existing Liquidity Ratio.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
34.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to
oversee liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the
Group’s loan and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and
projections, and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the
liquidity ratio and maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. Appropriate
limits or triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid
assets are held to ensure that the Group can meet all short-term
funding requirements. The Treasury Division is responsible for the
day-to-day management of funding and liquidity position while the
RMCD is responsible for the measurement and monitoring of liquidity
risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis, and also conducting
liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial Control Division
(“FCD”) handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity risk,
and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and
liquidity ratio, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding
management.

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune time in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
34.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis
of the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as
well as the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based
on historical observations. The cash flow projections also take into
account the historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including
undrawn lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as
standby letters of credit and guarantees. A liquid asset portfolio
is held to withstand unexpected shortfall in net cash flow. Debt
securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure
their market liquidity. The Group performs stress testing regularly,
which includes an institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market
crisis scenario and a combination of these crisis scenarios in order
to assess the potential impact on its liquidity position under stressed
market conditions and has formulated a contingency plan that sets
out strategies for dealing with liquidity problems and the procedures
for making up cash flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions
or liquidation of assets held for liquidity risk management purpose)
in emergency situations. Intragroup transactions are conducted on
arms-length basis and are treated the same way as other third party
transactions for the purpose of cash flow projection under normal
scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are required to manage their
liquidity positions to meet their needs under both normal and stressed
conditions.

342 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where
applicable, the earliest callable date.
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(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
34.2 FRIHZHT (4) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1AL
B3EREMT  3EANL 180k
3 months 1 B5E
DEEE  1EASNT or less Over Over SENE

£ Group Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  EHAH &it
2014%128318 At 31 December 2014 on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
Be RERTRES Cash and balances with banks 2,771,835 12,066,276 - - = = - 14838111
B8R Placements with banks - - 2178304 3,151,507 - - - 530811
BIEEERENES Trading securities - 366,993 1,676,964 4,761,251 45,154 - - 6,850,362
EENATEHEEEST Financial assets designated at

TAERNEHEAE fair value through profit or loss - - - - - 9,821 - 9,621
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 50,387 38,998 93,313 350,366 223,765 - 756,829
ERERREMEE Advances and other accounts 7,459,311 12,175,730 13,023,854 18,313,306 29,962,446 33,190,268 1,733,946 115,858,861
ARHESS Available-for-sale securities - 248,532 1,829,698 2,172,191 12,300,365 6,414,769 386,192 23,351,747
BEIEES Held-to-maturity securities - 561,653 58,116 3,143,157 7,070,014 - - 10,832,940
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - = 5 5 - 3,746,918 3,746,918
FEBHEERE Investments in jointly

controlled entities - - - - - - 65,694 65,694

e Goodwill - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
B AE Intangible assets - - - - - - 61,844 61,844
NEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2,728,208 2,728,208
RENE Investment properties - - = 5 5 - 745,166 745,166
EEHEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 80,591 = = 80,591
BEAH Total assets 10,231,146 25,469,571 18,800,934 31,634,725 49,808,936 39,838,623 10,279,658 186,063,593
& Liabilties
BtR Deposit from banks 41,679 142,433 - 806,727 581,628 - - 15T
fEeBIA Derivative financial instruments - 41,982 65,343 116,783 771,638 151,079 - 1,146,825
RIEEERRVER Trading liabilties - 98,500 2,918,069 2,533,351 47,694 - - 5,597,614
BFEH Deposits from customers 52,606,769 43,469,015 27,090,791 19,278,063 789,799 = - 143,234,437
EEIHERE Certificates of deposit issued - 501,056 840,079 2,134,348 2,634,294 = = 6,109,777
BRINERES Issued debt securities = - - = = = = =
EREK Subordinated notes - - - - 5,432,378 - - 5,432,378
EthiER RER Other accounts and accruals 23,59 756,804 617,058 770,848 61,508 - 415,905 2,645,717
lld = Current income tax liabilities - - - 206,392 - - - 206,392
EEHEaE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 55,056 = = 55,056
Clch) Total liabilities 52,672,042 45,009,790 31,531,340 25,846,512 10,373,995 151,079 415905 166,000,663
FREtEE Net liquidity gap (42,440,896)  (19,540,219)  (12,730,406) 5,788,213 39,434,941 39,687,544 9,863,753 20,062,930
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HEEKBER@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
34.2 FRIH 7T (a) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)
1AM
{B3{ERFMAT 3@ANE 1E)E
3 months E{fF E5F
HEE  1EAIUT or less Over Over SENE

2B Group Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  EHHAH 8%
2013512318 At 31 December 2013 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
Re AR Cash and balances with banks 3,363,571 4,906,441 - - - = - 8,270,012
B8R Placements with banks - - 1,889,032 2,212,261 - - - 4,101,293
BEEERRNES Trading securities - 147,493 481,050 5,358,136 349,109 - - 6,335,788
EENATEHEEEST Financial assets designated at

TABRNEREAE fair value through profit or loss - - - - = 4048 = 4048
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 65,421 30,274 143,845 124,426 323,103 - 687,069
ERERREMERE Advances and other accounts 7,487,876 10,341,658 11,440,961 14,587,803 31,648,940 31,020,943 1,674,557 108,202,738
ARHESS Available-for-sale securities - 383,989 39,426 2,101,347 19,328,062 4994214 272,780 27,119,818
BEIEES Held-to-maturity securities - 262,604 - 1,655,194 3,751,491 - - 5,669,289
BEnNARE Investment in an associate = - - - = = 3,304,993 3,304,993
FEBHEERE Investments in jointly

controlled entities - - - - - - 59,657 59,657

e Goodwill - - - - - - 811,690 811,690
EYEE Intangible assets - - - - - - 66,242 66,242
NERAMETAE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 1,705,350 1,705,350
RENE Investment properties = - - - = = 600,540 600,540
BEHEEE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 22,975 = = 22,975
BEAR Total assets 10,851,447 16,107,606 13,880,743 26,058,586 55,225,003 36,342,508 8495809 166,961,702
Bf Liabiliies
RTER Deposits from banks 123,020 476,584 - - 1,395,693 - - 1,995,297
ik Derivative financial instruments - 119,297 45,486 128,324 719,379 104,770 - 1,117,256
HEEERBMER Trading liabilties - 477,501 1,000 2,767,146 116,826 - - 3,362,473
BFEH Deposits from customers 40,193,463 42,134,031 28,212,501 17,809,946 1,594,411 781 - 129,945,133
BERENE Certificates of deposit isstied - 752,633 856,739 2,757,691 1,765,498 - - 6,132,561
BEANERRS Issued debt securities - - - 775,385 - - - 775,385
) Subordinated notes - - - - 486,740 3,275,731 - 3,762,474
bR RER Other accounts and accruals 25,576 759,737 780,390 482,398 62,300 - 492,506 2,602,907
ARG E Current income tax liabilities - - - 200,072 - - - 200,072
EEHEAE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 21,268 = = 21,268
84 Total liabilities 40,342,059 44,719,783 29,896,116 24,920,962 6,162,115 3,381,282 492506 149,914,823
FREtER Net liquidity gap (29490,612)  (28,612,177)  (16,015,373) 1,137,624 49,062,888 32,961,226 8,003,303 17,046,879
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
34.2 FRIHZHT (4) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

1EANL

E3EAHUT 3fEANE 10k
3 months 1 B5E
PHEE  1BAINT or less Over Over SENLE

#i17 Bank Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  EHHAH it
2014%128318 At 31 December 2014 on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
Be RERTRES Cash and balances with banks 1,922,650 11,855,787 - - = = - 13778437
RRITHRER Placements with banks - - 1669962 2982649 - - - 4852611
RIEEERRYES Trading securities - 366,993 1,676,964 4,761,251 45,154 - - 6,850,362

EENATEHEEEST Financial assets designated at
SABRHERAE fair value through profit or loss - - - = - - - -

fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 49,080 38,755 93,250 371,626 223,765 - 776,476
ERERREMEE Advances and other accounts 7,379,806 11,454,535 11,831,305 14,094,801 24,468,091 21,321,632 360,453 96,910,623
ARHESS Available-for-sale securities - 248,532 1,829,698 2,172,191 12,083,564 6,414,769 326,624 23,075,378
FRAEES Held-to-maturity securities - - - 742,667 6,336,150 - - 7,078,817
BENTRE Investment in an associate - - = 5 5 - 1,213,057 1,213,057
FEBHEERE Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 20,000 20,000
BlAE Intangible assets = = = - - - - -
MEARRERER Investments in and loans

to subsidiaries - - - - - - 3,694,389 3,694,389
NEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - = 5 5 - 2,019,787 2,019,787
RENE Investment properties - - - - - = 743,077 743,077
BEAH Total assets 9,302,456 23,974,927 17,046,684 24,846,809 43,304,585 33,960,166 8,637,387 161,073,014
& Liabilties
RITER Deposits from banks 72,187 564,927 524,677 869,387 581,628 - - 2,612,806
ik Derivative financial instruments - 41,939 65,321 116,758 766,289 151,079 - 1,141,386
RIEEERRVER Trading liabilties - 98,500 2,918,069 2,533,351 47,694 - - 5,597,614
BFEH Deposits from customers 45344619 38580632 23952792 12,075311 3,067 = - 120,865,621
EEIHERE Certificates of deposit issued - 501,056 840,079 2,234,359 2,634,294 = = 6,209,781
BRINERES Issued debt securities = = - - - - - -
EREK Subordinated notes - - - - 5,432,378 - - 5,432,378
EthiER RER Other accounts and accruals 10,426 632,819 577,730 633,335 19 - 360,963 2,215,292
HEEasE Current income tax liabilities - = = 168,850 - - - 168,850
EEHEaE Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 47,204 = = 47,204
R Total liabilities 45,427,232 40,428,873 28,878,668 19,531,344 9,512,773 151,079 360,963 144,290,932
FREtEE Net liquidity gap (36,124,776)  (16,453,946)  (11,831,984) 5,315,465 33,791,812 33,809,087 8,276,424 16,762,082
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HEEKBER@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
34.2 FRIH 7T (a) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

1HANE

B3EAFNUT  SEANME 185 &
3 months E{fF E5F
DEEE  1EARMNT or less Over Over SENE

idh) Bank Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  EZHAH GH
2013512318 At 31 December 2013 on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
BE Assets
Re RERINES Cash and balances with banks 2,199,992 4,077,910 - - - - - 6,277,902
ERIHER Placements with banks - - 1,867,374 2,083,530 116,308 - - 4,067,212
REEERRNES Trading securities - 147,493 481,050 5,358,136 349,109 - - 6,335,788

EENATENEEEET Financial assets designated at
TARRNERAE fair value through profit or loss - - - = = = - -

ik Derivative financial instruments - 64,837 30,105 143,855 148,904 323,104 - 710,805
ERETRE A Advancesand otheraccounts 6946874 10,065,192 10402153 10895679 25046432 26,268,697 20713 89,945,740
A EES Available-for-sale securities - 383,989 39,426 2101347 19,328,062 4,994,214 A7010 27,064,108
RENEES Held-to-maturity securities - 23,093 - 232,971 2,761,231 - - 3,017,495
BEnnRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 1,213,057 1,213,057
RREHEERS Investments in jointly controlled

entities - - - - - - 20,000 20,000
EVAE Intangible assets - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
WBLRRERER Investments in and loans

to subsidiaries - - - - - - 3,501,138 3,501,138
ERAMETAE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 1,232,737 1,232,737
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 598,456 598,456
BEAT Total assets 0146866 14762714 12,820,108 20815518 47,750,046 31,586,015 7104171 143,985,438
af Liabilties
HkER Deposits from banks 143635 1,364,832 174,688 70,805 1,395,693 - - 3,149,653
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 119,058 45,486 128,204 711,698 104,771 - 1,109,217
RIEEERRVER Trading liabilities - 477,501 1,000 2,767,146 116,826 = - 3362473
BPEH Deposits from customers 32997860 37,103,744  25611,088 12,691,538 6,452 - - 108410652
BEANERE Certificates of deposit issued - 752,633 856,154 3,352,849 1,765,498 - - 6,727,134
BEINERES Issued debt securities - - - 775,385 - - - 775,385
RERE Subordinated notes - - - - 486,740 3,275,731 = 3,762,471
EtoikA RER Other accounts and accruals 8,077 713,020 757,989 347,742 31 - 467,374 2,294,433
JEfEaR Current income tax liabilities - - - 153,879 - = - 153,879
EREHEER Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - 19,934 - - 19,934
BfA Total liabilities 33149572 40530988 27446375 20,287,548 4,502,872 3,380,502 467374 129,765,231
FratzE Net liquidity gap (24002,706)  (25,768,274)  (14,626,267) 57970 43247174 28205513 6,636,797 14,200,207
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(AR Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. HMKEERERE @ 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

34.2 FRIHZHT (4) 3.4.2 Maturity analysis (Continued)

RBERARFERERAE B SEEERLTERDN In respect of certificates of deposit held for investment purpose
GREZBBES  RENEIH AR 2 FIRHR and included in total assets as at the end of the reporting period,
SHHREGT - the relevant balance, analysed based on the remaining period to

contractual maturity, is shown as follows:

1AL
B3EAFUT 3EANL 10
3 months EE E5F
PHEEE  1EASNT or less Over Over SENE
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  SERH it
-1 Group on demand 1 month 1 month to1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
0145124318 At 31 December 2014
FREpan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
RRIEES Held-to-maturity securities - 124,762 - 1,822,615 - - - 1,047,377
2013512318 At 31 December 2013
FEaan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
HEIEE Held-to-maturity securities - - - 1,006,441 99,831 - - 1,106,272
1EANL
ERIGEEDAN 3EANL 150k
3 months L3R E5F
HfEE  1EAINT or less Over Over SENL
Repayable Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over  BHHAH it
#17 Bank on demand 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Indefinite Total
145128318 At 31 December 2014
EREpan: Certificates of deposit held
included in:
RENBES Held-to-maturity securities = = = = = = = 5
2013512431 At 31 December 2013
&R EA Certificates of deposit held
included in:
REIHES Held-to-maturity securities - - - = = = = -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CAEREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEERERE @)
3.4 REBELEE @
34.2 2B H 5 (&)
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
342 Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and
interest rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the
management of the Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely
matched, as businesses transacted are often of uncertain term
and of different types. An unmatched position potentially enhances
profitability, but also increases the risk of losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are
important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and
standby letters of credit are considerably less than the amount of the
commitment because the Group does not generally expect the third
parties to fully draw funds under the agreement. The total outstanding
contractual amount of commitments to extend credit does not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, as many of these

commitments will expire or terminate without being funded.

343 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under
non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that
will be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group
manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted
cash inflows.

The Group’s derivatives that normally will be settled on a net basis
include:

o Foreign exchange derivatives: over-the-counter (OTC) currency
options, currency futures, exchange traded currency options;

° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, OTC interest rate options, interest rate futures and
other interest rate contracts; and

° Equity derivatives: equity options.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
343 BEXNER A Z KB BEE LT (&) 343 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)
AEEBBIRBHEEELERE 2 ITETABEE The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include:
. SMEHTAET B : RHEIINE - SNERRH] . Foreign exchange derivatives: currency forward, currency
swaps;
. MZELTHE T B« F| 2= $e HY [ 32 #2 6 B | 2 ° Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps and cross currency
A R interest rate swaps; and
. EEMITATR  FRENBEN - . Credit derivatives: credit default swaps.
1A LE
I@ASMUT  3EAME 1E0E
3 months BE Z5%
1EAZUT or less Over Over 5EH L
&8 Group Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over &5t
2014%12R31 8 At 31 December 2014 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FTETARER Non-derivative cash flow
=L Liabilities
RITEN Deposits from banks 186,562 2,925 808,988 581,649 - 1,580,124
EPHER Deposits from customers 96,323,415 27,691,204 19,640,668 911,746 - 144,567,033
HEEERENAE Trading liabilities 98,500 2,918,086 2,533,739 49,166 - 5,599,491
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 508,734 856,259 2,197,660 2,717,075 - 6,279,728
BEANERES Issued debt securities - - - - - o
BERK Subordinated notes 46,821 105,516 150,962 4,423,553 1,803,970 6,530,822
HwgE Other liabilities 566,190 322,261 386,622 - - 1,275,073
BREES Total liabilities
(BH3IHE) (contractual maturity dates) 97,730,222 31,896,251 25,718,639 8,683,189 1,803,970 165,832,271
fIETARSR Derivative cash flow
REBEEZITE Derivative financial instruments
tRTHE settled on net basis (19,447) (29,589) (58,488) (38,454) (2,933) (148,911)
RABEE N Derivative financial instruments
ERIA settled on a gross basis
it 5 Total outflow 30,744,088 | | 15,165,665 | | 14,128,887 | | 3,499,792 555,368 | | 64,093,800
AR Total inflow (31,075,160)( | (15,137,767)| | (13,927,269) (2,993,800) (314,575)| | (63,448,571)
(331,072) 27,898 201,618 505,992 240,793 645,229
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3. BXERER@m
3.4 REBESRES @

34.3 BEXFIH HZ KM BERZ T (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

343 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)

1EAR B
3EAZAT AL 1€ML E
3 months EE B5E
EEEDS or less Over Over 58N L
e Group Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over A
2013124310 At 31 December 2013 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
HTETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
af& Liabilities
RITHEH Deposits from banks 698,688 2,616 2,545 1,398,357 - 2,102,206
EPHER Deposits from customers 82,530,917 28825453 18,080,136 1,795,564 988 131,233,058
FIEEERGENERE Trading liabilities 477,501 1,879 2,769,048 116,175 - 3,364,603
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 761,700 869,997 2805211 1,851,787 - 628869
ERINERES Issued debt securities 27 - 775,411 - - 775,438
RERK Subordinated notes - 106,607 105,830 2,513,200 1,920,877 4,646,514
AfphfE Other liabilities 683,942 493,033 285,328 - - 1462303
ffEER Total liabilities
(BH31HR) (contractual maturity dates) 85,152,775 30,299,585 24,823,509 7,675,083 1,921,865 149,872,817
(TEIARSR Derivative cash flow
BEREEINE Derivative financial instruments
$BIA settled on net basis (56,908) (70,572) (322,775) (121,973) (3,694) (575,922)
RABES 21T Derivative financial instruments
TRTH settled on a gross basis
s Total outflow 24,428,483 | | 12,409,656 | | 15,391,173 3,474,947 649,780 | | 56,354,039
MAEEE Total inflow (24,359,868)( | (12,373,388)| | (15,208,642) | (2,775,658) (451,578)| | (55,169,134)
68,615 36,268 182,531 699,289 198,202 1,184,905
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

112

3. HXEKRERE@m 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 REBELEMRE@m 3.4 Liquidity risk (continued)
343 BEXNER A Z KB BEE LT (&) 343 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(Continued)
1fALLRE
3EAHIUT AL 1ENE
3 months BE Z5%
EEEEDSN or less Over Over 5L E
1T Bank Upto but over 3 months 1 year Over CHI
20145128 31H At 31 December 2014 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
FTETERER Non-derivative cash flow
8% Liabilities
RITHEH Deposits from banks 637,785 525,157 870,622 581,649 - 2615213
REER Deposits from customers 84,047,471 24,059,572 13,151,327 3,395 - 121,261,765
KEEERENAR Trading liabilities 98,500 2,918,086 2,533,739 49,166 - 5,599,491
BEINENE Certificates of deposit issued 508,734 856,259 2,299,106 2,717,075 - 6,381,174
BRETHESES Issued debt securities = = - - - -
RERK Subordinated notes 46,821 105,516 150,962 4423558 1,803,970 6,530,822
R =L Other liabilities 530,169 306,219 296,366 - - 1,132,754
REAE Total liabilities
(B#EIHA) (contractual maturity dates) 85,869,480 28,770,809 19,302,122 7,774,838 1,803,970 143,521,219
fTETARSR Derivative cash flow
REEEE ITE Derivative financial instruments
$BIA settled on net basis (19,447) (29,589) (58,488) (38,454) (2,933) (148,911)
RIEREE 7 T4 Derivative financial instruments
FRTH settled on a gross basis
miEs Total outflow 30,881,785 | | 15,152,277 | | 14,124,656 3,495,948 555,368 | | 64,210,034
RS Total inflow (30,002,147)| | (15,123,938)| | (13,919,482)| | (2,985,628) (314,575)| | (63,245,770)
(20,362) 28,339 205,174 510,320 240,793 964,264
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3.4 REBESRES @

34.3 BEXFIH HZ KM BERZ T (&)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

343 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)

1EAR B
3EAZAT AL 1€ML E
3 months 2E B5E
EEEDS or less Over Over 58N L
i) Bank Up to but over 3 months 1 year Over A7
2013124310 At 31 December 2013 1 month 1 month to 1 year to 5 years 5 years Total
HTETARSR Non-derivative cash flow
af& Liabilities
RITHEH Deposits from banks 1,607,251 175,234 72,122 1,395,693 - 3,250,300
EPHER Deposits from customers 70,203,632 25,734,864 12,848,480 6,674 - 108,793,650
FIEEERGENERE Trading liabilities 477,501 1,879 2,769,048 116,175 - 3,364,603
BETNERE Certificates of deposit issued 761,681 869,400 3406107 1,851,787 - 6888984
ERINERES Issued debt securities 27 - 775,411 - - 775,438
RERK Subordinated notes - 106,607 105,830 2,513,200 1,920,877 4,646,514
AfphfE Other liabilities 651,451 463,136 232,082 - - 12346619
ffEER Total liabilities
(BH31HR) (contractual maturity dates) 73,701,543 27,351,129 20,209,030 5,883,529 1,920,877 129,066,108
(TEIARSR Derivative cash flow
BEREEINE Derivative financial instruments
$BIA settled on net basis (56,908) (70,572) (322,774) (121,973) (3,694) (575,921)
RABES 21T Derivative financial instruments
TRTH settled on a gross basis
s Total outflow 24,409,041 | | 12,401,250 | | 15,142,594 3,482,071 649,780 | | 56,084,736
RS Total inflow (24,340,927)| | (12,364,603)| | (14,966,078)| | (2,796,599) (451578)| | (54,919,785)
68,114 36,647 176,516 685,472 198,202 1,164,951
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

343 Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(Continued)

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding
loan commitments include cash, central bank balances, items in
the course of collection and treasury bills; loans and advances to
banks; and loans and advances to customers. In the normal course
of business, a proportion of customer loans contractually repayable
within one year will be extended. In addition, debt securities and
treasury bills have been pledged to secure liabilities. The Group
would also be able to meet unexpected net cash outflows by selling
securities and accessing additional funding sources such as asset-
backed markets.

344 Off-balance sheet items

Included in the table below are the following items:

° Loan commitments by reference to the dates of the contractual
amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial instruments
that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities;

o Financial guarantees based on the conditions existing at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required;

° The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of operating lease commitments
where a Group company is the lessee; and

o Capital commitments for the acquisition of buildings and
equipment.
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3. WXEERERE @) 3.
3.4 REBESRE @
344 BEEEEXKSIEE (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

344 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1R 1% 5F L%
£E@ Group No later Z5F Over =5
2014§12A31H At 31 December 2014 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRURE Loan commitments 65,609,969 3,571,018 12,869 69,193,856
ER - AEREMSRARHE Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
— & H - Acceptances 24,061 - - 24,061
—ERRERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 773,616 129,244 83,315 986,175
- RENEECRE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 477,089 375 - 477,464
EETFR Forward forward deposits placed - - - -
ST K I Operating lease commitments 159,801 113,400 47,428 320,629
BARAYE Capital commitments 157,050 - - 157,050
CE Total 67,201,586 3,814,037 143,612 71,159,235
1A 1E 54 AR
£F Group No later E B Over =H)
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRI Loan commitments 63,521,453 4,146,585 53,883 67,721,921
FER A E RE SRR Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
— & - Acceptances 948 - - 948
—ERRERERAZE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 1,834,851 225,603 83,217 2,143,671
—REREEERZF - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 650,876 - - 650,876
EEFR Forward forward deposits placed 12,457 - = 12,457
IR TR A A Operating lease commitments 193,353 226,260 61,661 481,274
BN Capital commitments 175,369 = = 175,369
&&t Total 66,389,307 4,598,448 198,761 71,186,516
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
344 Off-balance sheet items (Continued)

1L R 1L 5F L&

RAT Bank No later E5 Over &&t
2014§12A31H At 31 December 2014 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRURE Loan commitments 62,540,267 1,806,804 11,982 64,359,053
ER - AEREMSRRHE Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—ERRERERAZE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 239,294 30,943 - 270,237
—REREXREAE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 420,521 375 - 420,896
EEFER Forward forward deposits placed 648 - - 648
IR TR A Operating lease commitments 137,786 60,502 = 198,288
BAE I Capital commitments 155,383 = = 155,383
&t Total 63,493,899 1,898,624 11,982 65,404,505
1F AR 1F LR 5F bAf&
R1T Bank No later E5F Over &t
201312 A431H At 31 December 2013 than 1 year 1-5 years 5 years Total
BRI Loan commitments 60,614,753 2,913,526 - 63,528,279
BR AR REME RS Guarantees, acceptances
and other financial facilities
—ERRERERE - Guarantees and standby
letters of credit 200,882 20,929 - 221,811
—REREHEERE - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 520,296 - - 520,296
TR Forward forward deposits placed 12,457 - - 12,457
ST K I Operating lease commitments 172,592 166,948 = 339,540
B Capital commitments 171,883 - = 171,883
At Total 61,692,863 3,101,403 - 64,794,266
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(@) Determination of fair value

Fair values are subject to a control framework that the Board is
held responsible for ensuring proper valuation governance and
control processes of the Group. It delegates the responsibility
for overseeing the valuation process for financial instruments to
the TIRC. Valuation is performed independently by RMCD and
where appropriate, by independent and professionally qualified
valuers and the valuation results are periodically verified to
ensure the integrity of the fair value measurement process.

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement
date under current market conditions regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation
technique.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or
regulatory agency. A quoted price in an active market provides
the most reliable evidence of fair value and shall be used
whenever available. If a financial asset or a financial liability has
a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is
used by the Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(@)  Determination of fair value (Continued)

Where observable market quotation of financial instruments is
not directly available, the Group estimates the fair value of such
financial instruments by using appropriate valuation techniques
that are widely recognised including present value techniques
and standard option pricing models. In applying valuation
techniques for these financial instruments, the Group maximizes
the use of relevant observable inputs (for examples, interest
rates, FX rates, volatilities, credit spreads) and minimizes the
use of unobservable inputs. For example, the fair value of
interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, the fair value of foreign exchange
forward contracts is generally based on current forward
rates and the fair value of option contracts is derived using
appropriate pricing models, such as Black-Scholes model.

The Group uses external price quotes and its own credit
spreads in determining the current value of its financial liabilities
and other liabilities for which it has elected the fair value option.
When the Group’s credit spreads widen, the Group recognises
a gain on these liabilities because the value of the liabilities has
decreased. When the Group’s credit spreads narrow, the Group
recognises a loss on these liabilities because the value of the
liabilities has increased.

Price data and parameters used in the measurement process
are reviewed carefully and adjusted, if necessary, to take
consideration of the current market developments.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3.
3.5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
(b)  Fair value hierarchy

The Group measures fair values using the following
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the observable and
unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement:

Level Descriptions

1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities. This level includes equity
that are listed on exchanges.

2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices). This level includes the majority of the
over-the-counter derivative contracts.

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This
level includes equity and debt securities with significant
unobservable components.
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3. WXEERERE @) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(Z) RNFEZRE) (b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value:

BATEAEZEERERE

%8 Group F1R F2H ERE =5
2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AA Descriptions
IAFEFEBHES A Financial assets at fair value
BaRreREE through profit or loss
HEEERS Held for trading
BEREH Debt securities - 6,850,362 - 6,850,362
EENATEFNEEHE Designated at fair value through
ZERT A BR profit or loss
EBES Debt securities - 9,821 = 9,821
fTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 540,441 - 540,441
HABEER Held for hedging - 216,388 = 216,388
AtHEZeREE Available-for-sale financial assets
EBES Debt securities - 22,955,554 4,753 22,960,307
EnEES Equity securities 171,946 144,386 75,108 391,440
BATEEZEERR Total assets measured at fair value 171,946 30,716,952 79,861 30,968,759
AT EIZ2EEES Financial liabilities at fair value
FABENERERE through profit or loss
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 5,597,614 = 5,597,614
TESHIA Derivative financial instruments
RIEEERZ Held for trading - 661,242 = 661,242
AR Held for hedging - 485,583 = 485,583
BEATEECAES Total liabilities measured at fair value - 6,744,439 = 6,744,439

REREIFHNEEZERMEERIF LT
B2HEFREFRE - WESREERK
BRAFEABENBZKAETR

Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent
investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They
are stated at cost which is considered to be a reasonable

approximation of fair value.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or
out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying

value represent the exchange revaluation gains/losses.

=8 Group F1R F28/ EREN A%
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AT EFEBEZET A Financial assets at fair value
BRNTREE through profit or loss
HEEERE Held for trading
G 5 Debt securities - 6,335,788 - 6,335,788
BENATFEFEEHE Designated at fair value through
ZEAER profit or loss
BEREH Debt securities - 4,248 - 4,248
fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments
HERERRE Held for trading - 299,574 - 299,574
B B+ Held for hedging - 387,495 - 387,495
AEHEZSBEE Available-for-sale financial assets
&5 7 Debt securities - 26,847,037 4,753 26,851,790
BRUES Equity securities 70,288 122,599 75,141 268,028
RATEFEZEEAR Total assets measured at fair value 70,288 33,996,741 79,894 34,146,923
NAFEFEAEEFA Financial liabilities at fair value
BareraE through profit or loss
HEEERE Held for trading = 3,362,473 = 3,362,473
TEEBMTA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading = 459,361 = 459,361
HAEBEER Held for hedging - 657,895 - 657,895
BN EFECABAG Total liabilities measured at fair value - 4,479,729 - 4,479,729
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(%) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

RIT Bank F1R F2K ERE =5
2014%F12H31H At 31 December 2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AA Descriptions
ANFEFEEEESF A Financial assets at fair value
Tﬁmﬁﬁﬁrﬁ?&ﬁF through profit or loss
HEEERS Held for trading
EBES Debt securities - 6,850,362 - 6,850,362
EENATEFNEEHE Designated at fair value through
=2 ;#ME/\ profit or loss
ﬁ‘%p”i% Debt securities = = = =
fTHEERTA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 560,088 - 560,088
A R{ELH Held for hedging - 216,388 - 216,388
AHEE EREE Available-for-sale financial assets
EBES Debt securities - 22,738,753 4,753 22,743,506
EnEES Equity securities 170,604 122,997 38,271 331,872
BATEEZEERR Total assets measured at fair value 170,604 30,488,588 43,024 30,702,216
WAFEFEREEE A Financial liabilities at fair value
BafemaRE through profit or loss
HEEERE Held for trading - 5,597,614 - 5,597,614
fTESETA Derivative financial instruments
HEEERE Held for trading - 655,803 - 655,803
AR Held for hedging - 485,583 = 485,583
BRATEEZBER Total liabilities measured at fair value - 6,739,000 - 6,739,000
AEAFEILEEZ S EERIELTRE Financial assets classified as Level 3 assets represent

B2EEFREFRE WFEREERK
BRATEABHNBZKAETR

investments in unlisted equity securities and debentures. They
are stated at cost which is considered to be a reasonable

approximation of fair value.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(%) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
there were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities into or

EAFESRFTREIRG - REEBEZEZ out of the Level 3 fair value hierarchy. The changes in carrying
RINES GRS EE o value represent the exchange revaluation gains/losses.
HRAT Bank F1R F28/ EREN A%
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AR Descriptions
AT EFEBEZET A Financial assets at fair value

BRNTREE through profit or loss

HEEERE Held for trading

G 5 Debt securities - 6,335,788 - 6,335,788
BENATFEFER Designated at fair value
@H}\Tﬁfm through profit or loss
BES Debt securities - - - _

fTESRMIA Derivative financial instruments

HERERRE Held for trading - 323,310 - 323,310

B B+ Held for hedging - 387,495 - 387,495
AEHEZSBEE Available-for-sale financial assets

&5 7 Debt securities - 26,847,037 4,753 26,851,790

BRUES Equity securities 69,562 104,442 38,314 212,318
BATEFEZEEAR Total assets measured at fair value 69,562 33,998,072 43,067 34,110,701

AR FEE BEZB A Financial liabilities at fair value

TE =R SR AE through profit or loss

REEERR Held for trading = 3,362,473 = 3,362,473
TEEBMTA Derivative financial instruments

HEEERE Held for trading = 466,226 = 466,226

A R{ELH Held for hedging - 642,991 - 642,991
BN EFECABAG Total liabilities measured at fair value - 4,471,690 - 4,471,690

DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

123



AR5 RRPoE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

124

(CABREFThz5I7R)

3. WXEEKRERE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

35 SREEREBZAFE @ 3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
() RIERFEGFTECZ/HTIA (c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value
TERBMZENANEE RAEITI AR The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair
KARARFEI Tz eREERBEZ values of those financial assets and liabilities not presented in
BREEMATE - EREVEERE - 1 the Group’s and the Bank’s statement of financial position at
ERATFETIRE(ER) AEBAERT their fair value. For disclosure purposes, these fair values have
BHERBBEERZEM T ARRENLNTE been estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
MBS RMETS R ESFEREMS @ &H at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group

SERKIREETE

for similar financial instruments, if applicable, or in the case of
investment securities, determined based on market prices or
price quotations.

BREE NEE
Carrying value Fair value

£H Group 2014 2013 2014 2013
SRMEE Financial assets
R e RIERITH AR Cash and balances with banks 14,838,111 8,270,012 14,842,985 8,267,832
TEERITHITF 3K Placements with banks 5,324,811 4,101,293 5,345,936 4,112,843
REERMER Loans and advances to customers

BAABE KRB Loans and advances to individuals

—fEA~R — Credit cards 4,057,656 4,162,473 4,058,213 4,162,888

—RIBER — Mortgages 29,109,305 27,122,139 29,109,232 27,122,028

— Hfth — Others 8,660,111 6,674,529 8,662,133 6,668,029

TEERNER Loans and advances to

corporate entities

—EHER — Term loans 29,903,231 27,590,155 29,904,055 27,582,271

—ZBER - Mortgages 14,082,486 13,148,257 14,082,511 13,148,615

—BomE — Trade finance 7,135,572 6,911,081 7,136,859 6,908,396

— HAth — Others 12,289,676 12,377,528 12,289,649 12,379,431
H5ER Trade bills 7,384,057 5,925,648 7,461,102 5,975,492
BIEEER K EWIE Investments in securities

PRz EHFERE

THAE
RITER
BEEN
BERITHERE
ERITHERES
REEH
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included in the loans and
receivables category - 1,137,631 - 1,020,606
Held-to-maturity securities 10,832,940 5,669,289 10,862,006 5,732,857

Financial liabilities

Deposits from banks 1,572,467 1,995,297 1,572,372 1,997,667
Deposits from customers 143,234,437 129,945,133 143,239,847 129,992,712
Certificates of deposit issued 6,109,777 6,132,561 6,096,361 6,124,475
Issued debt securities - 775,385 - 774,718
Subordinated notes 5,432,378 3,762,471 5,574,367 3,826,392
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

() RIZERFEGTEZ S/ TAE) (c)  Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)
FREE NEE
Carrying value Fair value

$R1T Bank 2014 2013 2014 2013
SRMEE Financial assets
& RERITH LR Cash and balances with banks 13,778,437 6,277,902 13,780,677 6,278,342
TFERITENIFX Placements with banks 4,652,611 4,067,212 4,675,355 4,075,537
HEERMER Loans and advances to customers

BAAER&ER Loans and advances to individuals

—ERAKR — Credit cards 3,844,933 3,956,449 3,844,933 3,956,449

—RB\ER - Mortgages 23,354,702 22,137,902 23,354,702 22,137,902

—HAh — Others 7,243,876 5,708,366 7,256,302 5,710,203

EERE R Loans and advances

to corporate entities

—BHIER — Term loans 24,532,541 22,039,535 24,533,365 22,031,651

—IRIBER - Mortgages 11,356,879 10,584,833 11,356,879 10,584,833

—EomrE — Trade finance 6,517,342  5918,454 6,517,342 5,918,454

— HAh — Others 11,357,072 11,028,919 11,350,357 11,027,604
BEH5ER Trade bills 7,409,361 6,271,548 7,481,996 6,321,392
BIEEER R ERGRIE Investments in securities

MR BHIRE included in the loans and

receivables category - 908,239 - 804,898

FEIEHES Held-to-maturity securities 7,078,817 3,017,495 7,100,460 3,075,886
SRBE Financial liabilities
RITIF X Deposits from banks 2,612,806 3,149,653 2,612,864 3,149,663
BEEHR Deposits from customers 120,865,621 108,410,652 121,002,434 108,543,962
B EITHFERE Certificates of deposit issued 6,209,781 6,727,134 6,196,426 6,718,597
BEBITHERE S Issued debt securities - 775,385 - 774,718
BIEER Subordinated notes 5,432,378 3,762,471 5,574,367 3,826,392

() AERTOER

ERITHFZEERRBRERZ AT
BTEKREE - BENSFRZRF
ETREMERBREERRKEIHA
RIEREF ] 2 BIS A S AT E T I5 =X
AEZAARRER

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted
cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates

for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(c)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value (Continued)

(i)  Loans and advances to customers, and trade bills

The estimated fair value of loans and advances and trade
bills represents the discounted amount of estimated future
cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows
are discounted at current market rates to determine fair

value.

(iii)  Investment securities

Investment securities include interest-bearing assets
included in the loans and receivables, and held-to-
maturity categories. Fair value of held-to-maturity assets
and loans and receivables is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is
not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

(ivy Deposits and balances from banks, deposits from
customers, certificates of deposit issued and other
borrowed funds

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated
maturity, which includes non-interest bearing deposits,
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated
fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits and other
borrowings not quoted in an active market is based on
discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity.

(v) Debt securities in issue including subordinated
notes issued

For those notes where quoted market prices are not
available, the present value technique is used based on
current yield curve and/or credit spread appropriate for
the remaining term to maturity to estimate fair value.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the banking
regulators in the markets where the entities within the Group
operate;

o To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue its business as a
going concern;

° To maximise returns to shareholders and optimise the benefits
to other stakeholders; and

o To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
regularly by the Group’s management, employing techniques based
on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented
by the HKMA, for supervisory purposes. The required information is
filed with the HKMA on a quarterly basis.

As Basel Ill has become effective from January 2013 in Hong Kong,
the Bank is required to meet three ratios, namely, the Common Equity
Tier 1 capital, Tier 1 capital and Total capital respectively against
risk-weighted assets. The internationally agreed minimum of these
three ratios as of 1 January 2015 are set at 4.5%, 6.0% and 8.0%
respectively and are adopted by the HKMA. Moreover, the Leverage
Ratio that forms part of Basel Ill implementation is under parallel
run until 2017 and relevant information has been submitted by the
Bank for regulatory monitoring during 2014. In addition, the capital
conservation and countercyclical capital buffers newly introduced
under Basel Il will be implemented from 1 January 2016 in Hong
Kong. In line with the international standards, the HKMA also adopts
the phase-in arrangements for new capital requirements in relation to
the Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, Tier 1 capital ratio and capital
buffers as proposed by the Basel Committee and will achieve full
implementation by 1 January 2019.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.6 Capital management (Continued)

Risk-weighted amount is the aggregate of the risk-weighted amounts
for credit risk, market risk and operational risk, and covers both on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures. On-balance sheet
exposures are classified according to the obligor or the nature of each
exposure and risk-weighted based on the credit assessment rating
assigned by an external credit assessment institution recognized by
the HKMA or other rules as set out in the Banking (Capital) Rules,
taking into account the capital effects of credit risk mitigation.
Off-balance sheet exposures are converted into credit-equivalent
amounts by applying relevant credit conversion factors to each
exposure, before being classified and risk-weighted as if they were
on-balance sheet exposures.

Capital adequacy of and the use of regulatory capital by the Group’s
Macau banking subsidiary, BCM, and banking subsidiary in China,
DSB China, are monitored regularly by the Group’s management,
employing techniques based on the guidelines provided by the
Autoridade Monetaria de Macau (“AMCM”) and the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (“CBRC”) respectively for supervisory
purposes.

The required information is filed by BCM with the AMCM and by
DSB China with the CBRC on a quarterly basis. The AMCM requires
BCM and the CBRC requires DSB China to maintain a ratio of own
funds or capital base to total risk-weighted exposures (i.e. the capital
adequacy ratio) not lower than the agreed regulatory minimum of 8%.

Certain non-banking subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to
statutory capital requirements from other regulatory authorities, such
as the Securities and Futures Commission.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.7 Fiduciary activities

The Group provides custody, trustee, wealth management and
advisory services to third parties, which involve the Group making
allocation and purchase and sale decisions in relation to a variety
of financial instruments. Those assets that are held in a fiduciary
capacity are not included in the Group’s financial statements. These
services could give rise to the risk that the Group could be accused of
mal-administration.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Changes in estimates and assumptions may
have a significant impact on the results of the Group in the periods
when changes are made. The application and selection of different
estimates and assumptions, and their subsequent changes, could
affect the Group’s profit and net asset value in the future. The Group,
based on its high-level assessment of the sensitivity impacts on the
reported assets and liabilities of the Group arising from the changes
in critical accounting estimates and assumptions, believes that the
estimates and assumptions adopted are appropriate and reasonable,
and the financial results and positions presented in the Group’s
financial statements are fair and reasonable in all material respects.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(@ Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at
least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio.
This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a group, or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating its future cash flows of
recoverable amounts. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows
are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

(b)  Fair value of financial instruments

A majority of the Group’s investments in debt securities carried
at fair value are valued based on observable market quotations.
As a consequence of the difficulties in financial markets caused
by the 2008 global financial crisis, the Group had witnessed
observable declines in market liquidity and the range of market
quotations for certain securities have widened. The Group
applies judgement in selecting the most appropriate quotation
for valuation purposes based on its assessment of the range
of observable quotations, recent observable transactions, the
reliability and quality of the pricing source, and the value of
securities of a similar nature.
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4.

4.1

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(c) Goodwill and intangible asset valuation

For business combinations, subsequent to initial recognition
of goodwill and intangible assets, any major change in the
assumptions in relation to future benefits to be generated from
the intangible assets, including future cash flow of benefits
to be generated from the acquired entities, or discount rates
which could be caused by major changes in market conditions
and outlook, could result in adjustments to the carrying values
of such assets. In the event that the expected recoverable
amounts of goodwill and intangible assets are significantly lower
than their carrying values, impairment of such assets would
have to be recognised.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies

(@) Distinction between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-
occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable
not only to property but also to other assets used in the
production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held to
supply services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
can be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held
to supply services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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4.

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(b) Impairment assessment on available-for-sale equity
securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale, held-to-maturity and loans and
receivables categories

The Group has conducted assessment of its available-for-sale
equity securities, and investments in debt securities included
in the available-for-sale (“AFS”), held-to-maturity (“HTM”)
and loans and receivables (“LNR”) categories as of the end
of the year and up to the date of the approval of the financial
statements of the Group. Assessment for any impairment, on
individual and collective basis, is made with reference to the
financial strength and credit rating of each issuer, industry
development and market conditions, and historical loss
experience of a portfolio of similar credits provided by rating
agencies. The Group has concluded that there are no objective
or specific indications that any of its AFS, HTM and LNR
securities is individually impaired as at 31 December 2014.

Given the continuing uncertain conditions in global credit
markets, the Group has conducted an assessment of its debt
securities on a collective basis. Based on its judgement, the
Group identified certain information indicating a possible
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a certain
group of debt securities, even though the decrease cannot
yet be identified with an individual debt security. The
judgement formed by the Group takes into account the
nature of the securities held and its evaluation of the impact
of market volatility, changes in credit conditions and market
developments on the recoverable amounts. Based on its
evaluation, a collective impairment allowance had been
recognised for a group of debt securities since 2011. As at
31 December 2014, the amount of such collective impairment
allowance was HK$15 million (2013: HK$75 million).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(c)  Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep
these investments to maturity other than for the specific
circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount
close to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire
class as available-for-sale. The investments would therefore be
measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

(d)  Assessment of claims and contingencies

Judgement is needed to determine if provision for compensation
to certain customers who had bought structured investments
distributed (but not originated or arranged) by the Group need
to be recorded in accordance with the requirements of HKAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates the information
relating to each or similar cases, and the likelihood and
estimated amount of outflow of resources which may be incurred
to settle the obligation after considering factors such as recent
settlement experiences and advice from legal counsel.
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4.

4.2

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, AND
JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies (Continued)

(e) Impairment assessment of the investment in an associate,
Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

The Group carries out periodic impairment assessments on its
investment in BOCQ in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.

This assessment compares the carrying value of the investment
against the higher of management’s estimate of value in use
(“VIU”) and fair value less costs of disposal. Management’s
estimate of the VIU is based on a discounted cash flow
projection which contains certain assumptions derived from
management and observable market information. This estimate
is subject to application of management judgment and is
sensitive to assumptions on the discount rate and the cash
flows arising from the holding of this investment and from its
ultimate disposal.

As at 31 December 2014, management’s estimate of the VIU is
higher than the carrying value of its investment in BOCQ.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment reporting by the Group is prepared in accordance with
HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. Information reported to the chief
operating decision maker, including the Chief Executive and other EC
members, for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, is determined on the basis of personal banking,
commercial banking, treasury and overseas banking business.
Operating performances are analysed by business activities for local
banking business, and on business entity basis for overseas banking
business.

Considering the customer groups, products and services of local
businesses, the economic environment and regulations, the Group
splits the operating segments of the Group into the following
reportable segments:

° Personal banking business includes the acceptance of deposits
from individual customers and the extension of residential
mortgage lending, personal loans, overdraft and credit card
services, the provision of insurance sales and investment

services.

° Commercial banking business includes the acceptance of
deposits from and the advance of loans and working capital
finance to commercial, industrial and institutional customers,
and the provision of trade financing.

° Treasury activities are mainly the provision of foreign exchange
services and centralised cash management for deposit taking
and lending, interest rate risk management, management of
investment in securities and the overall funding of the Group.

° Overseas banking businesses include personal banking,
commercial banking business activities provided by overseas
subsidiaries in Macau and China, and the Group’s interest in a
commercial bank in China.

° Others include results of operations not directly identified under
other reportable segments, corporate investments and debt
funding (including subordinated notes).
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the purpose of segment reporting, revenue derived from
customers, products and services directly identifiable with individual
segments are reported directly under respective segments, while
revenue and funding cost arising from inter-segment funding
operation and funding resources are allocated to segments by way
of transfer pricing mechanism with reference to market interest rates.
Transactions within segments are priced based on similar terms
offered to or transacted with external parties. Inter-segment income
or expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

All direct costs incurred by different segments are grouped under
respective segments. Indirect costs and support functions’ costs are
allocated to various segments and products based on effort and time
spent as well as segments’ operating income depending on the nature
of costs incurred. Costs related to corporate activities that cannot be
reasonably allocated to segments, products and support functions
are grouped under Others as unallocated corporate expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ZEESERE @) 5.

HZE2014F12H31 HLLEE

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014

BARS BT BMRT EER
Personal ~ Commercial BEEE  Overseas At Inter- @it
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
EFHSMA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,312,668 978,782 399,286 537,362 (235,601) - 2,092,497
FEHSRA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 559,054 269,405 305,088 121,551 (147,888) (1483) 1,105,727
EEIA Total operating income 1,871,722 1,248,187 704,374 658,913 (383,489) (1,483) 4,098,224
BEY QOperating expenses (1,154,698) (347,412) (143,964) (486,161) (19,614) 1,483 (2,150,366)
T AESE Rt E SR E Operating profit/loss) before impairment
BB/ (B8) losses and other credit provisions 717,024 900,775 560,410 172752 (403,103) - 1,947,858
ERnEERRAMEE Loan impairment losses and other credit
BE(RR) /BB provisions (charged)/written back (201,779) (63,228) 60,000 (267,960) - - (472,962)
hAESERAESRER Operating profit/(loss) after impairment
BB/ (B8) losses and other credit provisions 515,245 837,552 620,410 (95,208)  (403,103) - 14748%
HEREMEREM Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
ErEEREATEREY adjustment of investment properties
3 (88)/ & and other fixed assets (844) (60) 0 (46) 39,507 - 38,548
HEEHFRE NG Net gain on disposal of investments
in securities - - 17,036 - - - 17,036
ElERENm 54 Share of results of an associate - - o 602,209 5 o 602,299
ElLREESE 2 Share of results of ointly controlled entties - - - - 20,657 - 20,657
Ritnar/(58) Profit{loss) before taxation 514,401 837,492 637,437 507,045 (342,939) - 215343
BB %)/ ma Taxation (expenses)/credit (83,485) (138,186)  (105,177) 32,32 68,345 - (226,179)
BigER /(BB Profit/(loss) after taxation 430,916 699,306 532,260 539,369 (274,594) - 1,927,257
HZ0145128318 For the year ended
ILEE 31 December 2014
NERBEER Depreciation and amortisation 52,203 10,427 6,256 42,831 37,841 = 149,648
201451231 H At 31 December 2014
AREE Segment assets 41,988,779 54,596,171 55,550,630 33,581,542 4,302,765 (3,956,294) 186,063,593
ARERE Segment liabilities 78375819 36248907 15126832 25,631,700 14,573,699 (3,956,294) 166,000,663

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

137



B AR ML
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. ZEESERE @) 5.

HZE2013F12 A31 HIEFE

OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2013

138

BAS BESG] MR EIER
Personal  Commercial BIA%H  Overseas 2 Inter- &t
Banking Banking Treasury Banking Others segment Total
FHERA/ (i) Net interest income/(expenses) 1,233,273 914,331 372,738 524,456 (243,130) - 2,801,668
EHSRA/ (i) Non-interest income/(expenses) 444435 239,291 286,112 120,380 (92,953) ) 997,194
EENA Total operating income 1,677,708 1,153,622 658,350 644,836 (336,083) M) 3,798,862
BELH Operating expenses (1,094,529) (296,834) (138,141) (443,201) (35,642) o (2,008.276)
TRRESERE b EERER Operating proft/(oss) before impairment
LEERT/ (BE) losses and other credit provisions 583,179 856,788 520,709 201,635 (374,725 - 1790586
ERREERRAMES Loan impairment losses and other credit
Bl (RR)/ D8 provisions (charged)/writen back (140,949) (92,699) 25000 (101,159) - - (309,806)
ThAESERAESRER Operating profit/(oss) after impairment
LEERT/ (BE) losses and other credit provisions 442,230 764,089 545,700 100477 (374,725 - 1480780
HERENE R Nt (loss)/gain on disposal and fair value
ErEERELATERE adjustment of investment properties
L5 (BR) s and other fixed assets (2,167) - - 30 17,837 - 15,700
HESSREE (BE)/ ki Net (loss)/gain on disposal of investments
i securiies - - (479 - 275% - (t0034)
RELERERTREBE Loss on deemed disposal of investment
in an associate - - - (56,971) - - (56,971)
il N 4 Share of results of an associate - - - 578,556 - - 578,556
ElhLREEE 2 Share of results of jintly controlled entties - - - - 17,311 - 17,311
RiLER/(58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 440,063 764,089 417,833 622,092 (309,042) - 1,935,035
B () /E Taxation (expenses)/credit (73989  (126,075) (68,942) (27,460) 60,908 - (235,558)
BHgER /(B8 Profit/{loss) after taxation 366,074 638,014 348,891 594,632 (248,134) - 1699477
HZ2013512A31A For the year ended
IH5E 31 December 2013
TEREHER Depreciation and amortisation 44,066 6,467 5,047 38,062 25,064 - 118,906
R2013%E12 A318 At 31 December 2013
PREE Segment assets 39495699 49216979 47675728 32,018,112 3,082,778 (4,527,594) 166,961,702
AREE Segment liabilities 69,441,655 32237167 14,025,526 24,726,047 14,012,022 (4,527,594) 149,914,823
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

5. ZEESERE @)

TRBEINTIRE 2 WS TIREMNRES BN
B ZRITHBARIMRE s T EERERE - 8
EEXER CEME BEfE BFRE

o

&

TREHZREBECZEN  BRDREAEE
ASNEPE FPIREART - HEBER S RELBE
EA TE MRS 2 FTE M T HEERR.

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. OPERATING SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Revenues from external customers were contributed from banking
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau and People’s Republic of China,
with major products and services including deposit taking, extension
of credit, asset-based finance, securities investment services offered
to customers.

The following tables provide information by geographical area, which
was determined with reference to the domicile of the legal entities
within the Group with business dealing and relationship with, and

services to external customers.

B 5 B[
EEREAM Inter-
Hong Kong P segment st
and Others Macau elimination Total
BZE2014512H31H For the year ended
LEE 31 December 2014
2B A Operating income 3,727,153 371,071 = 4,098,224
RLAD R A Profit before taxation 1,969,042 184,394 - 2,153,436
R2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014
BEAG Total assets 169,963,337 17,355,567 (1,255,311) 186,063,593
BEAE Total liabilities 152,043,326 15,212,648 (1,255,311) 166,000,663
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 318,667 554,867 = 873,534
kA B R RAHE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 74,867,402 1,938,999 - 76,806,401
& 32453 T
1K 84
BB REA Inter-
Hong Kong JRFY segment et
and Others Macau elimination Total
BZE2013%12 A31H For the year ended
HFE 31 December 2013
2B A Operating income 3,464,174 334,688 = 3,798,862
R0 Al A Profit before taxation 1,779,917 155,118 - 1,935,035
2013412 A31 8 At 31 December 2013
BEA Total assets 153,449,806 15,868,862 (2,356,966) 166,961,702
BEA Total liabilities 138,387,245 13,884,544 (2,356,966) 149,914,823
BREERGE Intangible assets and goodwill 319,667 558,265 = 877,932
kA B R RAIE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 73,127,390 1,889,509 - 75,016,899
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

6. FFEWA

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2014 2013
FIE WA Interest income
RE RERITHE R Cash and balances with banks 351,080 337,526
BHIKE Investments in securities 688,879 668,661
ZHEEFNEMIER Advances and other accounts 3,892,762 3,357,693
4,932,721 4,363,880
FEXH Interest expense
ROIERBEER Deposits from banks/Deposits
from customers 1,672,730 1,297,471
BBITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 72,106 90,181
BEEITHERES Issued debt securities 3,494 35,793
&IBETS Subordinated notes 189,996 133,513
HA Others 1,898 5,254
1,040,224 1,562,212
FIEWABIE Included within interest income
ETRE 2 FEWA Interest income on listed investments 610,735 589,638
FELEMRE 2 FIBWA Interest income on unlisted investments 78,144 79,023
688,879 668,661
KARFEFE B EEH T ABE Interest income on financial
NERMEE 2 FBWA assets not at fair value
through profit or loss 4,902,764 4,342,986
REEEMS WA Interest income on impaired assets - 1,204
MNEXZEHEE Included within interest expense
KARFEFE B EEH T ABE Interest expenses on financial
MeRBEI S liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss 1,935,288 1,553,518
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
7. FRBEBERASWA 7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2014 2013
REEBERASKA Fee and commission income
RAAFEFEREES) Fee and commission income from
ATAERNEREERAEZ financial assets and liabilities not
R & R A S WA at fair value through profit or loss
—EEEEZRBERAS — Credit related fees and commissions 135,992 135,670
—E5mE — Trade finance 73,158 68,237
—fERAR — Credit card 311,848 302,699
HM B ERAS KA Other fee and commission income
— AL AS — Securities brokerage 87,853 64,841
— R HE R EAM — Insurance distribution and others 94,747 72,678
—TERBEL NV EEERG — Retail investment and wealth
management services 170,801 131,776
—RITRBERFEE - Bank services and handling fees 58,599 51,175
— EfhpRis & — Other fees 128,289 108,826
1,061,287 935,902
REERMASIH Fee and commission expense
KARFEFTEBHE Fee and commission expense from
AIAERNEREERAEY financial assets and liabilities not
k% ERAEZH at fair value through profit or loss
—FEEBENAE® - Handling fees and commission 215,957 218,330
— BN EMREER — Other fees paid 13,610 15,659
229,567 233,989
AEBRFE=FTRETE X7t CEBTERE The Group provides custody, trustee, corporate administration, and
BEEBRE - RFAXBEAFHH/AEZEEL T investment management services to third parties. Those assets that
BEENENHRENA - are held in a fiduciary capacity are not included in these financial
statements.

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 141



B 15 Sk Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
8. BFREEWA 8. NET TRADING INCOME
2014 2013
HNE B B F U Net gain arising from dealing in
foreign currencies 193,762 211,664
FHEEERENES 2 FEE Net loss on trading securities (11,123) (772)
FHEEBREMITET A 2 F e Net gain from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose 51,351 56,317
AAFELE R ERER A 2 FEE Net loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge (25,173) (39,677)
EENAAFEE B EZBE ABEN Net gain arising from financial
ERMIAE 23R instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss 5,604 14,640
214,421 242,172
9. HtEERA 9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2014 2013
A HEFHEE 2R EMA Dividend income from investments in
available-for-sale securities
— FTHRE — Listed investments 9,272 6,516
—JELETRE — Unlisted investments 7,336 5,797
WEYEZASWARE Gross rental income from
investment properties 22,853 18,124
HEEeS WA Other rental income 11,012 8,658
Hfth Others 9,113 14,014
59,586 53,109
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(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

10. &EXH 10. OPERATING EXPENSES
2014 2013
1E B 3B M AR A S i Employee compensation and
(BEEEHM) (KE11) benefit expenses (including
directors’ remuneration) (Note 11) 1,314,247 1,212,100
TERAEMEFEEESH - Premises and other fixed assets
TRENE expenses, excluding depreciation
—{TEZHE - Rental of premises 177,569 188,760
—Hfty - Others 126,223 117,879
& (Mi7E33) Depreciation (Note 33) 145,250 111,828
EEREHEES S N Advertising and promotion costs 90,932 86,101
ENf ~ X B REE Printing, stationery and postage 48,911 48,291
EREESEER (MFE31) Amortisation expenses of intangible
assets (Note 31) 4,398 7,078
Z SR B Auditors’ remuneration 7,322 7,016
Hith Others 235,514 229,223
2,150,366 2,008,276

1. EEFMERENXZH

11. EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFIT

EXPENSES

2014 2013
HMEEMAEER Salaries and other staff costs 1,235,432 1,118,763

DARR A7 7 EE 1 S il 2 88 (s 12 8% Provision for share-based

(M97E49) compensation charged
(Note 49) 5,622 26,452

BRETH Pension costs

— REHEETE — defined contribution plans 73,193 66,885
1,314,247 1,212,100
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

12. EXREBREREMEERE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

12. LOAN IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER CREDIT

PROVISIONS
2014 2013
BRURERE Loan impairment losses
FIEE R K EARR B R EEE Net charge/(reversal) of impairment
R (E5) losses on advances and other accounts
—-E5EF — Trade bills 2,070 937
—REEX - Advances to customers 510,339 334,188
—FEET A B R E A AR B - Accrued interest and other accounts 20,553 (319)
532,962 334,806
FEIEER R EAR B REEE Net charge of impairment losses on
R advances and other accounts
—{ERIFTE — Individually assessed 249,015 161,796
— iR EHE - Collectively assessed 283,947 173,010
532,962 334,806
EF e Of which
— I RN - new and additional allowances
(BENFANERE (including amounts directly
WisH .2 & 58) written off in the year) 596,620 413,155
— % - releases (22,866) (30,259)
=gl — recoveries (40,792) (48,090)
532,962 334,806
H {5 ER Other credit provisions
A E RS 2 REBEFRER Net charge of impairment losses
on available-for-sale securities
—RERHE - Collectively assessed 15,000 -
BIREER R FIEER 2 Net reversal of impairment losses
BHRE 2 REEEFER on investments in securities included
in the loans and receivables category
— kR A - Collectively assessed (75,000) (25,000)
WS BRI S Net charge to income statement 472,962 309,806
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

13. HEHMEEEEZRER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

13. NET LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF OTHER FIXED ASSETS

2014 2013

HE B EEEEFER

14, REMEQIFERAR 2 FNE

Net loss on disposal of
other fixed assets 2,579 2,715

14. NET GAIN ON FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENT OF
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2014 2013

REMERNHERR 2 F W

15. HERHREZFRE (FIR)

Net gain on fair value adjustment of
investment properties 41,127 18,415

15. NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENTS
IN SECURITIES

2014 2013

HE & E R

& BREE R LB IRER]
BHRREFER

HERERHESFEE (L)

e

2013 2 HETHEE B AR MIMERRRMIRE

Net gain on disposal of available-for-

sale securities 21,692 107,287
Net loss on disposal of investments in

securities included in the loans and

receivables category (4,656) (172,413)
Net loss on disposal of held-to-maturity
securities (Note) - (35,215)

17,036 (100,341)

Note:

The disposals in 2013 were made after considering risk and external factors.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

16. FiE

B S NS B TR B A1 51 FE 2R B v A1) LA B =
16.5% (2013 F : 16.5% ) IR < BINGIFKTY
1R NG IIMb R FE R T I AR AN 55 B 48 &5 S 75 1
@ 2IBITRRATE -

BEEHBRRAABEEIAERHEZR - RERZE
RIARER BN EER THREERZH
RIERBRER ©

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the liability is settled or the asset is realised.

2014 2013
REFRIE: Current income tax:
— BEBRSH - Hong Kong profits tax 247,400 193,995
—/BHMRIE - Overseas taxation 31,778 48,362
—RIBAEFETR (B58) 2 &k - Under/(over)-provision in prior years 5,418 (374)
IEFERTTE (MsE41): Deferred income tax (Note 41):
— BARET R B A A B - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (61,405) (6,966)
—[FAMREEER - Utilisation of tax losses 2,988 541
I8 Taxation 226,179 235,558
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

16. ﬁlﬁ (&) 16. TAXATION (continued)

REBBRIBBDEN 2 HIBEA BINGES & A 7 nkE The tax on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
EETR R E IR EERL T ¢ theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2014 2013
FREERT R A Profit before taxation 2,153,436 1,935,035
LEERENSHE16.5% Tax calculated at Hong Kong
I profits tax rate of 16.5% 355,317 319,281
MIE AR Tax effects of:
H B 2 AR X Different taxation rates in other countries (36,731) (7,460)
EERBT WA Income not subject to taxation (12,142) (11,232)
TREFRA S th Expenses not deductible 18,299 33,661
AT B 2R 2B E AR R Results of associates and jointly
HEEHIE RS 2 X E controlled entities reported net of tax (102,787) (98,318)
BERBEARBERZHEER Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses (1,195) -
RBAEFETR,/(BEE) 2 #iE Under/(over)-provision in prior years 5,418 (374)
THIE Taxation 226,179 235,558
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

17. EE#£ 17. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
2014 2013
EZHe Directors’ fee 345 202
e FE - BEYHmREMER Salaries, housing, benefits in kind
and other allowances 94,355 89,940
BRE Pensions 2,636 2,817
97,336 92,959

18. RERE/EEF

18. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

PIRARITEH B RMER A 2 RE B RN B The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the financial
1,408,192,000% 7L (2013 4F : J@m Al 1,094,244,000 statements of the Bank to the extent of HK$1,408,192,000 (2013:
HIT) o profit of HK$1,094,244,000).

19. RE 19. DIVIDENDS

$R1T Bank 2014 2013

BEIREREBERFERE - &
(20134 : 2.20/87T)

PR ARRERE - &
(20134 : 5.007% L)

KERITAR AT | 2014545
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(2013: HK$2.20) per ordinary share - 110,000
Proposed final dividend of Nil

(2013: HK$5.00) per ordinary share - 250,000
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20. RERERITHEER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

20. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS

£ BT

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
B RERTHES Cash and balances with banks 2,728,441 3,304,369 1,922,650 2,199,992
BRI R Money at call and short notice 12,109,670 4,965,643 11,855,787 4,077,910
14,838,111 8,270,012 13,778,437 6,277,902

21. ERTHER

21. PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS

£8 AT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
ERT1E12fAR Placements with banks maturing
F|ERRTER between one and twelve months 5,324,811 4,101,293 4,652,611 3,950,904
FERIT12 @ A LASH Placements with banks maturing
B EmrE R beyond twelve months - - - 116,308
5,324,811 4,101,293 4,652,611 4,067,212
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22. HIFEEAENESREEURQF
EfEEESETARENTHE
E

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
22.

TRADING SECURITIES AND FINANCIAL ASSETS
DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

£ AT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
HEEERENES Trading securities:
BRES Debt securities:
&L - Listed in Hong Kong 243,044 1,211,300 243,044 1,211,300
—JEm - Unlisted 6,606,418 5,124,488 6,606,418 5,124,488
RIEEERBRMNESFERE Total trading securities 6,850,362 6,335,788 6,850,362 6,335,788
EENAFEFEREE Financial assets designated at fair
FABRNEREE - value through profit or loss:
BIEES Debt securities:
— BB ET - Listed outside Hong Kong 9,821 4,248 =
HEEBERANESRETE Total trading securities and financial
NATEHEBEZSFA assets designated at fair value
BN REERE through profit or loss 6,860,183 6,340,036 6,850,362 6,335,788
BREEBERANE Included within debt securities are:
- BREEREEERR - Government bonds included in
BH B ES trading securities 6,850,117 6,335,548 6,850,117 6,335,548
—HMEBGES - Other debt securities 10,066 4,488 245 240
6,860,183 6,340,036 6,850,362 6,335,788
R2014F % 2013F 12 A31H ' LiliiFHEEEH As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no certificates of
BEAR BT B 2 BISE AR A 1R deposit held included in the above balances of trading or fair value
BEEHE - debt securities.
HEEERRNESRIEEARA T B2 EE
B ABENSREERSITRBEEN DT
T~

Trading securities and financial assets designated at fair value

through profit or loss are analysed by categories of issuers as follows:

£ 81T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
— R R RERT — Central governments and central banks 6,850,117 6,335,548 6,850,117 6,335,548
—NEHE - Public sector entities 245 240 245 240
—% - Corporate entities 9,821 4,248 -
6,860,183 6,340,036
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23. fTE€mITE
R2014F 12 A31 BRIBEITETEA N ZEE
AN REAFEMT :

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivative contracts
and their fair values as of 31 December 2014 were as follows:

B4/
£ESHE AVE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE af
- Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
B SMELTET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RERBEEY Forward and futures contracts 58,078,027 104,394 (120,380)
B8 A\ Ko SN e Currency options purchased and written 76,459,074 375,891 (375,654)
L) FIET4TA b) Interest rate derivatives
Fl=EE Interest rate futures 31,020 118 =
gl peagect i Interest rate swaps 12,489,451 50,168 (155,762)
R HTET A c) Equity derivatives
ARG R i Equity options purchased and written 332,987 9,870 (9,446)
FEEERGZITETA Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/ (B A held for trading 147,390,559 540,441 (661,242)
2) FHEEHRRGZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
R) BEURFEH 2 5TETLR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
GilEs bl Interest rate swaps 19,416,887 216,388 (385,094)
gl Currency swaps 1,319,385 = (100,489)
FEE AR ZITELR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(&f8) A% held for hedging 20,736,272 216,388 (485,583)
ERRZITERRTIE Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(BF) At assets/(liabilities) 168,126,831 756,829 (1,146,825)
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(AEEETTTALFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
23. {TE€RT A @) 23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
R2013F 12 A31 BRBHITET RGN ZHE The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivative contracts
ReREAFET : and their fair values as of 31 December 2013 were as follows:
&8/
2 AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BfE
L] Group amount Assets Liabilities
1) HEEBERBZITETR 1) Derivatives held for trading
B SMELT4T R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRBEEN Forward and futures contracts 49,420,058 80,348 (136,686)
B AR I NE B Currency options purchased and written 74,747,110 205,612 (203,254)
L) FIET4TA b) Interest rate derivatives
MEHE Interest rate futures 821,908 600 19)
gl peegect i Interest rate swaps 10,700,774 10,486 (116,874)
R) Em TET A c) Equity derivatives
BB ARG B Equity options purchased and written 228,285 2,528 (2,528)
FEEBERRZITETIR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(8f8) A held for trading 135,918,135 299,574 (459,361)
2) BEHFARZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
R) BEURFEH 2 TETLR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
psety Interest rate swaps 19,947,380 387,495 (623,816)
gl Currency swaps 1,379,471 - (34,079)
FEERARZITETLR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(&f8) A% held for hedging 21,326,851 387,495 (657,895)
ERRZITERRTIE Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(BF) A assets/(liabilities) 157,244,986 687,069 (1,117,256)
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

23. {TELBI B wm)

R2014F 12 A31 BARBRITAREBHTETAEESY

ZERBRGREDFENT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts

of the Bank and their fair values as of 31 December 2014 were as

follows:

&8/
et ra AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE af
1T Bank amount Assets Liabilities
1) BEEERBZITETIA 1) Derivatives held for trading
R SpESTETA a) Foreign exchange derivatives
RERHEEY Forward and futures contracts 58,215,163 102,781 (120,290)
B8 A R N HA Currency options purchased and written 76,459,074 375,787 (375,665)
) FIETET A b) Interest rate derivatives
FIRHE Interest rate futures 31,020 118 =
F %I Interest rate swaps 12,507,912 71,532 (150,402)
N) EmtiTE LR o) Equity derivatives
AR H A Equity options purchased and written 332,987 9,870 (9,446)
FEEERBZITETLR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
&/ (afE) A held for trading 147,546,156 560,088 (655,803)
2) FfEEHRGZITETA 2) Derivatives held for hedging
R) BEURAFEH P2 TETLR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
sty Interest rate swaps 19,416,887 216,388 (385,094)
et Currency swaps 1,319,385 - (100,489)
FEERARZTETR Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(AfF) &5 held for hedging 20,736,272 216,388 (485,583)
ERRZITESRTIA Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(BE) A assets/(liabilities) 168,282,428 776,476 (1,141,386)
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

23. fTEEMIA @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

MR2013F 12 A 31 HASRITAREIEITATAEES L The notional principal amounts of outstanding derivatives contracts
ZERERNEREQAFERT of the Bank and their fair values as of 31 December 2013 were as
follows:
&4/
2ESH AYE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE BE
RAT Bank amount Assets Liabilities
1) HIEEERGZITETIA 1) Derivatives held for trading
B SMELTET R a) Foreign exchange derivatives
BHRBEEN Forward and futures contracts 49,141,391 79,595 (136,315)
B AR I NE i Currency options purchased and written 74,747,110 205,622 (203,267)
L) FIET4TA b) Interest rate derivatives
MEHE Interest rate futures 821,908 600 19)
&= Hy Interest rate swaps 10,832,589 34,965 (124,097)
N) EmtiTETA ¢) Equity derivatives
BB ARG I E Equity options purchased and written 228,285 2,528 (2,528)
ﬁfﬁgé‘?ﬁkﬂﬁilﬂ Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BfE)A held for trading 135,771,283 323,310 (466,226)
2) BfEHHRARZITETR 2) Derivatives held for hedging
R) BEURFEH 2 TETLR a) Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
ipsety Interest rate swaps 19,829,254 387,495 (608,912)
gl Currency swaps 1,379,471 - (34,079)
Tﬂ’ﬁ%@ﬂﬁﬂﬁilﬁ Total derivative assets/(liabilities)
BE/(BE)A held for hedging 21,208,725 387,495 (642,991)
Eﬁ@?ﬂiﬁiﬁ%ﬁllﬁ Total recognised derivative financial
BE/(BF) A assets/(liabilities) 156,980,008 710,805 (1,109,217)
WEMETEZ AFERCEEEEFBEER The effect of bilateral netting agreements, where applicable, has been
E(nER) 2 taken into account in disclosing the fair value of derivatives.
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23. TEER T A=

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Group
EERS ARG -
Trading Hedging Total
22EH Notional amount 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
EXA4 Exchange rate contracts
BRERBEAY Forward and futures contracts 58,078,027 49,420,058 - - 58,078,027 49,420,058
EHisi Currency swaps - - 1,319385 1379471 1,319,385 1,379,471
MNEHES D Foreign exchange option contracts
—~BASNERE - Currency options purchased 38,243,970 37,373,555 - - 38243970 37,373,555
— b JNE - Currency options written 38,215,104 37,373,555 - - 38215104 37,373,555
134,537,101 124,167,168 1,319,385 1,379,471 135,856,486 125,546,639
FlEAH) Interest rate contracts
EARBERY Forward and futures contracts 31,020 821,908 = - 31,020 821,908
ikt Interest rate swaps 12,489,451 10,700,774 19,416,887 19,947,380 31,906,338 30,648,154
12520471 11522682 19416887 19047380 31,937,358 31,470,062
HiaH Other contracts
EntEReY Equity option contracts
~BAHE - Options purchased 167,562 114,143 - - 167,562 114,143
— )b i HhfE - Options written 165,425 114,142 - - 165,425 114,142
332,987 228,285 - - 332,987 228,285
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(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
23. fTEE€RMTE @) 23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
#17
Bank
EERS ARG -
Trading Hedging Total
22EH Notional amount 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
ERAH Exchange rate contracts
ERREESN Forward and futures contracts 58,215,163 49,141,391 - - 58215163 49,141,391
EHisi Currency swaps - - 1319385 1379471 1,319,385 1379471
MNEHES D Foreign exchange option contracts
—~BASNERE - Currency options purchased 38,243,970 37,373,555 - - 38243970 37,373,555
— b JNE - Currency options written 38,215,104 37,373,555 - - 38215104 37,373,555

134,674,237 123,888,501 1,319,385 1,379,471 135,993,622 125,267,972

M=EH Interest rate contracts
EARBERY Forward and futures contracts 31,020 821,908 = - 31,020 821,908
ikt Interest rate swaps 12,507,912 10,832,589 19,416,887 19,829,254 31,924,799 30,661,843
12,538,932 11,654,497 19,416,887 19,829,254 31,955,819 31,483,751
Efned Other contracts
EntEReY Equity option contracts
~BAHE - Options purchased 167,562 114,143 - - 167,562 114,143
—atHE - Options written 165,425 114,142 - - 165,425 114,142
332,987 228,285 - - 332,987 228,285
BEERSBIEANTEFEERSIE PILER The trading transactions include positions arising from the execution
ERZ MR R T EAR o of trade orders from customers or transactions taken to hedge these

positions.
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(ABEET TThLFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
23. TSR T AH @) 23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FHiREFAREFFT T 2 B RBEAE LY The credit risk weighted amounts of the above off-balance sheet
2712 A31 B EEGEXRINE B = E R InkE exposures as at 31 December without taking into account the effect
5 2500 of bilateral netting arrangements that the Group entered into, are as
follows:
£E 1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
EXE4 Exchange rate contracts
BHREERN Forward and futures contracts 322,012 309,229 320,915 304,463
Bk Currency swaps 13,194 13,795 13,194 13,795
YN\ Currency options purchased 1,322,809 847,750 1,324,238 851,058
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
&= 5 Interest rate swaps 156,200 209,991 159,994 219,546
HfAH Other contracts 17,957 7,809 17,987 7,809
1,832,172 1,388,574 1,836,328 1,396,671
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

23. fTELmI B wm)

WETEZENBEERERNBEHRNRS
- WTMRKREERHE -

EERBRNERBL2EBFTESEREH (R
TR(BER)RADMFAE 2B HEMT 28
BRI R ZHF RERA Q2 HFIEME °

Em AR G R R IE T AR E 2.9 HEE -

NEE BB AR R B 2 2 A (B 0 SRS
BREEERREBGIEER 2 EFHFIEE - AlH
EEBELFREEITABEZBHBEFERAR o
T B 7 F5187451,687,000%8 7 (2013 4F : Ik
% /5466,453,000757T) o HHIE B RS R E
% 7 W5 526,514,000 7T (2013 4 : BB A
506,130,000/7T) ° IFZEE 25IRKIFE8 2
[BAFEH "EE R TR 2 F e HiE ]
ﬂq °
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The contract amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. They
do not represent the amounts at risk.

The credit risk weighted amounts are the amounts that have been
calculated with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
HKMA. The amounts calculated are dependent upon the status of the
counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The hedging practices and accounting treatment are disclosed in Note 2.9.

The Group hedges a portion of its existing interest rate risk in
investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
category, available-for-sale debt securities and issued liabilities
by fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swap. The losses
on the hedging instruments were HK$51,687,000 (2013: gains of
HK$466,453,000). The gains on the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk were HK$ 26,514,000 (2013: losses of HK$506,130,000).
The net impact is disclosed in “Net gain/loss arising from financial
instruments subject to fair value hedge” in Note 8.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

24. BHERKEMIKRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

%8 BT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BAE R KRB Loans and advances to individuals
—fEA+F - Credit cards 4,057,656 4,162,473 3,844,933 3,956,449
—IBIBE R - Mortgages 29,109,305 27,122,139 23,354,702 22,137,902
—HAh - Others 8,660,111 6,674,529 7,243,876 5,708,366
TEERR IR Loans and advances to
corporate entities
—HHER - Term loans 29,903,231 27,590,155 24,532,541 22,039,535
—IBIBE R - Mortgages 14,082,486 13,148,257 11,356,879 10,584,833
—B5mE - Trade finance 7,135,572 6,911,081 6,517,342 5,918,454
—HAth - Others 12,289,676 12,377,528 11,357,072 11,028,919
XEERBER Gross advances to customers 105,238,037 97,986,162 88,207,345 81,374,458
B5EE Trade bills 7,384,057 5,925,648 7,409,361 6,271,548
HAh& 2= (FI5E35) Other assets (Note 35) 3,771,683 3,673,803 1,563,158 1,680,146
116,393,777 107,585,613 97,179,864 89,326,152
Bk : REZEE Less: impairment allowances
— {@& Bl - Individually assessed (238,250) (244,294) (121,215) (110,549)
— kR ERHE - Collectively assessed (296,666) (201,212) (148,026) (103,102)
(534,916) (445,506) (269,241) (213,651)
BIEEER N ERFIE Investments in securities included
Rz BHEE in the loans and receivables
(FffizE25) category (Note 25) - 1,062,631 = 833,239
ZHEERNEMERE Advances and other accounts 115,858,861 108,202,738 96,910,623 89,945,740
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

24, BREERREMERE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

() EFERRBARREZZEBZEEEER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

B HRK

and advances to customers, and trade bills

2 — (BRI REE

Impairment allowances - Individual assessment

REBER Hitr A%t
%8 Group Mortgages Others Total
BAERKBHREEE 22T Movement in impairment allowances on loans

and advances to individuals

201341 A1 BM&H Balance at 1 January 2013 257 1,155 1,412
RERE (B18) Rk Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (819) 563 (256)
R ERERMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible - (753) (753)
Y EIE M FiiE 2 B Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 780 709 1,489
2013412 531 H At 31 December 2013 218 1,674 1,892
201441 A1 BEI&H Balance at 1 January 2014 218 1,674 1,892
WEEE (B15) /2R Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (768) 1,844 1,076
R EERERMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible - (703) (703)
WEIBREFME 2 EX Recoveries of advances written off in previous years 768 693 1,461
2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014 218 3,508 3,726
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24, BREERREMERE @)

() EFERRBAREZZEBEZEEEER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

B ¥ BR% (#) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
REERE - RETME
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
=R+ REBER Hitr &t
%8 Group Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAAERRBHAE Movement in impairment
EEz 25 allowances on loans and

advances to individuals
2013%1 A1 B &R Balance at 1 January 2013 27,029 4,725 40,863 72,617
BB Impairment losses charged 50,812 1,944 91,923 144,679
REEBEETMIEE Loans written off as uncollectible (64,926) = (106,391) (171,317)
WEBRAEFMEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 13,123 - 16,804 29,927
BE 2 LA Exchange and other adjustments - 7 5 12
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 26,038 6,676 43,204 75,918
20141 A1 BR&H Balance at 1 January 2014 26,038 6,676 43,204 75,918
BRI A Impairment losses charged 58,727 3,718 139,283 196,728
REBEEFTMETE Loans written off as uncollectible (66,561) - (144,873) (211,434)
WEIBREFME 2 &R Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 13,486 - 15,889 29,375
B 5, o H At A% Exchange and other adjustments - (29) ®3) (32)
201412831 H At 31 December 2014 26,690 10,365 53,500 90,555
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(LABEEF Tz o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24, BEERREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESEZEBVHREMER (a)

24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

162

B ¥ iRk (@) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
BB 2 — 18 B T4
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
BHEXR E5mE
Term REEX Trade Hity a3
58 Group loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
PEERRBH Movement in impairment
HEEE2 2 allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
2013F1 A1 BA&E Balance at 1 January 2013 8,200 1,289 15,804 64,021 89,314
EEERE/ (=) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 83,064 (321) 103,629 (24,320) 162,052
RLERETHHS Loans written off as uncollectible - - (7,175) (18,783) (25,958)
WEEREFHEER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 2,725 322 1,503 12,116 16,666
AR Exchange adjustments - - - 328 328
20135128318 At 31 December 2013 93,989 1,290 113,761 33,362 242,402
201451 A1 AR Balance at 1 January 2014 93,989 1,290 113,761 33,362 242,402
REGRRE /() Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 68,052 (1,010) 142,687 17,704 227,433
ReBEETHHE Loans written off as uncollectible (122,907) - (114,316) (25,606)  (262,829)
KEEREFHEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 277 25 1,635 8,014 9,951
5 R AR Exchange and other adjustments (2,001) - (938) - (2,939)
2014128311 At 31 December 2014 37,410 305 142,829 33,474 214,018
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24, BEERREMERE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

(R) BEFERRBRNEZEEZBERERKR (a)

24,

ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

B ¥ iRk (@) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
WEEE - FETE
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
BHEXR E5mE
Term BBER Trade Hith &
| Group loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
PEERRBH Movement in impairment
HEEE2 2 allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
201341 A 1AM &S Balance at 1 January 2013 27,716 6,109 21,420 42,078 97,323
R EEERR Impairment losses charged 3,121 2,238 6,873 16,418 28,650
ReERETMEE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (2,086) (2,086)
W BB R EMH 2 S Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 8 8
BE 5 R B At Exchange and other adjustments 604 - 23 453 1,080
201312 A31H At 31 December 2013 31,441 8,347 28,316 56,871 124,975
20141 B 1 BM&E SR Balance at 1 January 2014 31,441 8,347 28,316 56,871 124,975
REEERE Impairment losses charged 27,125 5,859 40,769 13,419 87,172
ReEEEEFMER Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (5,308) (5,308)
WEBERAEEMEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 5 5
R R AR Exchange and other adjustments (492) - (96) (511) (1,099)
2014%12831H At 31 December 2014 58,074 14,206 68,989 64,476 205,745
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24, REERRHEAMERR @ 24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (continued)
() EFERRBARREZZBZEEEER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
B ¥ iRk (@) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)

WAE 2 — {8 Bl Tk
Impairment allowances
- Individual assessment

REBEX Hity &%
$R1T Bank Mortgages Others Total
BABERREBIRE Movement in impairment allowances on

EEZEE loans and advances to individuals

201341 A1 BM#R Balance at 1 January 2013 - - -
(B &S 18 [B] Impairment losses reversed (768) - (768)
Bl B P SE i EE 2 B K Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 768 - 768
201312 A31H At 31 December 2013 - - -
20141 A1 BRV#EER Balance at 1 January 2014 - - -
BB 15 o] Impairment losses reversed (732) - (732)
YEl B R HSE 2 B3 Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 732 - 732

2014%12H31H
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24, BEERKREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBECEHREMER (a)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

B ¥Rk (#) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
HEEE - REFME
Impairment allowances - Collective assessment
iR REER Hte &t
R1T Bank Credit cards Mortgages Others Total
BAERRBRRELEE Movement in impairment
228 allowances on loans and

advances to individuals
20131 A1 BM&EH Balance at 1 January 2013 21,163 - 34,858 56,021
BB Impairment losses charged 50,433 = 63,440 113,873
ReEEEEFTMEHE Loans written off as uncollectible (63,415) - (78,387) (141,802)
W BB R EFEMsE 2 B3R Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 11,747 - 16,268 28,015
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 19,928 - 36,179 56,107
201441 A1 HE &S Balance at 1 January 2014 19,928 - 36,179 56,107
B BB Impairment losses charged 52,858 - 118,725 171,583
REEEETMEETE Loans written off as uncollectible (65,549) - (125,359) (190,908)
W B B NMEFERSE 2 BER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 12,272 - 14,811 27,083
201412831 H At 31 December 2014 19,509 - 44,356 63,865
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24, BREERREMERE @)
(F) EFERRBRRESZEBVHREMER (a)

24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans

166

B ¥ BR% (#) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)
BB 2 — 18 B T4
Impairment allowances - Individual assessment
BHEXR E5mE
Term REEX Trade Hity a3
#®17 Bank loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
CEERRBRRELEE Movement in impairment
228 allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
2013F 1 A1 A& Balance at 1 January 2013 8,200 986 4,607 28,751 42,544
REBE (E%) /175 Impairment losses (reversed)/charged (151) (322) 64,643 13,127 77,297
RELBEE M Loans written off as uncollectible - - (7,175) (18,783) (25,958)
WEEREFMEER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 2,725 322 1,503 12,116 16,666
2013F 12 A31H At 31 December 2013 10,774 986 63,578 35,211 110,549
2014F1 A1 BR &5 Balance at 1 January 2014 10,774 986 63,578 35,211 110,549
EBRRE/(EE) Impairment losses charged/(reversed) 1,415 (1,011) 14,483 17,704 32,591
RecERETMIHE Loans written off as uncollectible (1,352) - (4,918) (25,606) (31,876)
WEERAEFHEZER Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years 277 25 1,635 8,014 9,951
2014%12831H At 31 December 2014 11,114 - 74,778 35,323 121,215
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24, RHEHERRHEMER @ 24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

() EFERRBAREZZEBEZEEEER (a) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on loans
B HiR%E (&) and advances to customers, and trade bills (Continued)

HEER-FEME

Impairment allowances - Collective assessment

BHER EomE
Term BBER Trade Hith &
#®17 Bank loans  Mortgages finance Others Total
CEERRBRRELEE Movement in impairment
228 allowances on loans and

advances to corporate entities
201341 A1 Btk Balance at 1 January 2013 6,487 6,109 5,094 15,636 33,326
R EEERR Impairment losses charged 3,970 2,238 3,434 5,786 15,428
RELBEE M Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (2,086) (2,086)
W BB R EMSH 2 B3 Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 8 8
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 10,457 8,347 8,528 19,344 46,676
201441 A1 Bkt Balance at 1 January 2014 10,457 8,347 8,528 19,344 46,676
EE B Impairment losses charged 6,551 5,859 7,198 22,814 42,422
REERETMIHE Loans written off as uncollectible - - - (5,308) (5,308)
WEIBREE#ME 2 EF Recoveries of advances written

off in previous years - - - 5 5
2014F12 831 H At 31 December 2014 17,008 14,206 15,726 36,855 83,795
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

24, ZEEERREMIRE @

(2) FESFIBRHEMIRE 2ERERREHRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on
accrued interest and other accounts

RE%ERE -
REHE
Impairment
allowances - B 2R — (AR
Collective Impairment allowances -
assessment Individual assessment
FEHFI B R
HitfRE
Accrued
interest B EREMIEE
and other Accrued interest
accounts and other accounts
FE KRBT %8 RAT
Group and Bank Group Bank
EstREREMEREE Movement in impairment
WEEEZBE allowances on accrued interest
and other accounts
20131 A1 BH&#R Balance at 1 January 2013 638 - -
(B B8 B 3 Impairment losses reversed (319) - -
2013412 H31H At 31 December 2013 319 - -
201441 A1 BM#ER Balance at 1 January 2014 319 - -
BB R Impairment losses charged 47 20,506 -
2014412831 H At 31 December 2014 366 20,506 =
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24, BREERREMERE @)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

24. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Continued)

(R) BREEFERKBRZMEEERWIR (c)

Loans and advances to customers include finance

mE lease receivables as follows:
£8 $RAT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
HEEMERE 2 EUER Gross investment in finance
4oz lease receivables:
1FELARN Not later than 1 year 2,701,878 2,512,655 2,701,878 2,512,655
1FUERESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 4,066,931 3,799,857 4,066,931 3,799,857
S5 F Later than 5 years 2,406,979 3,320,741 2,406,979 3,320,741
9,175,788 9,633,253 9,175,788 9,633,253
MEME 2 KR Z Unearned future finance income
BE WA on finance leases (1,045,112) (1,271,252) (1,045,112) (1,271,252)
MEHERE T Net investment in finance leases 8,130,676 8,362,001 8,130,676 8,362,001
BMEMEREFHEL The net investment in finance
DT leases is analysed as follows:
1FELAA Not later than 1 year 2,415,545 2,218,486 2,415,545 2,218,486
1FUERESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 3,696,568 3,376,449 3,696,568 3,376,449
5 F Later than 5 years 2,018,563 2,767,066 2,018,563 2,767,066
8,130,676 8,362,001 8,130,676 8,362,001

R2014F12 8310 LR EREREEHE
MR E EERFIREE (20134 - &) °

There is no unguaranteed residual value included in the gross
investment in finance leases above as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
Nil).

M2014F12 A31 8  AEE RARITZBEFOR The allowance for uncollectable finance lease receivables included in
EXBRIFETAIE 2 55 E & EUERIE L %
&5 434,002,000 %7t (2013 4 : 33,731,000
BIT) °

the impairment allowances as at 31 December 2014 of the Group and
the Bank amounted to HK$34,002,000 (2013: HK$33,731,000).
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25, BREEERRERREERN ZES 25. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES INCLUDED IN THE

RE LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CATEGORY
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
R EEREF 5 Investments in securities
ZEHIGE reclassified from the
available-for-sale category
— RERARER T - At fair value under fair
ANES R value hedge (for hedging
interest rate risk) - 548,651 - 420,378
— RN T R - At amortised cost - 588,939 - 487,820
- 1,137,590 - 908,198
R« REZEE Less: impairment allowances
—fRERHE - Collectively assessed - (75,000) - (75,000
- 1,062,590 - 833,198
R ERR D EAER Investments in securities classified
RIEWFIE 2 BHIZRE (FE) as loans and receivables
upon initial recognition (Note) - 41 - 4
- 1,062,631 - 833,239
e Note:
120134 12 A 31 BINARA KRV ERR S HAE Investments in securities classified as loans and receivables upon initial
AR EWHRIA 2 B R EEERRE B - K20134F recognition and outstanding as at 31 December 2013 were overdue at the time
12A31H ' ZE5KRECAHBER1F - of recognition. As at 31 December 2013, these investments were overdue for

more than one year.

REFRAIEHEENSEH S EMMN2014F6 A58 For investments in securities reclassified from the available-for-sale category
MAFREZEHFRE  ARAREFSERAHLEES in the previous years and remaining outstanding as at 5 June 2014, they were
Bl o FIEELHME28 () » reclassified to the available-for-sale category on the same date. For details,

please refer to Note 28(a).
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. BREERRERREBEER &S 25. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES INCLUDED IN THE

BE @ LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CATEGORY (continued)
BREEEREEWRZIBERN 2 EHFRE DT Investments in securities included in the loans and receivables
T category are analysed as follows:

£H $R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BRES Debt securities:
—BBINET - Listed outside Hong Kong - 1,137,590 - 908,198
—JELET - Unlisted = 41 - 41
- 1,137,631 - 908,239
ek REZEE Less: Impairment allowances
— iR G Fh — Collectively assessed - (75,000) - (75,000)
- 1,062,631 - 833,239
FhES A Market value of listed securities - 1,020,565 - 804,857
R2013F12 A31 H @ LillBEHELHFRELEHNA As at 31 December 2013, there were no certificates of deposit held
WEBFERBTERE © included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.
BREEER M EWIELER Investments in securities
2B ERBEITIE included in the loans
HRISTT : and receivables category
are analysed by categories
of issuers as follows:
—RIT R E At & RIS - Banks and other financial
institutions - 668,806 - 482,640
—1b — Corporate entities - 468,825 - 425,599
- 1,137,631 - 908,239
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

25. BREERRERREER &S 25. INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES INCLUDED IN THE
REm@ LOANS AND RECEIVABLES CATEGORY (Continued)

(F) BREERREVRFTIEE 2EFKR (@) Reconciliation of allowance account for losses on
B EEEEREYER investments in securities included in the loans and
receivables category

WIEZEHE
Impairment allowances
18 5l 7% 14 AR

Individually ~ Collectively

EERRIT Group and Bank assessed assessed
2013F 1 A1 BH&&R: Balance at 1 January 2013 58,251 100,000
B (B 18 (2] Impairment losses released - (25,000)
(B SH Allowance written off (57,170) -
M 5, S B Exchange adjustments (1,081) -
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 - 75,000
20141 A1 BR&E% Balance at 1 January 2014 = 75,000
BB 18 B Impairment losses released = (75,000)
201412831 H At 31 December 2014 - -
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
26. AHHERES 26. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
55 R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BFES Debt securities:
— BB L™ - Listed in Hong Kong 11,888,205 12,073,723 11,888,205 12,073,723
— BB ET — Listed outside Hong Kong 9,151,353 13,067,076 8,934,552 13,067,076
—3JE LT — Unlisted 1,920,749 1,710,991 1,920,749 1,710,991

22,960,307 26,851,790 22,743,506 26,851,790

RERMEES Equity securities:
—&B/BLE™ — Listed in Hong Kong 171,946 70,288 170,604 69,562
—3E kT - Unlisted 219,494 197,740 161,268 142,756
391,440 268,028 331,872 212,318
A EE AR Total available-for-sale
securities 23,351,747 27,119,818 23,075,378 27,064,108
3 Note:
R2014F12 B31H » "EE R N2014F R E R K As at 31 December 2014, the Group had impairment of HK$15 million
ENFIBERNEH DB A HEEETESDHER recognised against those available-for-sale debt securities that were
15,000,000 7T 2 (B - BEEH DB ZFIEB2HM reclassified in 2014 from the loans and receivables category. Please refer to
FE28(F) Note 28(a) for details relating to the reclassification.
MR2014F 2013412 8318 » Ll BEBESFRELLH As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no certificates of deposit held
A E BT HFRE © included in the above balances of investments in debt securities.
A S B AR TS Available-for-sale securities
HRISMTT : are analysed by categories
of issuers as follows:
— R BT R AR R ERFT — Central governments and
central banks 2,535,358 3,181,651 2,535,358 3,181,651
— RN — Public sector entities 198,916 205,067 198,916 205,067
—RIT R E At & RatkiE - Banks and other financial
institutions 5,161,559 6,559,368 4,982,925 6,559,368
— 1% — Corporate entities 15,453,461 17,171,279 15,355,726 17,115,569
— Efth — Others 2,453 2,453 2,453 2,453

23,351,747 27,119,818 23,075,378 27,064,108
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27. BEIHES

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

27. HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BEES Debt securities:
—&BLEm — Listed in Hong Kong 2,255,635 731,541 2,111,695 580,268
— BB ET - Listed outside Hong Kong 5,234,147 2,799,824 4,865,139 2,365,155
—3 - Unlisted 3,343,158 2,137,924 101,983 72,072
10,832,940 5,669,289 7,078,817 3,017,495
EESRZTE Market value of listed securities 7,519,030 3,602,160 6,997,739 3,002,392
BREEEHES Included within debt securities are:
— B 7 5E — Certificates of deposit held 1,947,377 1,106,272 = =
—HtEBES - Other debt securities 8,885,563 4,563,017 7,078,817 3,017,495
10,832,940 5,669,289 7,078,817 3,017,495
BENHBEHIRET Held-to-maturity securities are
HEBRIAITAT analysed by issuers as follows:
— R EAT R R R ERAT — Central governments and
central banks 1,219,264 935,473 - 39,184
—RNEHE - Public sector entities - 193,788 - 193,788
—RIT R E At & RIS - Banks and other financial
institutions 4,927,850 3,154,149 2,653,848 1,496,991
— 1% - Corporate entities 4,685,826 1,385,879 4,424,969 1,287,532
10,832,940 5,669,289 7,078,817 3,017,495
2322014612 A 31 HRBEBREHAA G A The outstanding balance as at 31 December 2014 reported above
HNEBREFHH B BHF(2013F : £) - 5 included the securities reclassified from the available-for-sale
FE2HME28(2) ° category during the period (2013: Nil). Please refer to Note 28(b) for

details.
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28. TRBEZEHNIE

ARBERBE2014F12 A31 BIEFEREND
BTIISREE -

() Efo BEEEERRERREERR
ZREREZHHEER

R2014F6 A5H @ AEBE B EZR KL EWTIELE
RIEFT D BATE BIEEE 2 % B U T 48 Bl I 5
AERAAERHEERZEFHEE -

ZECMEEREN P BEAZAFEREEES
71 4828,504,0005% 7T 12 873,550,000 7T © EFT
DEARFE 4 2 A T{E &8 45,046,000 8 T2 71
Hih 2 ERE o

() EFPRBETAHEHERSR/EFES
&

M20145F6 26 - ASEEFHHHEE THEEN
7 AR T {E 5 4,378,815,000 8 7T 2 Al I &
BERBHFARZINHES  RBRASEFNEFH
ZEEFZBREDE o

AREBREZ2013F12 A1 BIEFERIES
FoBHEMeMmERE -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

28. RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group made the following reclassification of financial assets in the
year ended 31 December 2014.

(@) Reclassification of investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category to the available-for-
sale category

On 5 June 2014, the Group reclassified all investments in securities
included in the loans and receivable category that qualified for
recognition as available-for-sale out of the loans and receivables
category.

The fair value and carrying value of these financial assets at the
date of reclassification were HK$828,504,000 and HK$873,550,000
respectively. The fair value loss of HK$45,046,000 generated upon the
reclassification had been taken to other comprehensive income.

(b) Reclassification of certain available-for-sale securities
as held-to-maturity securities

On 26 June 2014, the Group reclassified certain available-for-sale
debt securities with a total market value at the time of reclassification
of HK$4,378,815,000 as held-to-maturity securities, reflecting
a change in the Group’s intention on holding these securities to
maturity.

The Group did not reclassify any financial assets in the year ended 31
December 2013.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

29. BERQRRE 29. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
55 R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
ETRE - A Listed investment, at cost - - 1,213,057 1,213,057
EIHEEFE Share of net assets 3,402,295 2,960,370 = =
BES Goodwill 344,623 344,623 = -
&a&t Total 3,746,918 3,304,993 1,213,057 1,213,057
1A1H At 1 January 3,304,993 2,437,031
BIMGE Additional investment = 330,000
FEIERTiE A Share of results, net of tax 602,299 578,556
BRI R IR E Eh Share of investment
revaluation reserve, net of tax 43,644 (20,399)
RFAHE 2 BB Loss on deemed disposal - (56,971)
B2 Dividend received (129,187) (35,624)
MR AR Exchange differences (74,831) 72,400
12 A31H At 31 December 3,746,918 3,304,993

M2014F % 2013F 12 H31 A2 & AR EE

The following is the key information relating to the associate as at 31

BERAT December 2014 and 2013:
SR & E b B FEXK s B Dt
=158 Place of incorporation Principal Percentage of interest
Name and operation activities in ownership
2014 2013
BEIRIT REE AR HAFE HRIT
Bank of Chongqging People’s Republic of China Banking 16.95% 16.95%
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29. BEQRRE@® 29. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)
() ERRTZREMBER (@)

EERTZEATEET2E A E12A318 - #E
20144 22013412 A 31 B I FEHR - A&EE
REZ 2014612 A31 H 201312 A31 HIE

Selected financial information of BOCQ

The statutory accounting reference date of BOCQ is 31 December.
For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group included
the results of BOCQ on the basis of financial statements made up to

12 A 2 HBHREREBTEEFRITIER °

the 12 months to 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

2014 & 20134
12831 H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
EERITZEEREERABEN Selected balance sheet
information of BOCQ
B e REFRRRITHEER Cash and balances with central banks 44,609,051 42,025,557
RN M IRTT R 2 R HE Due from other banks and financial institutions 67,989,236 41,155,814
EEEFRBT Loans and advances to customers 130,100,237 113,490,008
HihepEE Other financial assets 94,690,965 63,302,319
HinEzE Other assets 5,660,511 4,792,053
BEAR Total assets 343,050,000 264,765,751
EREMRIT R RKE Due to other banks and financial institutions 102,010,776 43,212,243
BPER Customer deposits 209,845,853 190,521,733
HinemBaE Other financial liabilities 4,729,774 6,117,356
B8 E Other liabilities 6,591,418 7,655,843
BEAE Total liabilities 323,177,821 247,507,175
e Total equity 19,872,179 17,258,576
BEERIT 2R ER AR Reconciliation of BOCQ’s total shareholders’
ARITEEMBREN equity to the carrying amount in the Bank’s
ZIEEEHERR consolidated financial statements
RRITEERRER AT The Bank’s share of total shareholders’ equity 3,368,619 2,925,576
m: WERmERATERE Add: Goodwill and fair value
adjustment at acquisition 378,299 379,417
REE Carrying amount 3,746,918 3,304,993
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29. BELQFRE @ 29. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

() EERTZERUKEEN @ (@) Selected financial information of BOCQ (Continued)

HiE12 A31 BEE L
For the year ended
31 December

178

2014 2013
BERITZERKEREER Selected income statement
information of BOCQ
FF B YA Net interest income 7,832,779 6,540,557
FRGE RS WA Net fee and commission income 1,142,352 814,101
BEXREEER Loan impairment charges (1,118,118) (676,608)
TEREHER Depreciation and amortisation (171,951) (146,976)
FIASZ Tax expense (1,210,584) (919,685)
F 2 A Profit for the year 3,553,508 2,941,846
Hh 2w (&i8) Other comprehensive income/(loss) 254,628 (120,406)
EHE =B Total comprehensive income 3,808,136 2,821,440
BREERITRE Dividends received from BOCQ 129,187 35,624
30. HEEZEHERRKRE 30. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
£H R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
FEETRRAD - IR Unlisted shares, at cost 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
FEIE U R Share of post-acquisition
reserves 45,694 39,657 - -
65,694 59,657 20,000 20,000
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
30. HEEZEHERKRE @ 30. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
(Continued)
R2014F K% 2013412 A 31 HHy A HIE e The following are the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December
N 2014 and 2013:
EHEEEZEDLL
o 3t 2 FTEEBRKSE I Percentage of
728 Place of Principal activities and effective interest
Name incorporation place of operation in ownership
IREGE AR AR A 7 B8 R BRI - BE
Bank Consortium Holding Limited Hong Kong Investment holding, Hong Kong 13.333%
IREHMEE AR AR B8 BET X BA
Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business,
Hong Kong 13.333%
RIS RARAA BB BETER  BE
BCT Financial Limited Hong Kong Mandatory provident fund business,
Hong Kong 13.333%
ERBIERER AR B ANRITEERE - The interest in Bank Consortium Holding Limited is directly held by the
M ST AR A A MR € g A R A 7l Jh iR B Bank. Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited and BCT Financial
EREBRAFIZEZENBAT - Limited are the wholly owned subsidiaries of Bank Consortium

Holding Limited.
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3. BWEREFEE 31. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Y EFBE
&H BYEE BV E&E
BREE Core  Customer
wE Contract deposit  relationship ki &t
£8 Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
2014E1F18R At 1 January 2014 and
20145128318 31 December 2014 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
2RERE/ A Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2014E1F1H At 1 January 2014 - 26,499 80,583 62,787 - 169,869
FR% L (EE10) Charge for the year (Note 10) = = = 4,398 = 4,398
2014%12A318 At 31 December 2014 - 26,499 80,583 67,185 - 174,267
fREE Carrying value
201412831 H At 31 December 2014 811,690 - - 3,592 58,252 873,534
AT EFBE
&k B AE Bl AR
BVEE Core Customer
mE Contract deposit  relationship i A
£H Group Goodwill intangibles intangibles intangibles  Trade name Total
A Cost
20131 818K At 1 January 2013 and
2013%12A 318 31 December 2013 811,690 26,499 80,583 70,777 58,252 1,047,801
Z2iERE/ A Accumulated impairment/
amortisation
2013F1F1H At 1 January 2013 - 26,499 80,583 55,709 - 162,791
ER M (A 10) Charge for the year (Note 10) - - - 7,078 - 7,078
2013%12A318 At 31 December 2013 - 26,499 80,583 62,787 - 169,869
fREE Carrying value
201312310 At 31 December 2013 811,690 - - 7,990 58,252 877,932
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31. BEREFEE®@®

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

EFB®
BLEE
Customer
relationship
$RAT Bank intangibles
BN Cost
20141 A1 H&2014F12 A31H At 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 30,000
2IERE B Accumulated impairment/amortisation
201441 HA1H At 1 January 2014 29,000
FAZH Charge for the year 1,000
2014412 A31H At 31 December 2014 30,000
REE Carrying value
2014F 12831 H At 31 December 2014 -
EPRAR
B EE
Customer
relationship
HR1T Bank intangibles
B Cost
2018341 H1HX20134 12 A31 H At 1 January 2013 and 31 December 2013 30,000
2FERE, Accumulated impairment/amortisation
201341 A1H At 1 January 2013 26,000
FRZH Charge for the year 3,000
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 29,000
AREE Carrying value
20183412 A31H At 31 December 2013 1,000
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

31. BEREFEE®@®

BEREAPRZEBETLEEERALN  RLEREE
FRARETEERARBREBEZENF5E12
FZARFHEE - BREAERERMRYEESF
RIS E R BB 1B MAR AR RIERE RS

0

BEDEEREANBEERERE —BNEKD
HERACHSELSN (REEEEM]) - &
EDEMEZINT -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

31. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Intangible assets of finite life include contract intangibles, core
deposit intangibles and customer relationship intangibles, and are
amortised over their useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years using a
diminishing balance method. Trade name is carried as an asset of
indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment losses. It is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to business segments in line with the internal
management reporting structure. A summary of goodwill allocation is
presented below.

2013%F12H31 HK 2014512831 H
At 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2014

RISERT fEIASRAT BIMRIT
Commercial Personal Overseas &5t
£8 Group Banking Banking Banking Total
B Hong Kong 196,478 122,189 - 318,667
JRFT Macau - - 493,023 493,023
196,478 122,189 493,023 811,690

HEESFERENR  HHEBRBFTE 2ERAE
BEMEEZHSELBMIDIRSE - ZaTHIE
FERE=SEEEABMGS - A5F5HE 2 AR
>R KERTEASFEERANETFIERE
%ﬁﬂ%5¢%&§ﬁio%5¢#ﬂ$%@%
BABERNHUBHARSEEBNZEBRZE
TSR TE RIS BA N B0 B VBB R 2 ST G FTAR &l © FTAE
FA 2 B3R 2R Th 2 BN AN 5 [ 2 & AN AR I S 1)
£9.7% (20134 : 10.1%) °

RS EET R ERF T ER2RREEBR
5 2. 3% Tt Al B I #E 2R 2 LA P HART 81 2 78RR
A BUAEEFERR2% A FE5F B EX
R FTEAZANE X 59.7% (20134 : 10.1%)
TR E NS B 2 BRI 2 o

= F R R R B R SR 2 BB R 18 (2013
FE)-
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Impairment testing in respect of goodwill is performed annually by
comparing the recoverable amount of CGU determined based on
value in use calculation. The calculations use cash flow projections
prepared by the Senior Management based on a 5-year business plan,
taking into account projected annual growth rate, and in perpetuity
with 2% constant growth rate after the fifth year. The 5-year business
plan was developed by the Senior Management based on their
evaluation of the businesses of the relevant CGU and the conditions
in which such businesses will operate over the projected period. The
discount rate used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital at 9.7% (2013: 10.1%).

For trade name, impairment testing is performed annually using pre-
tax royalty rate of 3% with reference to similar business transactions,
projected revenue in the medium-term plan, and in perpetuity with 2%
constant growth rate after the fifth year. The discount rate of 9.7%
(2013: 10.1%) used is based on the Group’s weighted average cost of

capital.

No impairment losses on goodwill and trade name were identified in
the year (2013: Nil).
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32. MEBARIKRERER
() EBRRRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Investments in subsidiaries

$R1T

Bank
2014 2013
JE TR - IRAKAR Unlisted shares, at cost 3,257,919 2,984,244
JFE WY B A B IR Amounts due from subsidiaries 437,685 517,095
LRI EVNGIE S Amounts due to subsidiaries (1,215) (201)
3,694,389 3,501,138

U FENB AR RAHREER - 2ER

BESER °
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repayable on demand.
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. BARKRERER @) 32. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
(FF) B aRE @) (@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

RK2014F12 A31 8 * KiRfTT 2 EEH B AR The following is a list of the Bank’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

184

e December 2014:
ERTEBRRE
i 3t B Particulars of
NEER FTEER Place of issued ordinary
Name of company Principal activity incorporation share capital
RHETIRIT (R E]) BRAA R1T FEE A R AR
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited Banking People’s Republic of China RMB1,200,000,000
RPIERRITRO AR AR 1T R
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. Banking Macau MOP225,000,000
RETRBRER AR A A R4 e
Dah Sing Insurance Brokers Limited Insurance broking Hong Kong HK$200,000
AE KBRS
Dah Sing MTN Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands US$1
RIEFEARAA I ABRTE BB
Dah Sing Nominees Limited Nominee services Hong Kong HK$100,000
REZER BB
Dah Sing Properties Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$9,998
BME REERES
Dah Sing SAR Financing Limited Financing British Virgin Islands US$1
RETEHFBRAR EHEE BB
Dah Sing Securities Limited Securities dealing Hong Kong HK$10,000,000
REZER e
DSB BCM (1) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$1
REER e
DSB BCM (2) Limited Investment holding Hong Kong HK$1
RIBREGAR AR mE¥ e
Dah Sing Computer Systems Limited Inactive Hong Kong HK$20
BEF RBEURHS
DSLI (1) Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1
BEX REERES
Channel Winner Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1
ZEUBARAF W& BB
OK Finance Limited Money lending Hong Kong HK$1,000
BEX RBEXES
Shinning Bloom Investments Limited Inactive British Virgin Islands US$1
RREUB(FE)ERAA mEX e
Pacific Finance (Hong Kong) Limited Inactive Hong Kong HK$450,000,000
HEREBEBRAR MERE BB
Vanishing Border Investment Services Limited Property investment Hong Kong HK$20
MERE RBRUHS
Wise Measure Limited Property investment British Virgin Islands US$1
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32. MEBRARIKRERER®@®

() B2 RRE @

BOBRPIREERITRO AR AR (H22% #EmEE
F1DSB BCM (1) Limited &z DSB BCM (2) Limited
BRI AERRIEAARRITEZEEEHRS °

BORPIERIRITIRODBR AR - RFTRT (PE)
BERAR R L 5AREINER 2 RRIN - Hfh
RAGERBRLE -

RFETER1T (B AR A RN 2008 F 7 AEF BA
AR - EARE A EE A R FAMB 2 0538
BIBRAR] (BREE  BHRMZLER
&)

(2) WEBARERK

MBARERREER  2ERKRERER -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

32. INVESTMENTS IN AND LOANS TO SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

The above companies are all wholly-owned and directly held by the
Bank except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., with 22% interests
indirectly held through DSB BCM (1) Limited and DSB BCM (2)
Limited, which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Bank.

Except for Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited and companies incorporated outside Hong Kong specified
above, all other companies operate in Hong Kong.

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited was incorporated in Mainland China in
July 2008. It is registered as “Limited liability company” (solely funded
by Taiwan, Hong Kong or Macau corporate body) under the laws of
the People’s Republic of China.

(b) Loans to subsidiaries

The loans to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and are
repayable on demand.
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33. TERHMBEEEE

33. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS

B
HRERARE
Furniture,
equipment
{TE  and motor =
8 Group Premises vehicles Total
HZE2013F12 A31HILFE Year ended 31 December 2013
FHREFE Opening net book amount 1,004,418 311,345 1,315,763
#ig Additions 71,157 156,766 227,923
ENOBTERIREME Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (57,365) - (57,365)
BN RREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 332,990 - 332,990
& Disposals - (5,612) (5,612)
ez (fisE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (31,267) (80,561) (111,828)
EHER Exchange difference 1,767 1,712 3,479
FERREFE Closing net book amount 1,321,700 383,650 1,705,350
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013
DN Cost 1,505,676 772,684 2,278,360
R2IENE Accumulated depreciation (183,976) (389,034) (573,010)
REHE Net book amount 1,321,700 383,650 1,705,350
BZ2014F12A31 HILEE Year ended 31 December 2014
FHAREFE Opening net book amount 1,321,700 383,650 1,705,350
#hig Additions 1,103,000 139,556 1,242,556
BN RTERKRENE Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (66,966) - (66,966)
& Disposals — (2,757) (2,757)
rEXZ M (MFE10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (41,733) (108,517) (145,250)
R ER Exchange difference (8,325) (1,400) (4,725)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 2,312,676 415,532 2,728,208
2014%12H31H At 31 December 2014
DN Cost 2,534,076 878,301 3,412,377
R2IENE Accumulated depreciation (221,400) (462,769) (684,169)
REFE Net book amount 2,312,676 415,532 2,728,208
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33. TERHMBEEEE @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

33. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

&M
HRERARE
Furniture,
equipment
TE  and motor =
R1T Bank Premises vehicles Total
HZE2013F12 A31HILFE Year ended 31 December 2013
FHEREFE Opening net book amount 715,543 221,593 937,136
g Additions - 121,128 121,128
ENOBTERIREME Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (57,365) - (57,365)
ENOBREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises 332,990 - 332,990
& Disposals (22,361) (2,733) (25,094)
TESH Depreciation charge (21,767) (54,713) (76,480)
=R Exchange difference 417 5 422
FARREFE Closing net book amount 947,457 285,280 1,232,737
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013
AR Cost 1,067,918 391,591 1,459,509
Z2RTE Accumulated depreciation (120,461) (106,311) (226,772)
REHE Net book amount 947,457 285,280 1,232,737
BZE2014F12A31 HILEE Year ended 31 December 2014
FHAREFE Opening net book amount 947,457 285,280 1,232,737
i Additions 1,102,999 117,957 1,220,956
BN ETERKRENE Reclassification from premises
to investment properties (66,966) - (66,966)
& Disposals — (2,706) (2,706)
TESH Depreciation charge (31,789) (72,445) (104,234)
FRIREFE Closing net book amount 1,951,701 328,086 2,279,787
201412831 H At 31 December 2014
7R Cost 2,099,698 480,805 2,580,503
ZIETE Accumulated depreciation (147,997) (152,719) (300,716)
SRR E Net book amount 1,951,701 328,086 2,279,787
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33. TERHMEEEE @ 33. PREMISES AND OTHER FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

188

TEZEOFERRE : The net book value of premises comprises:
- R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
RS Leaseholds
EERFA 2 FHEHEA Held in Hong Kong on
(FE10E50F 2 /) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 1,951,701 947,457 1,951,701 947,457
TEBBAINFE 2+ 8 Held outside Hong Kong on
A (E10 2505 2 [) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 360,975 374,243 - -
2,312,676 1,321,700 1,951,701 947,457
34. BEYHE 34. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
&= Group 2014 2013
1A1H At 1 January 600,540 735,502
BB EMERITE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises - (332,990)
ENMOBTERIREME Reclassification from premises to
investment properties 103,499 179,613
EHATFEWES Fair value gains on revaluation 41,127 18,415
12 A31H At 31 December 745,166 600,540
$RAT Bank 2014 2013
1A1H At 1 January 598,456 733,559
END B EMERITE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises - (332,990)
BN BRTERIREME Reclassification from premises to
investment properties 103,499 179,613
EHAFEKS Fair value gains on revaluation 41,122 18,274
12 A31H At 31 December 743,077 598,456
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

34. BEWHE @) 34. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AW 2 REFEEE ! The net book value of investment properties comprises:
&5 R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
THEHD Leaseholds
EERFA 2 FHEHEA Held in Hong Kong on
(FE10E50F 2 /) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 743,077 598,456 743,077 598,456
TEBBLAINFE 2+ 8 Held outside Hong Kong on
A (FE10E50F 2 [H) medium-term lease
(between 10-50 years) 2,089 2,084 - -
745,166 600,540 743,077 598,456

() sTEREMEX 2D FE

ANEBR20144F K% 2013512 531 A AR A WE
WEE#TTT &M - T EHEBIEERTAS
B — KPR (HELRBEEMN) BRAFR
HEIBEAESBARBEEELFRARTZ2EZ
FEOA ) 2 H 30 HRBK AT AR 8 AT o

MSEEAMF Z(GEER  HEFBMBHRE
ERIF1SFAAFEHEIR 2 AT EEE B R
EEFARTISREENS 2 &xm MEENYER

R EREMENEER  HP—HEEREA
KERRRE - B RENEZNEFHANRE
BATEERHEEMER  IEEZEBENTE
5 R1,7008 7T (20134 : 2,300/5 L) EFF
73R 123,500 7% 7t (2013 4 : 103,000/ 7T) ° 4
EBEMERN TREEBUREME L AT EE
EHREB DAL - RZIA -

REMEDBRAER/BBUHRELERFE135%
(R HERE)T A THESZRHE IR -

(@) Fair value measurement of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties were last revalued at 31 December
2014 and 2013 by adopting the direct comparison approach or
the income capitalisation approach and with reference to recent
transactions for similar premises as far as practicable by independent,
professionally qualified valuer Savills (Valuation and Professional
Services) Limited.

The basis of the valuation of property was market value which is
consistent with the definition of fair value under HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” and takes into account the highest and best use of the
property from the perspective of market participants.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties was
the unit sale rate taking into account of time, location, and individual
factors such as size and levels of buildings, which ranged from
HK$1,700 (2013: HK$2,300) to HK$123,500 (2013: HK$103,000) per
square feet. A decrease in unit sale rate would result in decrease in
fair value measurement of the investment properties by the same
percentage and vice versa.

Investment properties are classified as Level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”.
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34. BEWHE @) 34. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(Z2) PRESERFPEIFN 2 AFEFTEY (b) Reconciliation of fair value measurement in Level 3 of
BRR the fair value hierarchy

TRFAVNEABEEATAEREE 2 HELA The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement

HEIRRZIREEMTEHN A LER YR between opening and closing balances of Level 3 investment

HATK 7 RE#Eea 2 &) 2 R properties, measured at fair value using a valuation technique with

significant unobservable inputs:

£ AT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
1A1H At 1 January 600,540 735,502 598,456 733,559
BN EREMERTE Reclassification from investment
properties to premises - (832,990) - (832,990)
BN RTERKRENE Reclassification from premises
to investment properties
—EMNMARITEZEEFRME - Net book value of premises
reclassified 66,966 57,365 66,966 57,365
—EHABREAITEEMME - Surplus on revaluation credited
to premises revaluation reserve 36,533 122,248 36,533 122,248
103,499 179,613 103,499 179,613
N ERE Fair value gains 41,127 18,415 41,122 18,274
12H31H At 31 December 745,166 600,540 743,077 598,456
RERFBZEEREA Unrealised gains or losses
W kP EERZ AREIR recognised in comprehensive
Wam sk BB income statement relating to
those assets held at the end
of the year
—MESHFERG - Net surplus on property
revaluation 36,533 122,248 36,533 122,248
RERFAZEELEEBZEFT  Unrealised gains or losses
B RERR 2 R R W e ok s 18 recognised in income statement
relating to those assets held at
the end of the year
— N ERE — Fair value gains 41,127 18,415 41,122 18,274
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34. BEWHE @) 34. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(R) EEEIRBAFETEFENER (¢) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
fhE S E RABE BB
Valuation Unobservable i [E
technique(s) input(s) Range
KEWFE WARBEETE s e & 2.80% = 3.50%
(1E5RUNEE=R)  (20134F : 2.85% = 3.50%)
Investment properties Income capitalisation Market yields 2.80% to 3.50%
approach (reversionary yield) (2013: 2.85% to 3.50%)
M5 BFHRABEEIS T
ZB1104 T
(20135 : B HFRAEWK 35T
ZEH807T)
Market rental HK$35 to HK$104
per square foot
(2013: HK$35 to HK$80
per square foot)
W AREEEC T ZEERATFBEZEEYE For investment properties of which the fair value is determined using
EAZTHIBDEWABRBEEEN REEEZEY the income capitalisation approach, the assessment is conducted
EoTHEHEAEFKAZENET - AFEE on the basis of capitalisation of net incomes with due allowance
SHEMERESKIEABBEEZ  BmigkaRKsg for outgoings and reversionary income potential. The fair value
FEREREE - measurement is positively correlated to the market rental and

inversely correlated to the market yields.

35. Hth&EE 35. OTHER ASSETS
£H $R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
FEU I M TS TE B Accounts receivable and
prepayments 2,822,386 2,751,036 745,697 880,721
FEETURA Accrued income 732,687 705,585 659,169 630,139
Efb Others 216,610 217,182 158,292 169,286

3,771,683 3,673,803 1,563,158 1,680,146

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014 191



B 15k Y o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
36. HEFEERAEMERE 36. TRADING LIABILITIES
SEERIRIT Group and Bank 2014 2013
HEBERR K BEEES Short sales of treasury bills and
treasury bonds 5,597,614 3,362,473
37. BEFEXR 37. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
= SRAT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
& B R R AE RIF K Demand deposits and
current accounts 26,439,546 21,211,822 22,668,162 17,161,826
EEER Savings deposits 26,165,548 18,981,641 22,676,457 15,836,034
EHA - AR E AR Time, call and notice deposits 90,629,343 89,751,670 75,521,002 75,412,792

143,234,437 129,945,133 120,865,621 108,410,652

BEE Q&S SWEEA DB ERa #sE & Included in customer accounts were deposits of HK$14,329,000
&> K3 & 2 15 2014,329,000 5% 7T (2013 £ ¢ (2013: HK$31,589,000) held as collateral for irrevocable commitments

31,589,000 & 7T) © under import letters of credit.

BEH BB HIEEN c T EME SRS Other than time, call and notice deposits, all other customer deposits
B asT B IZ o carry variable interest rates.
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38. EBRITHNEIE 38. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ISSUED

58 R1T

Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013

JRE R R R T At fair value under fair
ANEEFER value hedge (for hedging

interest rate risk) 4,990,231 5,274,902 5,090,235 5,874,706
REERRA AN P AR At amortised cost 1,119,546 857,659 1,119,546 852,428
6,109,777 6,132,561 6,209,781 6,727,134

R2014 F M 2013 F R » AEE KRG R VIR ER
B EEMEETEREANA T EFE R HEE
Bt A8 o

NEBMENEEBETERAED B IZENEMNEN
LEBIA L5 2 BRE{E S 3,000,000 7T (2013
£ : 59,000,000 7T) ©

39. BRITHNEBRES

During 2014 and 2013, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any certificates of deposit issued at fair value through
profit or loss.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these certificates of deposit is HK$3 million
higher (2013: HK$9 million higher) than the above carrying amount.

39. ISSUED DEBT SECURITIES

EERBIT
Group and Bank
2014 2013
100,000,000 ZE T 2014 4 E A US$100,000,000 Floating Rate Notes
FEER - REKATER (GE) due 2014, at amortised cost (Note) - 775,385

T

It B ANERITIA 2011 6 4 A 28 BB BANRIT 2 Bl 5
FFEASIRET 8181 T - WAERT IR S AT ([#RFT)) B
2100,000,000 % 0% B EE ([RIE]) - ZRBEAER
1 R%BEHHEAB20145F4 5281 -

Note:

This represents US$100,000,000 Floating Rate Notes (the “Notes”) issued
by the Bank on 28 April 2011 under the Bank’s Euro Medium Term Note
Programme, and were listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange Trading Limited
(“SGX”). The Notes were unsecured and matured on 28 April 2014.
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(LAEREFThzgI7R)

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. BREGS® 40. SUBORDINATED NOTES
EERIERTT
Group and Bank
2014 2013
225,000,000 ZE T2 2020 4F E| By US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EREEER GE(F)) Rate Notes due 2020 (Note (a)) 1,915,702 1,911,753
200,000,000 = TTKA E BAEEER (7 (2)) US$200,000,000 Perpetual
Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes (Note (b)) 469,056 486,740
225,000,000 3 in#E o 7 2022 4 £ 5§ S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
HESRERES(GE(R)) Rate Notes due 2022 (Note (c)) 1,301,352 1,363,978
225,000,000 3T 2024 S 21| HiHY US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed
EREEER (FE(T)) Rate Notes due 2024 (Note (d)) 1,746,268 -
5,432,378 3,762,471
R4 A = @ T A AR At fair value under fair value hedge
(for hedging interest rate risk) 4,963,322 3,762,471
R AR AR At amortised cost 469,056 =
5,432,378 3,762,471

R2014 FE 2013 F K - REBRERIAFER
B E MR EGEASAAFEFTE AL

ABEE o
Fa
() itk J5 A 4R 17 M201062A118 % 17 <
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225,000,000 3= 7T £ ¥7 22 it T 4% 57 7E A F N
BEAMEEREEE([EK] - LEEBEHER
20202 A 11 BEIH - £8/56.625% ' FF¥F
B =R o NEBFTINE BB —BBRIRITR] ML F R i=
& A ERHEE N B RRAUETRITRIZE
FEBERHZEF S

i Ty AR R 17 R 200742 5168 % 17 2
200,000,000 = CEF T LW H R E A= E
M A& ANEK A E B ERER ([EE]) - WEE
M2 R2UBER 201728178 - @%17H
FHREWEER  £556.253% ' B§FF
B—k o Hig - MEBAEEREEEEBAED
HRmF EeE:] A3 EAMETRITRERE
1908 T - EEBHBSERTE LM - AR
TR M E S A s ARSI AR R BB
NEEEEERFAE G ) EF o ]NRITIE
1 — BB RTTR] M A RIFHR A KBTS0 E E F)
BEBANETRITRERSBERNZEF S
3R o

During 2014 and 2013, the Group did not designate on initial
recognition any subordinated notes at fair value through profit or loss.

Note:

(b)

This represents US$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 11 February
2010 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature
on 11 February 2020. Interest at 6.625% p.a. is payable semi-annually.
An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of
the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into
with an international bank.

This represents US$200,000,000 Perpetual Subordinated Fixed Rate
Notes qualifying as upper supplementary capital of the Bank issued on
16 February 2007 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes
carry an optional redemption date falling on 17 February 2017. Interest at
6.253% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue date to the optional
redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not redeemed, the interest
rate will reset and the Notes will bear interest at 3-month LIBOR plus
190 basis points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval
of the HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on
the optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.



P E

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

40. BEGBK @)

720104 2 2009 F + ANRITR 4L IEFE RS Y
FEEHEUTRELBER A BES A A
75,000,000 7T % 70,000,000 7T & SMAEFS -
MAEBEZEARERNESESSERZ AL
BB -

(A) AR IRTTHR201242 A8 HE1T2225,000,000
N TTAE R R AT LT R E A INE AR E
BREBH(ER] - LEEBER202262 4
ORZEIH - BIBMEER A2017F2H9H ° K
BTAEHRENEERER  £8/4875% &
FERB—IX - HiE - WEFREEREERA
BE - AROFNSEETAERSFHF T
HHEENI7T6HT - EEESEESERBLR
A RRITA IR B MR A AR E AR F
BNRBUAEEEEBER G GEBMN) &R - K
R1TINE B — BIBRERATR] 3 F Ris B & K15 B TS
BB E Il SR A AR LRI TR SR B AERE R
SZENFIEATFK

(T) ULT57AERTHA 201441 A29 H %472 225,000,000
ETEBBHAERSGMARAR([EBERZH])
EHRFABERGEINMERTE S -KEARL
10FHIE B EER BETEA(RITE (BEXR)
RANZGR) o ILEEKER2024F1 A29 BE|
B o IRIBMEIE R A2019F1 290 - ME1TH
FHEEBMEEH  F2/525%  BFEHI
—IR o Hig - WEBKREEREBEAERD - £
BOF S EE AERSFHERBEZSREEM
75T - ERBESSE RELMME - AT
ATPE B E B Sk A B IE A A 2R E BA
EEEEERME GES) B - ARITINE H
—BIBRRITEI M A R B A AR5 A B e L2
ERANETRITREREAERNZEF SN

Eo
A °

AEEENEREBRKIHFRANEMNNSHE
& LA F P %l 2 BR {5 K 197,000,000 % 7t (2013
£ : {£212,000,000 7 7T) °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

40. SUBORDINATED NOTES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

In 2010 and 2009, the Bank repurchased a portion of the Notes with
a total notional principal of US$75,000,000 and US$70,000,000
respectively at a discount after unwinding an identical notional amount
of interest rate swap. Such repurchased Notes were cancelled after
receiving prior approval of the HKMA.

This represents S$225,000,000 Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes
qualifying as supplementary capital of the Bank issued on 8 February
2012 (the “Notes”), which are listed on the SGX. The Notes will mature on
9 February 2022 with an optional redemption date falling on 9 February
2017. Interest at 4.875% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year Singapore Dollar swap rate plus 376 basis
points. The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the
HKMA, redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the
optional redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment
date. An interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment
liability of the Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been
entered into with an international bank.

This represents US$225,000,000 Basel Ill compliant 10-year
Subordinated Fixed Rate Notes qualifying as Tier 2 capital of the Bank
(subject to the provisions of the Banking (Capital) Rules of Hong Kong)
issued on 29 January 2014 (the “Notes”), which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). The Notes will mature on 29
January 2024 with an optional redemption date falling on 29 January
2019. Interest at 5.25% p.a. is payable semi-annually from the issue
date to the optional redemption date. Thereafter, if the Notes are not
redeemed, the interest rate will be reset and the Notes will bear interest
at the then prevailing 5-year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 375 basis points.
The Bank may, subject to receiving the prior approval of the HKMA,
redeem the Notes in whole but not in part, at par either on the optional
redemption date or for taxation reasons on interest payment date. An
interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed rate payment liability of the
Notes to floating interest rate based on LIBOR has been entered into with
an international bank.

The amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at

maturity to the holders of these subordinated notes is HK$197 million

lower (2013: HK$212 million lower) than the above carrying amount.
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41. EEFIE 41. DEFERRED INCOME TAX
EEBRBEERBENHEEREREFE AT Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
I HENHATE TR & EE N B HATR I8 B (B MR IE R IE legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against
B[R —Fi IS B R S Rl 1T - Hisz &8N current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
N relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:
&5 $R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
IRAEFIH & = Deferred income tax assets 80,591 22,975 = =
BELEFIBEE Deferred income tax liabilities (55,056) (21,268) (47,204) (19,934)
B IBEAENBEREBEDRE=2 ZHEER & Deferred income tax assets and liabilities analysed based on the
B 2Bt BEAS A0 - underlying category of temporary differences and the expected date

of recovery and settlement are as follows:

&8 R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
EEFIBEE Deferred income tax assets:
—AJfE 12 & A& Uk =l — Deferred income tax
ZIEETIBEE assets to be recovered
after more than 12 months 137,368 88,236 52,778 58,874
EEFIBEE Deferred income tax liabilities:
—EE12 A A& EE — Deferred income tax
ZIBEFRIBE & liabilities to be settled after
more than 12 months (111,833) (86,529) (99,982) (78,808)
25,535 1,707 (47,204) (19,934)
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

41. EEFIE (@)
EIEFETEER B A= ST ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:
£9 $R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
1A18 At 1 January 1,707 14,942 (19,934) 6,623
RURESIRARIEEIE (£ H)  Tax credited/(charged) to the
(Mf3E16) income statement (Note 16) 58,417 6,425 5,003 (7,535)
PIEZSIRARIBS H (Hi5E45) Tax charged to equity (Note 45) (33,934) (19,998) (32,273) (19,022)
EHER Exchange difference (655) 338 - -
12318 At 31 December 25,535 1,707 (47,204) (19,934)
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

41. EEFIIE (@) 41.

BEERAEERBERAFEZEE - TRER
MRABAEEE T HIEZ RN

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

198

IRIEFRIBESE : Deferred income tax assets:
AR B
ERERERE R HA
Impairment REE Deferred
allowances BiEEHE  Investment expenses &5t
£H Group and provisions Tax losses revaluation and others Total
201341 A1 H At 1 January 2013 30,881 4,606 24,104 26,939 86,530
RUESER AR (S H) Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 12,594 (541) - 9,254 21,307
R IR A Charged to equity - - (19,939) - (19,939)
EHER Exchange difference 272 - - 66 338
2013F 12 A31 B R At 31 December 2013
20141818 and 1 January 2014 43,747 4,065 4,165 36,259 88,236
RUERAERE (S i) Credited/(charged) to
the income statement 52,508 (2,988) - 4,432 53,952
RiE=ERAS Charged to equity - - (33,832) = (33,832)
EXC IR Reclassification - - 29,667 = 29,667
EHER Exchange difference (582) - - (73) (655)
2014512A31H At 31 December 2014 95,673 1,077 - 40,618 137,368
REER R B B
Impairment R EHA
allowances REE Deferred
and  Investment expenses =5
R1T Bank provisions revaluation and others Total
20131 H1H At 1 January 2013 22,082 24,250 25,147 71,479
PR ERERA () [B1# (Charged)/credited to the
income statement (2,071) - 8,488 6,417
RiE=R A Charged to equity - (19,022) - (19,022)
201312 H31 H X At 31 December 2013
201441 A1H and 1 January 2014 20,011 5,228 33,635 58,874
R ESERA () /(o1 (Charged)/credited to the
income statement (4,406) - 3,538 (868)
Rz BRI Charged to equity - (32,273) - (32,273)
Evir Reclassification - 27,045 - 27,045
201412831 H At 31 December 2014 15,605 - 37,173 52,778
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
41, EEFHIE @ 41. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
IRIEHRIBEE S : Deferred income tax liabilities:

MEREHE RENESRE
Accelerated  Investment REEf

R tax  properties  Investment Hitr fit
£ Group Provisions  depreciation  revaluation  revaluation Others Total
0131 A1H At 1 January 2013 6,207 53,685 11,474 53 169 71,588
RpERRZE Charged to the income statement 915 11,622 2,345 - - 14,882
NEGERRZL Charged to equity - - - 59 - 59
01312431 AR At 31 December 2013 and

014F1A18 1 January 2014 7,122 65,307 13,819 112 169 86,529
REEERTLE /(D) Charged/(credit) to the income
statement 1,855 7,668 (13,819) - (169) (4,465)
REERAZ Charged to equity - - - 102 - 102
ENNE Reclassification - - - 29,667 - 29,667
20145127318 At 31 December 2014 8,977 72,975 - 29,881 - 111,833
MERBHE REWEER
Accelerated Investment REE
tax properties Investment a5t
R1T Bank depreciation revaluation revaluation Total
2013%F1 A1H At 1 January 2013 53,383 11,473 - 64,856
RUEREREAS Charged to the income statement 11,607 2,345 = 13,952
201312 A31 B R At 31 December 2013 and
201491 A1H 1 January 2014 64,990 13,818 - 78,808
RUREBR A )/ (E1#) Charged/(credit) to the
income statement 7,947 (13,818) - (5,871)
Epapil Reclassification - - 27,045 27,045
2014%12A31H At 31 December 2014 72,937 - 27,045 99,982
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
41, BEEFHIE @) 41. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
Tt P ERAEZEAY 2 EERIE - The deferred income tax charged to equity during the year is as
follows:
£ $RAT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
R 2 A EFEE Fair value reserves in
shareholders’ equity:
— A EFH (fi5E45) — available-for-sale securities
(Note 45) (33,934) (19,998) (32,273) (19,022)
42. BAEE AR Z &8 42. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES
BISARR R A ER B B3t AR A R R B RS Included in the following statement of financial position captions are
BN BRI — AR G ET R BT E A 2 &5t balances with the ultimate and immediate holding companies arising
FIGR - from transactions conducted on normal commercial terms:
SEERIRIT Group and Bank 2014 2013
FHEERREAMIERE Advances and other accounts 21 =
BEFR Deposits from customers 119,252 50,253
HAmhR B RIER Other accounts and accruals 91 1

119,343 50,254
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(AT TTAIYIR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
42. EBAEE AT Z &8 @) 42. BALANCES WITH GROUP COMPANIES (continued)
BISIOR R NER B SRR R B A B 2 & fheT Included in the following statement of financial position captions are
FEAT - balances with fellow subsidiaries detailed as follows:
EERRIT Group and Bank 2014 2013
BHEERMEMRE Advances and other accounts 20,195 19,582
BRER Deposits from customers 2,198,550 1,674,440
HERE AR Other accounts and accruals 4,224 4,394
‘IEETS Subordinated notes 41,021 40,934
2,243,795 1,719,768
BAFSARR R NER B BIEANIRITEM B A R 2 4588 Included in the following statement of financial position captions are
E=]bal N balances with subsidiaries of the Bank detailed as follows:
$R1T Bank 2014 2013
& RIEIRITH AR Cash and balances with banks 1,919,080 1,897,331
BHEERMHEMEER Advances and other accounts 936,540 882,142
2,855,620 2,779,473
RITIER Deposits from banks 1,040,694 1,187,251
Y SVER 4 Deposits from customers 558,475 534,164
BEITHERE Certificates of deposit issued 100,004 599,804
HEaaR B RTER Other accounts and accruals 23,409 8,015

1,722,582 2,329,234
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
43. FREBEREE 43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
() BEXEE (@) Capital commitments
W12 A31 BERE RIDKIEREEEBEEE B Capital expenditure in respect of projects and acquisition of fixed
ABEEEEZEREENT ¢ assets as at 31 December but not yet incurred is as follows:
£ $RAT
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
BREBREBEN 2R Expenditure authorised but
not contracted for 16,078 22,109 16,078 21,027
BROBERREER ZFX Expenditure contracted but
not provided for 140,972 153,260 139,305 150,856
157,050 175,369 155,383 171,883
(2) EE&RE (b) Credit commitments
REBEEABRINAERETFTREE 2SI A The contract and credit risk weighted amounts of the Group’s off-
B ENEEERMRINEERZEMT ¢ balance sheet financial instruments that commit it to extend credit to

customers are as follows:

EHNLHE
Contract amount
£ $R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
HEEEERER Direct credit substitutes 683,652 1,858,669 89,418 94,599
HiXX SRR 2 NI B Transaction-related contingencies 302,523 285,002 180,819 127,212
R SR 2 S ATE B Trade-related contingencies 501,525 651,824 420,896 520,296
AR EUH M AN /R TR % Commitments that are
B2 unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice 64,212,547 60,823,138 61,055,919 58,310,893
H At FHE Other commitments with an
[RAEARR 7% original maturity of:
— L1 —under 1 year 3,982,693 5,401,515 3,301,040 4,816,606
—1ERIE -1 year and over 998,616 1,497,268 2,094 400,780
REATFR Forward forward deposits placed - 12,457 648 12,457

70,681,556 70,529,873 65,050,834 64,282,843
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

43. RABBERAE @

(2) FEAE @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Credit commitments (Continued)

FERINERE
Credit risk weighted amount
£H $B1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
HABEREAE Contingent liabilities and
commitments 1,725,203 2,474,576 844,526 1,219,137

(R) BEERZEE

TRATDARAEEEINERSEHEFNEER
MR EDMERGEESERZINEESE

BES

FEERIBIT

(c) Assets pledged

Exchange Fund debts pledged with the HKMA to facilitate the Group’s
trading and market-making activities in Exchange Fund debts are as

follows:

Group and Bank 2014 2013

EMGEE2ERNEE :
FHEEEREMRES
A EES

HEARIE :
RIEEERZNER

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Assets pledged with HKMA:
Trading securities 5,157,236 3,132,132
Available-for-sale securities 395,430 169,051

5,552,666 3,301,183

Associated liabilities:
Trading liabilities 5,597,614 3,362,473
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

43. RABBERAE @
(R) BEBEFZEE @

TRTIBREEGRER TR ESRME 2
BUHES M AR & &2 FREE ¢

FEERIBIT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Assets pledged (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the non-government bonds pledged with
unrelated financial institutions under repurchase agreements and the
associated liabilities are as follows:

Group and Bank 2014 2013

ClfE = T 2 EREE

A EES

FERHES

HEAE :
RITIFA
HAufz B R IaRR

BREFREABRENAFERER ZES
MRREERE °

REBHHERA - AEBRARITTEEER - b

EXEMULES - THHEBR 2EFNEITA
BEE =R o
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Assets pledged under repurchase

agreements:

Available-for-sale securities 94,500 512,318

Held-to-maturity securities - 16,882
94,500 529,200

Associated liabilities:

Deposits from banks 89,421 408,051

Other accounts and accruals - 97,862
89,421 505,913

The fair value of the transferred securities and associated liabilities
approximate the carrying amount of the transferred securities.

The Group and the Bank cannot use, sell or pledge the above
securities for the duration of the repurchase agreements and is
exposed to the credit risk of the issuers of the transferred securities.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

43. RABBERAE @

(T) BeHERE

WAEERARRITRABAN - B TATBURYER
EHEHEMNARAIN 2 HEBENREREM

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Operating lease commitments

Where the Group and the Bank is the lessee, the future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

N follows:
% 81T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
1FAR Not later than 1 year 159,801 193,353 137,786 172,592
1FABESF Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 113,400 226,260 60,502 166,948
5L Later than 5 years 47,428 61,661 - -
320,629 481,274 198,288 339,540

WAEERARITR/EBEAN - B AATBURYEL
EHEHEMNARRAIN 2 HEBEN K@D

Where the Group and the Bank is the lessor, the future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable building operating leases are as

T : follows:
£H $R1T
Group Bank
2014 2013 2014 2013
1F AR Not later than 1 year 29,663 31,230 29,182 31,090
1FLAMEZR S5 Later than 1 year and not
later than 5 years 19,128 49,936 17,513 48,212
48,791 81,166 46,695 79,302
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
44, PRRZN 44. SHARE CAPITAL
2014 2013
SETERRA ¢ Authorised:
50,000,000 A% &:@A% - GAREE 100%57T 50,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$100 each N/A 5,000,000
2014 2013
EZERRH TR AR
Number of B4 Number of f& 7S
Issued and fully ordinary Share ordinary Share
BEIT RSB paid share capital: shares capital shares capital
1H1H At 1 January 50,000,000 5,000,000 50,000,000 5,000,000
BT TS RE Proceeds from shares issued 12,000,000 1,200,000 = =
12H31H At 31 December 62,000,000 6,200,000 50,000,000 5,000,000
201412 A31 HE BT ERENEB S5t 45 The total number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 December 2014
62,000,000 % (2013 £F : 50,000,000 % ) ° FT & is 62 million shares (2013: 50 million shares). All issued shares are fully
BT 2R 28T - paid.
MR2014%E3 A3 H » FHABEH AR - FAFlE On 3 March 2014, the NCO came into effect, which adopts a
Flea %l T A AR 2 BIRARN T EL R & mandatory system of no nominal value for all Hong Kong incorporated
HEEHE - WEKRHABONE S G EE -« IR0 companies having a share capital and abolishes the concepts such
B UAREFTERBEHES o as nominal value, share premium and requirements for authorized
capital.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. f#fE 45. RESERVES
NRORER  REERN
EEfRE REEMRE M2 G (&)
GaRE  Premises Investment  EXfEf  -MHE Resevefor  Refained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation ~ Revaluation ~ Exchange General Share-based Earnings &t
-1 Group Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
014E1 A1 At 1 January 2014 8,827 165,246 (46,408) 391,771 700,254 4371 10,822,818 12,046,879
ARtERS AT ENG Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale
NERRRRER securities recognised in equity - - 258976 - o - - 258976
AFEBENIEREETE  Fairvalue loss realised and transferred to
HERRINERARAER income statement upon disposal of
RENGIEER s 2 5 investments in securities included in
BRlZBFRERER the loans and receivables category and
RERzhEk held-to-maturity category which were
previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - - 3,756 - - - - 3,756
AFERFRLEREE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
BANER R ERENER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (21,692) - - - - (21,692)
REE[fHEE Deferred income tax on movements in
JERERA (k1) investment revaluation reserve (Note 41) - - (339%) - - - - (3393
REENNRIEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
VYL premises to investment properties - 36,533 - - - - - 36,533
HERIMBA DR RE Exchange differences arising on translation
MERZZ of the financial statements of foreign entities - - - (108,599) - - - (108,599)
DA ST DA D AR Provision for equity-settled
BBk share-based compensation - - 5 - o 3,754 o 3,754
EERH Profit for the year - - - - - - 1927257 1927257
13FKERE 2013 final dividend - - - - - - (250,000) (250,000)
014E12A318 At 31 December 2014 8,827 201,779 160,698 283,172 700,254 8,125 12,500,075 13,862,930
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. f#fE @ 45. RESERVES (Continued)
KRDABER  REEM
EEfRE REEHER B2 G (&)
GARE  Premises Investment  [ENfEE  —EE  Resevefor  Refained
Consolidation ~ Revaluation  Revaluation ~ Exchange General ~ Share-based Earnings &t
£B Group Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Compensation (Note) Total
0131 A1A At 1 January 2013 8,827 42,998 (102,461) 285,853 700,254 130 9473341 10,408,942
AR tERS AT ENG Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale
NERRATED securities recognised in equity - - 47,691 - - - - 47,691
ATEEBENIERZE Fair value loss realised and transferred o
At ERANETA R income statement upon disposal of
EHRENGERRR investments in securities included in
FEHBER ERRE the loans and receivables category and
KERREEENER held-to-maturity category which were
previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - - 135,647 - - - - 135,647
AFERENEETEAEES  Fair value gain realised and transferred to
BERREAENEE income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - - (107,287) - - - - (107,287)
REEHREESL Deferred income tax on movements in
EITHE (HsEa) investment revaluation reserve (Note 41) - - (19,998) - - - - (19,998)
REENNRIEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
VYL premises to investment properties - 122,048 - - - - - 122,048
HERIMBARENE Exchange differences arising on translation
BROELZER of the financial statements of foreign entities - - - 105918 - - - 105918
DA ST DA RR D B Provision for equity-settled
B BE share-based compensation - = - = - 4941 = 4941
RN Profit for the year - - - - - - 1699477 1,609477
125 KRS 2012 final dividend - - - - - - (240000) (240,000
13ERERE 2013 Interim dividend - - - - - - (110,000) (110,000)
2013124318 At 31 December 2013 8,827 165,246 (46,408) 391,771 700,254 4311 10,822,818 12,046,879
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. f#fE @ 45. RESERVES (Continued)
NRHRER RERA
TEEMRE REEMHRE bl A (&)
Premises  Investment Eifif —fR&%E  Resevefor  Retained
Revaluation  Revaluation ~ Exchange General  Share-based Eamings fit
BT Bank Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
014E1 A1 At 1 January 2014 165,246 (23,774) 170 693,304 4,31 8,380,890 9,220,207
ARtERS AT BN Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale
NERRRRER securities recognised in equity - 214,164 o - 5 o 214,164
ATEBERNLERXET R Fair value loss realised and transferred o
HERRINERARAER income statement upon disposal of
RN s 2 I investments in securities included in
B BFRERER the loans and receivables category and
REREhER held-to-maturity category which were
previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - 3,756 - - - - 3,756
AHERFRLEREE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
BARER R ERENER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - (21,692) - - - - (21,692)
REE[fHEE Deferred income tax on movements in
LB (M 41) investment revaluation reserve (Note 41) - (32,273) - - - - (32,273)
REENDRIEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
VYL premises to investment properties 36,534 - - - - - 36,534
HEBMAHBRRY Exchange differences arising on
EizE translation of the financial statements
of a foreign branch - - (170) - - - (170)
IIRESTHURDAZRRMZEE  Provision for equity-settled
share-based compensation - - - - 3,364 - 3,364
ERER Proit for the year - - - - - 1408192 1408192
A13F KBRS 2013 final dividend - - - - - (250,000) (250,000)
4E12831R At 31 December 2014 00780 140,181 - 63 7735 9539082 10582082
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. f#fE @ 45. RESERVES (Continued)
R AER RBEAH
EEMGHE RASERE B2 et (&)
Premises Investment i —REE  Reservefor Retained
Revaluaton  Revaluation  Exchange General  Share-based Earnings At
ical Bank Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve  Compensation (Note) Total
0131 A1A At 1 January 2013 42,998 (92,874) 158 693,304 130 7,636,646 8,280,362
ARtERS AT ENG Fair value gains on avallable-for-sale
NERRATER securities recognised in equity - 59,762 - - - - 59,762
ATEEENIEAZBALE Fair value loss realised and transferred o
BRNEFH BAETREN income statement upon disposal of
FERRI RN R B investments in securities included in the
RARERRERENER loans and receivables category and
held-to-maturity category which were
previously reclassified from
the available-for-sale category - 135,647 - - - - 135,647
ATEMERTETRTE Fair value gain realised and transferred to
BANER R ERENER income statement upon disposal of
available-for-sale securities - (107,287) - - - - (107,287)
REE[fHEE Deferred income tax on movements in
LB (M 41) investment revaluation reserve (Note 41) - (19,022 - - - - (19,022)
REENDRIEARE Reserve arising from reclassification of
VYL premises to investment properties 122,48 - - - - - 122,248
HEBMAHBRRY Exchange differences arising on translation
Eizg of the financial statements of a foreign branch - - 12 - - - 12
DA ST DA D B Provision for equity-settled
B BE share-based compensation - - = - 4941 = 4941
RN Profit for the year - - - - - 1094244 1,004,244
N12F KBRS 2012 final dividend - - - - - (240,000) (240,000)
1350 HRE 2013 interim dividend - - - - - (110,000 (110,000)
2013124318 At 31 December 2013 165,246 (23,774) 170 693,304 4,371 8,380,890 9,220,207
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45. f#E @)
it

RRITANEERBTLAERREBPERELRITA
oz RIEBERE - #F2EEREDRTATER
TREPIRAEEREERBNIAHMEERTE - ZEE
FRERRARE TRRZFERSE - EERBIEZHA
HEBEERETHN  LEENMERRFERHR -

©2014F12 A31 B - ANR{TE R E 1,481,245,000 7% 7T
(20134 : 1,433,269,000/ 8 0) 2 € REIEAEEHE
EHHELRE —REE  REBRRERESREETFRE

=

TE °

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

45. RESERVES (Continued)

Note:

The Bank is required to maintain minimum impairment provisions in excess of
those required under HKFRS in the form of regulatory reserve. The regulatory
reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance and local regulatory requirements for prudential supervision
purposes. The regulatory reserve restricts the amount of reserves which can
be distributed to shareholders. Movements in the regulatory reserve are made
directly through equity reserve and in consultation with the HKMA.

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank has earmarked a regulatory reserve of
HK$1,481,245,000 (2013: HK$1,433,269,000) first against the consolidated
general reserve; and for any excess amount, the balance is earmarked against
the consolidated retained earnings of the Bank.
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46. RERSREBLERME

() MRREBER 2 EESNEEEETHR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit after impairment

ERAFHEYHERR losses to net cash flows from operating activities
2014 2013
MBRERER 2 &R T Operating profit after impairment losses 1,474,896 1,480,780
FF B UL A Net interest income (2,992,497)  (2,801,668)
& B s Dividend income (16,608) (12,313)
BERUREREREMEERE Loan impairment losses and
other credit provisions 472,962 309,806
e Depreciation 145,250 111,828
BB E B Amortisation expenses of intangible assets 4,398 7,078
REREIE 2 ERMEHFEE Advances written off net of recoveries (439,482) (152,024)
LARRAE 2 15 DARR (D A LR SR B 2 348 Provision for equity-settled
share-based compensation 3,754 4,241
2 U F B Interest received 4,936,452 4,262,065
EERESS Interest paid (1,579,935)  (1,193,362)
BEUARE Dividend received 16,608 56,729
HEEERABEEYH 2EERT Operating profit before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 2,025,798 2,073,160
HEEERBEZES Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
—Re RERTHEHRIREH B BB - cash and balances with banks and
318 A ziman & 58 BTE money at call and short notice
with an original maturity
beyond three months (873,074) (355,447)
—REE R BB EA 2 ERITHFR - placements with banks with an
original maturity beyond three months  (1,605,524) (1,637,694)
—FHEEBERENES - trading securities 947,848 (649,613)
—{TESmMIA — derivative financial instruments (40,191) (425,259)
—EBEUAFEEBEEBT ABEN — financial assets designated at
TRIEE fair value through profit or loss (5,573) 19,277
—EBESFEE - trade bills (1,458,409)  (1,595,776)
—RFEX - advances to customers (7,251,875) (11,803,302)
—HAiER B - other accounts (70,778) 215,661
—BREEERREBGIELER 2 BHIEE — investments in securities included in
the loans and receivables category 2,910 2,277,537
— A HHERS - available-for-sale securities 711,975  (5,146,080)
—EFEHHES — held-to-maturity securities (863,088) 1,378,126
—ERT—HAEHEE — loan to a jointly controlled entity 14,620 -
—RITIER — deposits from banks (422,830) (650,323)
—RIEEERENAE — trading liabilities 2,235,141 1,084,429
—BPEN - deposits from customers 13,289,304 11,863,967
—BITIEAE - certificates of deposit issued (28,645) 807,084
—HiRE KTER - other accounts and accruals 139,534 (1,236,720)
b 3 R Exchange adjustments 50,491 (121,859)
HEEEERA (FTR) MRS Cash generated from/(absorbed by)
operating activities 6,797,634 (3,902,832)
XNEBEITOFREZFE Interest paid on certificates of
deposit issued (76,598) (80,609)
BB BTER Hong Kong profits tax paid (251,290) (125,045)
EAUE NI Overseas tax paid (26,986) (19,680)
REFHRA(FTA)REF5 Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 6,442,760  (4,128,166)
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46. MERERBAERME @
(2) EREABLEHRR  REREFARLE
BEERBEANEIEANUTEEZT

Pty REBESCES KRB ATHE
RERESERERSHEZLETR

&M

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

46.

(b)

Group

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following balances
with maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, deposits that are readily convertible to
known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2014 2013

BE MERITHOEER
JREEA B 4E 3 1A H 5k bA T 2 38 0 K 52 BATF K

JREHA B AE 318 A 5A T 2 FERITEVIF K

FIEEERENES

47. ERAEER

BREBATMEHIE161BIE  ERTFERAEZ
HEBEENT ¢

Cash and balances with banks

2,401,312 3,010,837

Money at call and short notice with an

original maturity within three months 10,751,666 4,447,115

Placements with banks with an
original maturity within three months 2,040,796 1,268,798
Trading securities 886,792 578,374
16,080,566 9,305,124

47. LOANS TO OFFICERS

Particulars of loans made to officers disclosed pursuant to section

161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

FAERRSER

Maximum balance

12 A 31 &8
Balance outstanding

at 31 December during the year

2014 2013 2014 2013
e R A BAEERAERER Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of principal
and interest 3,366 22,267 46,056 28,667
ERESER Aggregate amount outstanding
in respect of guarantees - 545 - 545
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(LABEEF T3 R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

48. EBEALZRS 48. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
KPITZEEERARAFHETEBRER AR & The Bank’s immediate holding company is Dah Sing Banking Group
BRERARARNFTEHEEERAGIRAERE Limited and the ultimate holding company is Dah Sing Financial
EMHEE LTAF - Holdings Limited. Both holding companies are incorporated and listed

in Hong Kong.

R 2014 F 2013 F » ANIRITIE— MBI FERK - During 2014 and 2013, the Bank entered into various transactions
B ARIRRAENB AR EZIERS B with its holding companies, and other fellow subsidiaries on normal
SRITRIEGFERRRR HERDHASZ K —RR commercial terms. These transactions include interbank placements
MM~ R —RRIBITIRTS - and deposit taking, marketing and distribution of life and general

insurance products and the provision of other banking services.

PEON - RRITMRAKEER AT RERRMEA In addition, the Bank also provides computer and administrative
AREEMRITHRG  HELRIHAYETRR services to its ultimate holding company and its fellow subsidiaries,
MEAA - leases and sub-leases properties to fellow subsidiaries.
HEEBATZEARZNAT : Details of the significant related party transactions are as follows:
() BERLAR > MBARREBRHNEL (@) Transactions and balances with holding companies,
G subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
(i) WARTH ()  Income and expenses
BEERBAREZERAER
Immediate and ultimate EEN- PN
holding companies Fellow subsidiaries
£H Group 2014 2013 2014 2013
BEAIALE Interest paid (18) (10) (11,708) (11,854)
B S Interest received - - 208 225
EAEE Commission received - - 95,148 76,994
2 U AR5 & Service fee received 5,700 5,700 15,716 16,950
2 E REBARE Rental and related building
==y management fee received - - 19,660 15,288
B EMEEST Other operating expenses paid = = (14,408) (12,929)
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(ABEET TTALFR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
48. FRHAEALTZRZ @ 48. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
() EiIER AT MMBATIRBZRZKEAD (a) Transactions and balances with holding companies,
RN S R @) subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries (Continued)
(i) HERBARFCITERHTA (i) Derivative financial instruments with a subsidiary
a8/
BAREH DNEPE
Contract/ Fair values
notional BE =N
$B1T Bank amount Assets Liabilities
201412 A 31 H At 31 December 2014 383,445 8,310 (898)
2013412 H31 H At 31 December 2013 349,257 24,618 (7,530)
(i)  FIHTEBR A2 5 E&E (i)  Committed facilities to a subsidiary
R1T Bank 2014 2013
EEFGHER Facility amount 700,000 499,258
() EEZEEAE (b) Key management personnel
() HEERTITBEBEASZEARSR ()  Material transactions and balances with directors and key
AEpp management personnel
REE  ARTREWDRER - EE During the year, the Bank has banking transactions with
AREEERBTITESTEALS  HifH the key management personnel, their close family members
RESHBEMBRIESANE - HRER and the entities controlled by them including deposit taking,
FEEKBREREENEEMS T (K&0E loans, credit card facilities and investment services. These
B transactions were provided in the ordinary course of business

and at the same terms with other employees.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
48. BERAEALTZRE @) 48. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
() EEEEAE @) (b) Key management personnel (Continued)
() HBHEBERFEEHEASZEARGL ()  Material transactions and balances with directors and key
AEER(B) management personnel (Continued)
FEEBABZRIMEAZRARZ T Income and expenses arising from the transactions with key
WAREK  MERNRFRZLELIOT - management personnel are immaterial and the loans and

deposits balances with them are shown below:

EEKRTT Group and Bank 2014 2013
BERMER Loans and advances 2,922 3,928
7R Deposits 300,609 329,121
AEA 2 BEFEE Undrawn commitments 2,698 2,771
B R Guarantee 545 545
FRNERRBRZ x=iB5E Maximum aggregate amount of loans
and advances during the year 3,731 9,788
(i) FTEEBEASHE (i)  Remuneration of key management personnel
RETETEESBAEAHITESE  HRH Key management personnel of the Bank are executive
EEEEREFRHIFET - directors and their remunerations are included under Note 17.
(A) EEBME ATFIREER4ERESRER (c) Transactions and balances with associate and jointly
pre controlled entity
FR ANETWIBHBE DT EEEIT During the year, the Bank received from Bank of Chongqging,
129’187’0005%775(2013515 : 35,624,000 7% 7T ) Hg an associate, dividend income of HK$129,187,000 (2013:
BIULA o K ASRITEE — LR34 Z R HK$35,624,000). During the year, the Bank received deposits
EZABRATZER  MER2014F12 A 31 Eﬁ from Bank Consortium Trust Company Limited, a jointly controlled
TR ER 526,995,000 7T (20134  21,407,0005% entity and as at 31 December 2014, the balance of deposit was
IL) ° HK$26,995,000 (2013: HK$21,407,000).
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49. LA {4 R ER BRI S

AT BERERAB(RFRITEEERAF
(TARFHRITEE ) RERKEBR AR (KR
SEERAR([AFHERER])) A HLRBIE
8 - BRI EB 2 NHIRTT R E R 2
(TRFERITEEETE |) MoAF £ & B R R
B (TARFEREE])  SERARZEETEAR
THET  BEASERARITHNES  BRE
BIBERE -

AEEE BRI RITEBEF B R AF £ B BIR
HIABR D BEROBH T AEB 2 EEZRSRT
AL e

() RFRITEEE

AHRITEERTERENBARE TEERE
BRMRIE - EREFR AT AFBRITEBALEER
ZERBRETEAREESNEES I FRRESD
BeEME  UWERSBEHEITRD - KFTRTE
EiTE A IR S T HEFIR 2012 F LARIFTR T
HIRARHE © PR2012F REEFTIR T 2 RMBRHE - K
RITEBITEB1THRG - S HEE -

ZERBRRE TR AFRTEEF B ([EE DA
ZAER MGG T - BHORREZITEET A
RERFWEESRERARANRITEEESTS AT
RERNEBBR ST EMHRBIE 17.03(9) &R E
T BAMERATIEFR 2 HEREFERE : ()X
HIRITEERGERTEREERSMEE 2
M8 (i) KTRITEEROEZER T HAIS @
RGBREBRGMEE 2 FHWME : R(i)n
201443 A3 AT A RIHEGI £ AT T 2 sRAk#E -
RNFRITEERETPERRMD 1B T ZEHE © #Z
RIRHE 2 (TER TN E R T BEB e AT B 1 256 F
B o RKETIRITEBERER 201455 A27 Bt
R — (AR AR ST & ([ 5T & 1) AR B 5T
2l o WA RRIERINE 8 T o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Each of the Bank’s immediate holding company (Dah Sing Banking
Group Limited (“DSBG”)) and ultimate holding company (Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”)) has its own share option
scheme. The Board of Directors of DSBG and DSFH can grant to any
employees, including directors of the Bank and of the Group, options
to subscribe for shares of DSBG or DSFH under the DSBG Share
Option Scheme (the “DSBG Scheme”) and the DSFH Share Option
Scheme (the “DSFH Scheme”) approved by shareholders.

Share-based compensation through the DSBG Scheme and the DSFH
Scheme is available to directors and senior executives of the Group.

(@) DSBG Scheme

DSBG issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries
share options on terms that allow DSBG the choice of making cash
payments, determined based on the intrinsic value of each share
option, instead of allotting newly issued shares to the directors or
employees at the date of exercise. DSBG has the intention to adopt
cash settlement practice in respect of the share options granted prior
to year 2012. For share option issued in 2012 and afterwards, DSBG
has the intention to settle its obligations by issuing new shares.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the DSBG Scheme (“Old Scheme”). The exercise price
per option share is concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of DSBG on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and is determined
as no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of DSBG’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price
of the DSBG'’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of DSBG’s shares of
HK$1 each in the capital in issue for options granted before the
commencement of the NCO on 3 March 2014. The exercise period
is between the first and sixth anniversaries from the date of grant. A
new Share Option Scheme (“New Scheme”), which replaced the Old
Scheme, is approved for adoption by the shareholders of DSBG on 27
May 2014. No options have been granted under the New Scheme.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

49. DR AERBRMEE
(Z) Rr&mstal

AFEMETEREMNBARETEEREER
friE o BEHRIERA AN SR AR BEZERK
BITEAMEEFAEENRBENRSE
B AERDEHEITRND - KT EHERMAIR
EXEHRITEERLENRBITERTZR
Pt o

ZERIE TR K€ BAR RN 2005 F 4 A 28
H#tfE 2 RARFEET & 2 G RGBT - &
RIEEZITEET ARG T EE AR AH
CREBESUNEERNRBE BRI LEMRAIE
17.03Q)IFEET  ENMERATIEFRZRSE
EEE (VAT ERBRHERTEREERZFT
BEZWHE () AFEBROEEERTHA
5EARXSBREBRSGMBEEZFHKRTE: &
(i) 2 2014 E 3 A 3 B2 AMEHI £ BATIR T 2 58
fE#E - KR EBMBAPERKH 2B T 2EE -
ARIIE 2 TEE TN ER T AR E1 256
ElA=K

BAHBITEEZRET R T 2RRE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
(b) DSFH Scheme

DSFH issues to certain directors and employees of its subsidiaries
share options on terms that allow DSFH the choice of making cash
payments, determined based on the intrinsic value of each share
option, instead of allotting newly issued shares to the directors or
employees at the date of exercise. DSFH has adopted the cash
settlement practice and intends to continue this practice in respect of
the existing share options issued.

The share options are granted in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme approved by the shareholders
of DSFH on 28 April 2005. The exercise price per option share is
concluded by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee on
behalf of the Board of DSFH on the basis no less exacting than the
requirement set out in Rule 17.03(9) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the SEHK and is determined as no less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK
on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of DSFH’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of DSFH shares of HK$2 each in the capital in issue
for options granted before the commencement of the NCO on 3 March
2014. The exercise period is between the first and sixth anniversaries
from the date of grant.

Share options granted under DSBG Share Option Scheme:

BT H 5l By EH T BRTEEGET) ()

Vesting Exercise Exercise price

Date of grant Type period period per share (HKS)

Note (i)
2011512 A12H DRETR 2011FE12 1268 % 2012F12 A12HZE
201612 A 128 201712 A 128

12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 8.91
2012512 A 218 AR 1+ 2012612 F218% 2013512 A218%
201712 A218 201812 A21 8

21/12/2012 Equity-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 7.96
20143 A26 H AR S 1+ 2014F3 A 26 HE 20153 A26 H
201946326 HE 202043 A 26 H

26/03/2014 Equity-settled 26/03/2014-26/03/2019 26/03/2015-26/03/2020 11.68

BAMTEARET R T 2RKRE

Share options granted under DSFH Share Option Scheme:

R¥H 5l By EH Cagsd SRTEE(ET)E()

Vesting Exercise Exercise price

Date of grant Type period period per share (HK$)

Note (i)
2011512 A12H DRETH 2011F12A12B8% 2012F 12 A12HZ
201612 A 128 201712 A 128

12/12/2011 Cash-settled 12/12/2011-12/12/2016 12/12/2012-12/12/2017 38.35
201212 A 21 A MREL N 20124612 A21 B % 2013512 F218%
201712 A218 201812 A21 8

21/12/2012 Cash-settled 21/12/2012-21/12/2017 21/12/2013-21/12/2018 31.88
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49. LIRHAEEREREMEE @)

it

(i) 2014 5 AR T 2 RIE 2 1TEE D BLAFR
TEBMARH SR RIR2014455 A KX 20144F 4

AR R T ARE -

U 8 B R RERR 2 A B £ 7 E5 7l 3R B 2 32t 4n

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
Note:

(i) The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were

adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both DSBG and DSFH in May
2014 and April 2014 respectively.

Share-based compensation charged to income statement is as

T follows:

2014 2013
VAR #E =2 A5F 2 SRR Equity-settled options 3,754 4,241
AR & 2 2 SRRk i Cash-settled options 1,868 22,211
=L Total 5,622 26,452
UB2F(T 28 RE Cash-settled options

H L AR (ERR ARAE ST BIFTR T 2 AR & ST AR AR
7 AEEE R4S A #ER31,677,000% 7T (2013
£ : 29,809,00087T) B MZERRERATELZ
B & - ZABETEE T (v) K& RSB INTE
ERZH - WAFEDIA =B EEENIZ
TR FEMEBFTH o

With respect to the cash-settled options granted under the two share
option schemes described above, the Group has recorded liabilities
of HK$31,677,000 (2013: HK$29,809,000) in respect of the fair value
of the share options at the reporting date. These do not include cost
separately borne by DSFH as stated under note (v) below. The fair
value is determined by using the Trinomial Option Pricing Model, and
based on the major assumptions set out in the following tables.

REFRTEEE
DSBG Scheme
2014 2013
2011 2011 5
12812H 12812H
12 December 12 December
®TH Grant date 2011 2011
AHRITEBN12 A1 BZ2REGET) Share price of DSBG as at 31

December (HK$) 12.44 13.64
1508 (OB ) (R ) Exercise price (HK$) (Note (i) 8.91 9.25
TR E (G (i) Expected volatility (Note (ii)) 39.17% 39.72%
FHI(F) Time to maturity (years) <3 <4
42 [ B A1) 2 (7 (i) Risk free rate (Note (iii)) 0.98% 1.03%
RS X (7 (iv)) Expected dividend rate (Note (iv)) 2.90% 3.80%
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49. DR AERBRMEE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

UBEF(T 22 RE (&) Cash-settled options (Continued)
AF&matE
DSFH Scheme
2014 2013
20124 2011 4 20124 2011 &
128210 128128 125218 127128
(& (v) (& (v) (&) (FF (v))
21 December 12 December 21 December 12 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
#®FH Grant date (Note (v)) (Note (v)) (Note (v)) (Note (v))
AFEmN12 43182 Share price of DSFH as at
(B (A7) 31 December (HK$) 45.25 45.25 44.45 44.45
17058 (B7T) (R () Exercise price (HK$) (Note (i)) 31.88 38.35 33.25 40.00
TREHRIE (3 (i) Expected volatility (Note (ii)) 34.76% 34.76% 34.31% 34.31%
FH(F) Time to maturity (years) <4 <3 <5 <4
42 3 B 8 2R (3 (i) Risk free rate (Note ((iii)) 1.24% 0.98% 1.40% 1.03%
Bt REE (5L (iv)) Expected dividend rate (Note (iv)) 3.02% 3.02% 3.94% 3.94%
o Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

2014 F 5 ARIE T 2 RBEZITEBEERAFR
TERE RS R D BIN2014F5 A K 20145 4
AT AR T LA ZE -

DR ERIZIERETE B 2 AR E —F AR
TRERRH SN ERARENE - B]R
FRIBERFIRITRE R A S BAE 2 KIE - 8
ERANBRE 2 FHRRZREHIRE - /B R
MZER -

BERMNESEMFRLEEIEESTERZ I

AR SRR ER S MmE] ©

ZERBREZ X HBZERABDRIFT S AL -
K # € R/ B Bt &% R AR 7 5 324,600,000 7 7T
(2013 4F : 3,049,000 %7T) A & R Wi AR TR
1,551,000/ 7T (20134F : 1,881,000/ 7)) ©

(0]

(i)

(iii)

The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were
adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both DSBG and DSFH in May
2014 and April 2014 respectively.

Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility of
the share price of DSBG and DSFH, as applicable, during the one year
period immediately preceding the measurement date and is based on
the assumption that there is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the time to maturity of the options and the historical
volatility of the share prices of DSBG and DSFH as set out above.

Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity.

Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends.

The cost of these options is borne by the holding company, DSFH. DSFH
has recorded liabilities of HK$4,600,000 (2013: HK$3,049,000) and a
charge to income statement of HK$1,551,000 (2013: HK$1,881,000) for
these options.

ZERTERIRSENEREE 2 RBRER
2014512 A 31 H 419,074,000 7% 7T (2013 4F :
14,478,000/87T) ©

The total intrinsic value of the share options for which the grantees’
right to receive cash on a vested basis as of 31 December 2014 is
HK$19,074,000 (2013: HK$14,478,000).
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49. DR AERBRMEE

LURESZ (28R

g Bt RETIRI TSR BT EIFTR T 2 AR S A4
REE  ERRTHZRAFETIA=ZIEA BEE
EEXFTE - FAR THRREZ A FETIHA
TR FEREGHE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

49. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)
Equity-settled options

With respect to the equity-settled options granted under the DSBG
Scheme described above, the fair value is determined by using the
Trinomial Option Pricing Model at the date when the options are
granted. The assumptions used to estimate the fair value of the
options granted during the year are as follows:

20143 A 26 H

£FH Grant date 26 March 2014
ANHRITEBNETFHZRE (BT) Share price of DSBG as at grant date (HK$) 11.26
11EE (BT) Exercise price (HK$) 12.13
TEEHRIE (FE (i) Expected volatility (Note (i) 42.35%
.:L\Hxﬁégﬁﬁ (%) Option life (years) 6
3 A& (5 (i) Risk free rate (Note (ii)) 1.71%
i‘Eu‘l'Hx L (5 (iif)) Expected dividend rate (Note (iii)) 3.44%
R D AFEBT) Fair value of a share in the option (HK$) 3.35-3.5
G Note:
(i) ?EEJWBUP EIERERR T B ZATBAE —FRFTR (i) Expected volatility is determined by calculating the historical volatility

SEMAEA AR METE - WRERBAE K
ﬁﬁ%lhﬁz&%vﬁiiﬁmmh%ZE%
RZEHEE  WESANER -

(i) EERAESNETRERFHZEEINEES
ERZEE -

@iy  TEFTARBETNIEAE T H 2 BEREME] ©

of the share price of DSBG, as applicable, during the one year period
immediately preceding the grant date and is based on the assumption
that there is no material difference between the expected volatility over
the time to maturity of the options and the historical volatility of the share
prices of the DSBG as set out above.

(ii) Risk free rate is the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes yield of relevant
time to maturity at grant date.

(iii) Expected dividend rates are based on historical dividends at grant date.
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49. DR AERBRMEE

2013 F N IR T R HE -

49. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (continued)

No share option was granted in the year of 2013.
20145 B - RFTIRITEE TR AR © #RuL

REAE 2 AR MERBIAE R AR AR 2 EE - 7
BZHEN TR -

In May 2014, DSBG completed a rights issue. The terms of the share
options have been adjusted accordingly to maintain the value of the
options. The adjustments are set out in the table below.

BT 2RBRERE REMETFOTEE 2 EEHN

Movements in the number of share options granted and their related

T weighted average exercise prices are as follows:
P GELhE i ERH
DSBG Scheme DSFH Scheme
2014 2013 2014 2013
il 332! il 3371

RFTHE it BTIRE RFURE it BTIRE
PN E GEL] (Bm) AHEEE TER AHER (#7) IN i R
Al e (R () ARET 1168 AR (&) El 1168

222

vt G Weighted Rir%A (ET) k%8 Weighted BOHE (#7)

Number of average Number of Weighted Number of average Number of Weighted

DSBG shares exercise  DSBG shares average  DSFH shares exercise  DSFH shares average

in share price in share exercise in share price in share exercise

options (HKS) options price options (HKS) options price

granted (Note (i) granted (HKS) granted (Note (i) granted (HKS)

—-A-A At 1 January 11,800,000 8.92 11,800,000 8.9 400,000 3747 608,950 44.95

& Granted 300,000 1213 - - = = = -

SR 2 BE Adjusted for rights issue 466,401 8.66 - - 17,207 35.92 - -

fRhick:d Expired - - - - - - (208,950) 50.28

Bfif Exercised (166,168) 7.9 - - = = - -

BEE/ 2 Cancelled/forfeited (249,251) 7.9 - - - - - -

1274318 At 31 December 12,150,982 869 11,800,000 8.92 47,1 35.92 400,000 3147

12331 BAfIE Exercisable at 31 December 6,293,590 8.69 3,920,000 9.05 219,045 36.50 130,000 38.44
&t Note:

(i) 20145 AR T 2 RIRE 2 1TEEDFHAFIR
TEBERRF D FIN2014F5 AKX 2014F 4
RASER 2 R FIATE o

RFERITEBE N 2014 F 12 A 31 HARITE 2 R
BERFARNMBITEREHRR T AR Z1TEE
NF7.9678 L% 11.6878 70 (20134 : /1 F8.27
BILEQ9.258 L) - REMBFEHFKRE HITE
HiA3.32F (20134F : 4.30%F ) - AR AEEE
EREATERABABEAZAFTSBHEERR
- R2014F12 A 31 BRTTEZ AF L R
BERFARTSRER T ARRZITEENT
31.88/ 8L % 38.35 /8 7L (2013 £F : /1 F 33.25 %
JLZE40.00%87T) + REMNETFHFIERE L1T{E
7/33.334 (20134 : 4.334)
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(i) The exercise prices of share options granted prior to May 2014 were
adjusted for the rights issues concluded by both DSBG and DSFH in May
2014 and April 2014 respectively.

DSBG’s share options outstanding as of 31 December 2014 have
exercise prices in the range of HK$7.96 to HK$11.68, adjusted for
DSBG’s rights issue in the year (2013: HK$8.27 to HK$9.25), and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.32 years (2013: 4.30
years). In respect of directors and senior executives of the Group,
their applicable DSFH’s share options outstanding as of 31 December
2014 have exercise prices in the range of HK$31.88 to HK$38.35,
adjusted for DSFH’s rights issue in the year (2013: HK$33.25 to
HK$40.00), and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.33
years (2013: 4.33 years).
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50. TRIEEHEEENHH

5B AR ERBIERITOERN AT A H e BB E
RBBEZEHRLE  URABFHEEELNH
FRENRBEREENBEAE AT HERE
ERBEBETEHE -

() FHAEEHBIEEY S EMBERR
RAHHECEMEERAE

AEBBBERTETREEARAR(EH
BRREEDRARZIEFREFPETER

BERS °

REER 2B RENEBRRER
CRHRNEEHEEEBPREE 2 BIKGIE
HFE R FERTRIEAREE - R20145F12 A31H
2013512 A31 H - 3% 55 BEWGRIE R
BERMFEIS R 2 [FEWGRIBERIERIER ]
FRIEMA © ¥HIH 2 SREN T °

SEKRT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50.

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

Financial assets and liabilities are presented net when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle them on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously.

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement and offset on the statement of financial
position

The Group maintains an account with the Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”) through which it
conducts securities trading transactions for its customers.

In presenting the amounts due from and to HKSCC, the Group
has offset the gross amount of the accounts receivable from
and the gross amount of the accounts payable to HKSCC. As
at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the net amount
was a receivable and was included in “Accounts receivable and
prepayments” in Note 35. The amounts offset are shown below.

Group and Bank 2014 2013

FEREE R REH 2 SRR

FEN BB RET 2RI

FERE BT RIEEFH

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

Gross amount of accounts

receivable from HKSCC 88,886 23,531
Gross amount of accounts

payable to HKSCC (7,623) (12,441)
Net amount due from HKSCC 81,263 11,090
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50.

(2)
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TREERSBENEHE@

ZSFEGERHERAEMBRRE
NEHEzEMEEREE

BREFERELH

AEESRAREAIFHFIILARFR
BERHE WRIEGEERR - FEAEER
FRE - —BHREDNEMN  EPEXR
GHFIZRERRZTERIE - MMAEE
RAERHSRFREEE - WIFELED
M MERSFIRFEUNRBELEER
—RISENBHRARTHHEEERAE -

TRIVRZ L - BEARMN 2 BT
BEZHRBRBEMORNSETAF

1B

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50.

(b)

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position

Master netting arrangements

To mitigate credit risks, the Group enters into master netting
arrangements with counterparties whenever possible. Netting
agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs,
all outstanding transactions with the counterparty will be
terminated and all amounts outstanding will be settled on
a net basis. Except for the event of default, all outstanding
transactions with the counterparty are settled on a gross basis
and generally do not result in offsetting the assets and liabilities
in the statement of financial position.

The following tables present details of financial instruments
subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements.
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50. TRIEEHESENHHE @

(2) RERFERFERBEMBRR X

AEEzEMEEREE @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)

AE g A 2 (&) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
PERIBRRRANE 2 RELR
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
RBHRRA B RRRR
HizBRa vk
SHAREE EEFE
BEZER  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $RIE
BEAE  recognised financial financial assets  (BFFBLHERR)
Gross amounts liabilities set off presented in the Financial EhBEHA
SERES Group and Bank of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral 7
0145128317 At 31 December 2014 financial assets financial position financial position  non-cash collateral) received Net amount
AR Financial assets
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments 386,035 5 386,035 (367,976) 5 18,059
EREBRRRANE  EHEH
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
REHRRA REBRRRA
bap ARt vk
SREELR BETE
BEZSE  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $RIE
BE4E recognised financial  financial liabiities  (BEFHLHEAR)
Gross amounts assets set off presented in the Financial BERRSER
L Group of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral FE
01451231 A At 31 December 2014 financial liabilities financial position financial position  non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
SRER Financiel iabiltes
i Deposits from banks 89,421 - 89,421 (89,421) - -
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments 1,038,590 - 1,038,590 (367,976) (141,297) 59,317
REEERGINAR Trading liabities 5,597,614 - 5,597,614 (5,552,666 - 44,948
AR R KRR Other accounts and accruals - - - - - -
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
50. TREEHESBENEHE@® 50. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)
(2) SFERETHERBEEVEMRRE (b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
REHzEeRMEERERE @ agreement but not offset on the statement of financial
position (Continued)
AE g S At B 2 (1) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
UEEEHERRRNEE 2 EBLE

Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position

REHRRER MR RRA

HiER SiTeeR
SHERAE BRTE
BEZER  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $RIE
BE4%E recognisedfinancial  financialliabiities (B FBEERR)
Gross amounts assets set off presented in the Financial CERRSHER
# Bank of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral 78
0145128318 At 31 December 2014 financial liabilities financial position financial position  non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
Rk Financial labilties
#7ER Deposits from banks 89,421 - 89,421 (89,421) - -
ESRIE Derivative financial instruments 1,033,231 - 1,033,231 (367,976) (141,297) 523,958
RIEEERENAE Trading liabilities 5,597,614 - 5,597,614 (5,552,666) - 44948
HfbR RER Other accounts and accruals - - - - - -
URESBARAH S AELE
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial posttion
NEBRIER REBHRRR
YizBED fmz e
cHAREE HETE
BEA%®  Grossamounts of Net amounts of SHTA
BELE  recognised financia financial assets ~ (BIEFEEEAR)
Gross amounts liabiltes set off presented in the Financial BUERLER
SEREN Group and Bank of recognised  in the statement of statement of  instruments (including Cash collateral i ]
201312 A31A At 31 December 2013 financial assets financial posttion financial position  non-cash collateral) received Net amount
EHAE Financial assets
it eRIE Derivative financial instruments 527,272 - 521,272 (435,971) - 91,301

226  AHBITAERAR | 2014545 I



B AR R M ot
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(LAEREFThz5I7R)

50. TRIEEHERSENHHE @

(2) RERFERFERBEMBRR X

REHEzTHEEREE @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

50. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities subject to netting
agreement but not offset on the statement of financial

position (Continued)

AE g S At B 2 (1) Master netting arrangements (Continued)
UREBBHARAHE AELE
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial posttion
RABHARA RBIRRRR
e B vk
HEEET BEFE
BEZ%®  Grossamounts of Net amounts of SRHIA
BEEE  recognised financial  financlal liablities  (BE5FE2HAR)
Gross amounts assets set off presented in the Financial BERRLER
58 Group of recognised  in the statement of statement of ~ instruments (including Cash collateral i ]
013%F128317 At 31 December 2013 financial liabilities financial postion financial position ~ non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
Rk Financial labilties
H7ER Deposits from banks 408,051 - 408,051 (408,051) - -
fiEemIA Derivative financial instruments 915,133 - 915,133 (435971) (66,606) 412,556
RIEEEREHAR Trading liabilties 3,362,473 - 3,362,473 (3,301,183) - 61,290
HfbR RER Other accounts and accruals 97862 - 97862 (97,869) - -
NEL Ve PG
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financlal position
RERER REBRRERA
YirzE B lnwka:
SRARLR BEFE
BiEA%®  Grossamounts of Net amounts of $RIA
8E%E  recognisedfinancial  financial labilites (AR EAG)
Gross amounts assets set off presented in the Financial BERRSER
i1 Bank of recognised in the statement of statement of ~ instruments (including Cash colateral i ]
201312 A31A At 31 December 2013 financial liabilities financial posttion financial position ~ non-cash collateral) placed out Net amount
SRER Financial iablties
HER Deposits from banks 408,051 - 408,051 (408,051) - -
fESMIA Derivative financial instruments 907 453 - 907 453 (435,971) (66,606) 404,876
REEERGHAR Trading liabiltes 3,362,473 - 3,362,473 (3,301,183) - 61,290
AR E RER Other accounts and accruals 97862 - 97862 (97,862) - -
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TIREBARRE 2 ERHE R IR 2 B M
MER - BWIFLBEAH B REZ A

1. BEXREHR

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

The following information relates to the Group and is disclosed as part
of the accompanying information to the financial statements and does
not form part of the audited financial statements.

1. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO

2014 & 20134
12831 H 12 A31H
As at As at

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

ARFRIE
— HBARIE— R
——f

%5

0E

&

2014412 A31 H X% 2013412 A31 B2 &K%
R LR TARRITHEGE MR (B IERPI R ERIT
RARFRIT(FE)) RIBCIRTTE (BR) R AINAE
BERGBE I ERATENSHLLE - ZEATR
REENFTHEEZEITBREBRIRERR

K%Eﬁﬁ%?i%%iﬂﬁﬁ"‘Em?ﬁ?\iﬁ%ﬁ/:f%ﬂ%fﬂ 2
BFERT R EREER R ERITAR
—rﬁ@%&?%ﬁm%ﬁ*AEﬁ%ﬁm&k%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ(EPI)
BESTHBAPEBITEEENRE - A5E it
ML R ERHEE -

RETEGRITEERE) R FEAEEEER
R E MR EE 2 BN R B FISARAIRITR R
http://www.dahsing.com + 7 RJAZ LA N B @A
www.dahsing.com/tc/html/aboutus/regulatory_

disclosures.html 3 A °
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Capital adequacy ratio

— Common Equity Tier 1 11.4% 10.4%
- Tier 1 11.4% 10.4%
— Total 16.3% 14.5%

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013 represents the consolidated position of the Bank (covering
BCM and DSB China) computed on Basel lll basis in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules. This capital adequacy ratio takes into
account market risk and operational risk.

The Bank as a locally incorporated bank in Hong Kong is subject
to the minimum capital adequacy ratio requirement under the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. BCM is subject to Macau banking
regulations and DSB China is subject to China banking regulations.
The above ratios of the Group are calculated for reference only.

For the purposes of compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
additional information relating to the Group’s regulatory capital and
other related disclosures is published in the Bank’s website at www.
dahsing.com and is accessible at the following direct link:
www.dahsing.com/en/html/aboutus/regulatory_disclosures.html.
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2. RBESHE

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

2. LIQUIDITY RATIO

&£E Group 2014 2013
MENE @ L% Liquidity ratio
— 81T (BB ERE) - Bank (Hong Kong offices) 45.5% 46.7%
—&H - Group 45.3% 46.2%

RBTEEMERZ MNP E ST LR RARITEE
WERNERFAN12ME A SEE AN TR E
SHENBEFIH - ZRBDESLERRER
TTERGDIEAMKRARTDEE -

AEBZRBESHLERARITRBRITHEA
ARERFER12EASEEANTORBESRL
KNBHETFOH - ZRnBDESHLER2EFTER
TTEIGPIE ARANTTEE

RIBBRBRITERED - ERRTIER—RREE
At RAKBRETRBES L RFEER -

The liquidity ratio of the Hong Kong offices of the Bank is calculated
as the simple average of each calendar month’s average liquidity ratio
for the twelve months of the financial year of the Bank’s Hong Kong
offices computed in accordance with the Fourth Schedule of the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.

The liquidity ratio of the Group is calculated as the simple average of
each calendar month’s average liquidity ratio for the twelve months of
the financial year of the Bank and its banking subsidiaries computed
with reference to the methods set out in the Fourth Schedule of the
Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

Only the Bank, as a Hong Kong incorporated authorized institution,
is subject to the minimum liquidity ratio requirement under the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.
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3. SMNERBS

T AR2014F12 A31 HZzE T MAE@ERNE
e 7 HNEEFEB (£ B 2 HNE F RE B 38 FT A INE F
10%) @ REBEZ L8 -

M20145%12 A31 B %2013 12 831 BEA%EE
K ASRITI AT I AR M NS5 B8R 558

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

corresponding comparative balances.

The following sets out the net foreign exchange position in USD and
other individual currency that constitutes more than 10% of the total
net position in all foreign currencies as at 31 December 2014 and the

The Group and the Bank did not have any structural foreign exchange
position as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Het o SEET
- b Il Other Total
- Group T AR¥  Australian Macau foreign foreign
2014512 A31H At 31 December 2014 US dollars Renminbi dollars Pataca  currencies  currencies
HERBEST Equivalent in HK$ millions
RERE Spot assets 57,240 25,030 1,275 6,894 1,874 92,313
BEAR Spot liabilities (24,667) (24,960) (3,324) (8,176) (4,718) (65,845)
ZHBEA Forward purchases 15,767 5,900 2,150 - 5,371 29,188
RHEL Forward sales (47,028) (5,559) (146) = (2,529) (55,256)
&/ (8)®%8 Net long/(short) position 1,312 411 (45) (1,282) 4 400
Hip N INEBE
RPIE Other Total
3] Group E AR Macau foreign foreign
201312 A31H At 31 December 2013 US dollars Renminbi pataca  currencies  currencies
HERBEST Equivalent in HK$ millions
RERE Spot assets 45,668 26,788 5,712 3,678 81,846
BEER Spot liabilities (23,461) (26,038) (7,218) (9,068) (65,785)
PN Forward purchases 16,805 2,097 250 9,140 28,292
SR Forward sales (37,282) (2,261) - (3,756) (43,299)
&/ (1) 8558 Net long/(short) position 1,730 586 (1,256) 6) 1,054
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

3. SMNERBR @) 3. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS (continued)
Hith s SIS
Other Total
SRAT Bank s AR foreign foreign
201412831 H At 31 December 2014 US dollars Renminbi  currencies currencies
HERBEHBT Equivalent in HK$ millions
NEBE Spot assets 54,527 10,300 2,558 67,385
REAE Spot liabilities (22,574) (9,854) (7,462) (39,890)
=HIEA Forward purchases 15,767 5,900 7,503 29,170
RAIE W Forward sales (46,859) (5,559) (2,639) (55,057)
/() 8F58 Net long/(short) position 861 787 (40) 1,608
H b 5N SNEBEE
Other Total
87T Bank T AR foreign foreign
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 US dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
HERAS Equivalent in HK$ millions
HE&EE Spot assets 43,400 11,312 3,048 57,760
REAE Spot liabilities (21,636) (10,494) (8,456) (40,586)
mHIE A Forward purchases 16,805 2,097 9,134 28,036
REE N Forward sales (37,281) (2,261) (3,732) (43,274)
&/(5) 8% Net long/(short) position 1,288 654 (6) 1,936
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4. FFERRBR

() #ITEs BB FERRRE (LEXA (@)
BOERUZERRRENEI LS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Gross advances to customers by industry sector
classified according to the usage of loans and analysed

#) by percentage covered by collateral
20145128 31H 201312 A31H
At 31 December 2014 At 31 December 2013
ExaE Bues
ZEARRE SHARRE
ZEM ZAD
% of gross % of gross
REBEH advances REELH advances
Outstanding covered Outstanding covered
balance by collateral balance by collateral
EBBHLRNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Traew Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEEE - Property development 1,741,185 67.7 2,015,552 72.8
—WELRE - Property investment 15,752,867 98.9 15,122,078 98.3
—ZREE - Financial concerns 821,938 62.1 740,178 46.5
-RELRL - Stockbrokers 133,234 55.0 109,264 90.7
—HEETEE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,497,466 90.1 4,006,724 95.7
—8ER - Manufacturing 2,971,483 91.3 1,975,672 915
— 88 LB T A - Transport and transport equipment 4,612,041 94.2 5,050,680 95.9
— &R - Recreational activities 277,832 55.9 300,505 12.2
— AR - Information technology 22,938 67.1 24,916 82.1
—Eft - Others 5,036,198 84.4 3,571,083 82.5
35,867,182 91.6 32,916,652 92.0
(EVN Individuals
-BE [EEEHEE ] - Loans for the purchase of
[AAZEREHE & flats in Home Ownership
[HEBEEFE BFER Scheme, Private Sector
Participation Scheme and
Tenants Purchase Scheme 962,720 100.0 1,080,873 100.0
-BEHMEENEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 19,451,578 100.0 18,041,141 99.9
—ERRER - Credit card advances 3,838,208 - 3,949,544 -
—Hih - Others 8,355,472 35:3 6,880,302 31.0
32,607,978 .7 29,951,860 70.9
EABERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong 68,475,160 82.1 62,868,512 81.9
Eo5mE (1)) Trade finance (Note (1)) 6,517,342 62.8 5,918,454 61.3
TEBRBEAIMEBMER (7(2)) Loans for use outside Hong Kong
(Note (2)) 30,245,535 648 29,199,196 63.9
105,238,037 76.0 97,986,162 1153
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
4. EFEFEREREBER@m 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
() ITEDE2EFEREE (LLERA (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZNERUZEFRRENEI LD classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (@ by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)
G Note:
(1) LI RZBERERSERASERE (1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
B2 ARSI moEARSED - HAOM imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
BOMME UNEREIRESCZE and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
Koo guidelines issued by the HKMA.
THRBEREZESMEER(BIEARRTT Trade finance loans not involving Hong Kong (including trade
ZEIMRITHBARRTFZESRE) & finance extended by the overseas subsidiary banks of the Bank)
{6618,230,000/%7C (2013412 431 H : totalling HK$618,230,000 (31 December 2013: HK$992,627,000)
992,627,000 7T ) £ 85 [FEF B LASME are classified under Loans for use outside Hong Kong.

FREER] BT -

2) EBESBUIMEANERBREETEARE 2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
BERBUIMERZER - customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.
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(AR o R) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
4. EFEFEREREBER@m 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
() ITEDE2EFERETE (ULER (@) Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZPERUZHEFRRENED l:ls’J} classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (@ by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)
AT S BREFERAEE10% s E/ITT For each industry sector reported above with loan balance
% HEGREEREE - @SR R ERIFnER constituting 10% or more of the total balance of advances to
BHMEMEFRBEEFERT customers, the attributable amount of impaired loans, overdue loans,

and individually and collectively assessed loan impairment allowances
are as follows:

E7¢ b

BHREER
HRiB3EA 18 31 5% GATHE
Gross AEER REER

advances Individually Collectively
REBES HEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
2014512 H31H At 31 December 2014 balance loans months allowances allowances
EEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IaEsH Industrial, commercial
and financial
—MERE - Property investment 15,752,867 - - - 12,357
fAA Individuals
-BEEHEMEEMEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 19,451,578 - - - 1,074
ERBIMERRER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 30,245,535 217,649 172,414 135,109 170,031
Exes
BHIREE
A3 EA (& AR IRERHE
Gross HEEE HEEE
advances Individually Collectively
REELEH HEER overdue assessed assessed
Outstanding Impaired for over 3 impairment impairment
201312 A 31 H At 31 December 2013 balance loans months allowances allowances
ERBERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEew Industrial, commercial
and financial
—WIERE - Property investment 15,122,078 - - - 8,614
(YN Individuals
~-BEEMEEWEER - Loans for the
purchase of other
residential
properties 18,041,141 - - - 674
EEBIMERRIER Loans for use outside
Hong Kong 29,199,196 273,679 216,275 177,723 110,022

234  AHBITARAR | 2014555 I



REEE LTI S B B Y

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

(LAEREFThzgI7R)

4., EFEFERERBF @

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (Continued)

(R) RITESBEZ2EFERLE (ULEXKA (@@ Gross advances to customers by industry sector
ZNERUZEFRRENEI LD classified according to the usage of loans and analysed
) (@ by percentage covered by collateral (Continued)

TREZRFENTEWMRRIRR I EENREE The amount of new allowances charged to income statement, and the

TR ER TR 2 W SH R

amount of impaired loans and advances written off during the year are
disclosed in the tables below.

BEBREE

HisH 2 &%

KEEEIE  Recoveries

FMEEE  of advances

E{5E# Loans written  written off in

Allowances off as previous
2014 2014 written back  uncollectible years
ERAFERANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
Trgea Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEKRE - Property investment - - 1
A Individuals
—BEEMEENEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties - - 614
ERBAIMEANER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 22,653 263,913 8,335
WEIBREE
iz = G
RefEE Recoveries
EFMMiEZ  of advances
OB Loans written  written off in
Allowances off as previous
20134 2013 written back  uncollectible years
EEBEANER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IrEem Industrial, commercial and financial
—MERE - Property investment - - _
EA Individuals
—BEHEMEENEER — Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties - - B85
TEBBAIMEBHER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 15,568 14,641 13,221
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4. EBFERRBR@
(Z) BB KREFBTEEFNERE

REEEER(RITE(HE) (BFT) R
82014) - AT H B ARMEIFRITRE S WHRE
ZAWMNDL2RERSERE T BRAEIFRITRE
F o ERER R K P PP 2 FRRITRR B HF 5
MEEESFERREASE - B A BEARRT
REARITHBARR T 2 hBEARERFHER
B o

R R B AR R TTIEE P BB AT (215
AETREBINRITHBLAART 2R EARE
Pt YR R BCR T () RADZ
FTEZSHFERIFIT - H013E 2 HEKT
TEET] -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
(b) Non-bank Mainland exposures

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure)
(Amendment) Rules 2014 with reference to the HKMA return of non-
bank Mainland exposures, which includes the Mainland exposures
extended by the Bank and its Mainland subsidiary bank only.

No restatement for 2013 comparative figures is made as the analysis
of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the categories of non-
bank counterparties under the prevailing Banking (Disclosure) Rules,
which includes the Mainland exposures extended by the Bank and its
overseas subsidiaries.

BEAERR HERERN

HIEREE HIEAEE
On-balance  Off-balance BeRe
sheet sheet Total
2014 4 2014 exposure exposure  exposures
1. RREM PREGHEN#ER 1. Central government, central
HItBARIMAE AR government-owned entities and their
([BERA]) subsidiaries and joint ventures (“JV”s) 8,356,840 57,758 8,414,598
2. AT AR HEARERER 2. Local governments, local
HItBARIMAE AR government-owned entities and
their subsidiaries and JVs 2,686,695 50,814 2,737,509
3. EEEFREAMERNE 3. PRC nationals residing in Mainland
HA B st i M7 ) B A China or other entities incorporated
HItBARIMAE AR in Mainland China and their
subsidiaries and JVs 8,665,363 1,791,678 10,457,041
4. REELME-HERZ 4. Other entities of central government
hRBTEE S not reported in item 1 above 123,365 - 123,365
5. REELMEZIHZRZ 5. Other entities of local governments
1 77 BRSO E A not reported in item 2 above = - -
6. BEEFEMMMINZERS, 6. PRC nationals residing outside Mainland
TE AR B A 3 A SN L OB China or entities incorporated outside
s R B EF A B A A Mainland China where the credits are
granted for use in Mainland China 7,457,039 222,237 7,679,276
7. EtRSETF - HREHEE 7. Other counterparties where the exposures
HRBAEFRTREP are considered to be non-bank
X Mainland China exposures = = =
27,289,302 2,122,487 29,411,789
ARBITRE AR THIE A Total assets of the Bank and its Mainland
BB ERECEES subsidiary bank after provision 172,905,559
BEBBERANBELEE On-balance sheet exposures as
BETASL percentage of total assets 15.78%
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4. EFEFRBIR @) 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)
(Z) B KFEIESRITEEZ FNEREE @) (b) Non-bank Mainland exposures (Continued)
Bl
EERRERA EAEABERI EER
HIERER HRAEE Individually
On-balance  Off-balance B assessed
sheet sheet Total impairment
2013 F 2013 exposure exposure exposures allowances
B K RE fE Mainland entities 15,977,192 2,878,378 18,855,570 114,235
HHBIAEEAINA R R A Companies and individuals outside
s RE BN Mainland where the credits are
HBIARERE granted for use in the Mainland 8,432,247 249,666 8,681,913 79,011
Hha 5% F M E R RE Other counterparties the exposures
ABEAFERITERFRER to whom are considered to be
non-bank Mainland exposures 239,374 - 239,374 -
24,648,813 3,128,044 27,776,857 193,246
5 Note:
i ERBEaERFEREBREMHEEREZS The balances of exposures reported above include gross advances and other
B o balances of claims on the customers.

(R) REE S MZEFEREERAHE () Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue

EN loans by geographical area
BEFERZEBEATIHRIEE ZEREAKREZEE 2 Advances to customers by geographical area are classified according
RSEFHEHIE - —RiME * EERWER to the location of the counterparties after taking into account the
FANEEISHFIR @R - B S EE transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies when an advance is
% o guaranteed by a party located in an area which is different from that

of the counterparty.

TRRABEPENRMARE - @ARREEFER @ B The following table analyses gross advances to customers,
EEEZRERNEEGES T HBEERERES individually impaired advances to customers, overdue advances to
T o customers and individually and collectively assessed impairment

allowances by geographical area.
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4. EFERRBR @ 4. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS (continued)

(R) REES S MZEFEREAEREHE (c) Analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
ENC)) loans by geographical area (Continued)

B Bl {E 18 Bl ¥4 AT

EFEM BEFEM BHER HEERE AEER

#%  Individually EX  Individually  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advances to advancesto advances to impairment impairment

201412831 H At 31 December 2014 customers customers customers allowances allowances

BB Hong Kong 83,856,418 217,196 251,710 123,521 144,074

H China 8,278,746 110,874 44,674 81,114 98,321

JBFT Macau 11,443,268 20,153 25,442 13,045 44,671

Hth Others 1,659,605 64 64 64 4,003

105,238,037 348,287 321,890 217,744 291,069

{ERRE (EhEEE fRE T

BEPEXK BEFER BER P HEER B LR

4%  Individually B3 Individually  Collectively

Gross impaired Overdue assessed assessed

advancesto  advancesto  advances to impairment impairment

2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 customers customers customers allowances allowances

BB Hong Kong 77,492,360 212,953 180,209 120,956 100,032

R E China 8,890,132 140,535 83,166 111,850 50,788

JBFT Macau 10,196,127 27,369 34,013 11,431 44,572

HoAh, Others 1,407,543 83 83 57 2,340

97,986,162 380,940 297,471 244,294 197,732

(T) GERERIAEBITHIFRREN (d) Credit commitments and contingent liabilities analysed

B LD by percentage covered by collateral
2014 2013
ZERAmRE AR mIRE
=8 k- WE2L ok WA
Contract % covered Contract % covered
amount by collateral amount by collateral

WIS EREEMEERRE 2 Financial guarantees

DEZN=RE and other credit related
contingent liabilities 1,487,700 171 2,795,495 40.3
EFEEREMEEER 2 Loan commitments
A and other credit related

commitments 69,193,856 9.5 67,734,378 7.6

70,681,556 9.6 70,529,873 8.8
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() FERBZERER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
OPERATIONAL RISKS

The capital charge for each class of exposures are summarised as

follows:

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

2014 2013
T REAL RS R B R Sovereign exposures 1,916 3,680
N R e Public Sector Entity exposures 22,981 29,342
ﬁETTH Rea & Bank exposures 1,032,642 772,721
B 5 R bR Securities firm exposures 1,702 3,745
>£@J—WE£7¥K?% Corporate exposures 4,655,599 4,362,830
REIEH Cash items 26,673 29,117
EETERBAE Regulatory retail exposures 866,133 839,902
FEZBER Residential mortgage loans 1,055,622 976,928
H At AR 480 HA R P A HE Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 1,420,181 1,195,176
iﬁﬂﬂ 98 TR Past due exposures 16,432 14,385
AR BRI Securitization exposures 9,818 4,247
AEAGBRARRAE 2 EARNERERE Total capital charge for on-balance
sheet exposures 9,109,699 8,232,073
HEEERER Direct credit substitutes 24,988 47,509
X 518 2 AR E Transactions-related contingencies 15,036 16,294
B 5 2 S AIEE Trade-related contingencies 6,446 8,045
RARTER Forward forward deposits placed = 199
Hoqth e Other commitments 91,546 125,918
EEE4 Exchange rate contracts 132,641 93,662
FIEEH Interest rate contracts 12,496 16,799
ALY Equity contracts 1,437 625
ERMERE Credit valuation adjustment 56,451 62,687
AEAGBRINARAE 2 EARNERERE Total capital charge for
off-balance sheet exposures 341,041 371,738
EERMRZEARERERE Total capital charge for credit risk 9,450,740 8,603,811

BT AR E BB E D EE L 2R i
SNFAIR LA 8% HIEUE E\@E$§%IZEW’%F§“@§
NI

This disclosure is made by multiplying the risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the
institution’s actual “regulatory capital”.

I DAH SING BANK, LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2014

239



RS ELA TR S EL M B

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

240

(BB TFIERIBITR)

5. FE MERRERABRZIEFRER
(%)

(i) THEEBZERER

RPATRABEFELTETISRR ©

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

5. CAPITAL CHARGE FOR CREDIT, MARKET AND
OPERATIONAL RISKS (Continued)

(i) Market risk capital charge

The Bank uses the Standardised Approach for calculating market risk.

2014 2013
B gL BXER  ERINEHE BARER
Risk weighted Capital  Risk weighted Capital
amount charge amount charge
R R BRI (R IR ) Interest rate exposures

(including options) 1,129,588 90,367 1,511,850 120,948

INEREAE (BEESR Foreign exchange exposures
HAtE) (including gold and options) 1,342,400 107,392 1,289,213 103,137
2,471,988 197,759 2,801,063 224,085

2\ e AN BRR B 4R R P R SRR 1T RAFT IR 1T (Fh
B) AT 2 PTEBKIBER

(i) BERRZERER
RIRITHAERIEET B AT EIRIERR -

The risk-weighted amount included those amounts arising from
derivative contracts executed by BCM and DSB China.

(iii) Operational risk capital charge

The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating
operational risk.

2014 2013

RIERR 2 BEARERK

il
o
i
N

6

fSE RAMEE  LEIEEESEH
RARIMBENRTRETEERAHENAS
Mg

(R) aRES

AEFCE2ETRERSERMBEHEEBR
FtA [ AR A B bR E a5 | T
FIHEZK

KERITAR AT | 2014545

Capital charge for operational risk 550,893 466,074

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate governance is concerned with how companies are
managed and controlled, and in particular the role and operation of
the Board of Directors in sustaining sound business integrity and
practices, and effective accountability.

(@) Statement of Compliance

The Group has fully complied with the requirements set out in the
Supervisory Policy Manual entitled “Corporate Governance of Locally
Incorporated Authorized Institutions” issued by the HKMA.
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SREBEMBRE REERENES -

B3 B IFNTEEAKNERERX
ZEGBFEAKENSREEE A
B EE RONEREED - BITRDBR
TR -ZBEXF-B HH-UEAE
EM B RBECERNE L FRITESMIE
o

SEAMEXLIEFTEZHEBEEREZE
SIEHTIRE LRYME SR - MoMNB R EED A B
EEZE MG IRHEMEAEEFR
MEHNER

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)
(b) The Board

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprised a Chairman, seven
executive directors including the Group Chief Executive, and five
non-executive directors. The Board meets at least quarterly. Its
principal roles include the formulation and approval of corporate and
business strategies, review of operations and financial performance,
approval of key policies and annual business plans, and ensuring the
maintenance of sound risk management and regulatory compliance.

Executive directors are appointed to the Board based on their
experience, specialist skill and knowledge of different businesses
of the Group. Non-executive directors bring to the Board their
knowledge and experience of other markets and industries,
guide executive management’s strategy development and policy
implementation, and provide valuable external perspectives in the
Board’s deliberations.

(c) Board and Specialised Committees
(i) Audit Committee

The Group Audit Committee, established by the Board of Dah
Sing Banking Group Limited, has the authority to review all
matters related to financial statements and disclosure, audit
work performed by internal and external auditors, internal
control systems, risk management system and compliance
for the whole Group. The Committee reports to the Board
its observations and comments on any issue that needs
to be brought to the attention of the Board, and makes
recommendations to the Board regarding financial statements
and results announcements.

Three independent non-executive directors comprise the Group
Audit Committee, which meets at least three times a year with
the Group’s senior management, the head of internal audit and
the external auditors. The Chairman of the Committee is an
independent non-executive director with a high level of financial
and audit experience.

The head of internal audit of the Group reports functionally
to the Group Audit Committee. External auditors have direct
access to the Committee for expressing their views and
comments on any matter or concern relating to the Group.
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6. HXEFHEw@m
() EEEREEZEE@W)
(i) FEBREERSHEESS

AEFTZRABREEMARZEG((ARE
BRERZBEG ) BEFERcZES
EERHARTAREERBERER 2
BMEE  mBEREERENREBR
o AEFEeRREREERRLE2RE
BRRBAETERN - UREBEHNEIENEE
EREERER  UHARRITZEHRBEE
RIERTEE ZESRTHEIETE
o) B A A B R e 3R I X TR B R I
EEEK e

RREENAREEGRARIT2MIBIIF
MITEFRAFTRITEEERARTTHA
EUPTAERK

(i) HTEEZ

WTZBEEHER  SETRERNFAE
RRITHTESHEAK - THEZESER
BRUYHEAKENRBELER  MEXE
BRBPIIR A B R A M35l ~ AT R R
B RABERERGHREE  HEER
FREXRBERIBRENBILERF - TK
ZEREREAKRBEXRBLERLETHME
BZ=1E - ATEREEEEESE THES

RFRITARAR | 20144 5 |

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6.
(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(i) Risk Management and Compliance Committee

The RMCC of the Bank is a Board-level committee with the
responsibility to provide guidance and oversight on the Bank’s
risk management strategy and development, review risk
management issues and the resolution thereof, review risk
management policies and major risk limits prior to the approval
by the Board, and review major regulatory compliance issues
and development, and exercise oversight on the compliance
function and activities of the Bank. It has the authority to
conduct any enquiry and review on matters related to risk
management and compliance with risk policy and regulatory
requirements.

The RMCC comprises two independent non-executive directors
of the Bank and the Chief Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group
Limited.

(iii)  Executive Committee

The EC comprises the Chairman, Group Chief Executive and
executive directors of the Bank. It is responsible for developing
and setting the strategy and objectives of the Group. It
provides direction and guidance to business divisions, reviews
business performance, ensures effective internal control
systems, allocates resources, prioritises business initiatives and
investment, and is delegated with the authority of the Board
to exercise the authority and power of the Board on matters
relating to the normal course of business of the Group.

The EC can call upon such members of senior management
for advice or participation in its discussions as it deems
appropriate.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6.
(c)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (continued)
Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(iv)  Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Group Asset and Liability Management Committee
(“ALCO?”) is accountable to the EC of the Group and of the
Bank, and oversees the overall management of the statement of
financial position, liquidity, funding, interest rate risk and market
risk of the Group. It is responsible for formulating business plans
affecting lending business, loan mix, treasury investments,
deposit taking and capital management. It also plays a key role
in the overall risk governance and management of the Group.

ALCO meets every week and its regular tasks include the
review of key business emphasis and development, loan and
deposit changes, funding requirement, liquidity, surplus funds
investments, capital market dealing, and review of market
changes and competition. ALCO also conducts a regular
monthly review of overall statement of financial position and
business performance, including trend analysis and actual
positions against limits and targets.

ALCO is chaired by the Group Chief Executive. Members of
the Committee include executive directors of the Group and
its banking subsidiaries, heads of most business divisions, risk
management and financial control.

(v)  Credit and Risk Management Committees

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving
major credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee
and the Treasury & Investment Risk Committee are the
functional committees responsible for credit policy formulation
and portfolio monitoring of the loan and treasury business
respectively. These committees are all chaired by the Chief
Executive of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited with certain
executive directors and senior business and credit officers as
members. Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and
monitoring requirements are detailed in credit policies.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)
(c) Board and Specialised Committees (Continued)
(vi)  Compliance Committee

The Group Compliance Committee is responsible for overseeing
and guiding the development, maintenance and enhancement
of compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and regulatory
guidelines. The Committee serves to uphold a high level of
awareness and accountability of compliance requirements.
The Group has adopted an ongoing compliance control and
monitoring process within business and support functions to
enhance compliance control.

Members of the Compliance Committee include the Chief
Executive, the Head of GRD, the Head of Legal and Compliance,
a number of executive directors and senior operation and risk
control executives of the Group. Minutes of the Committee
meetings and regular report are submitted to the Group Audit
Committee.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group recognises the changing nature of risk and manages it
through a well-developed management structure.

Risk management is focused on credit risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk and strategic risk.
Credit risk occurs mainly in the Group’s credit portfolios comprising
commercial and retail lending, equipment and hire purchase
financing, and treasury and financial institutions wholesale lending.

Market risk arises mainly from the Treasury Division and is associated
principally with the Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions in the
trading book and its investment securities.

Interest rate risk means the risk to the Group’s financial condition
resulting from adverse movements in interest rates.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses.

Operational risk is the risk of loss (direct or indirect) resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events.
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7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Reputation risk is the risk arising from the potential that negative
publicity regarding the Group’s business practices, operational errors
or operating performance, whether true or not, could cause customer
concerns or negative view, decline in the customer base or market

share, or lead to costly litigation or revenue reductions.

Strategic risk generally refers to the corporate risk that may bring
significant immediate or future negative impact on the financial
and market positions of the Group because of poor strategic
decisions, unacceptable financial performance, and inappropriate
implementation of strategies and lack of effective response to the
market changes.

The other risk management aspects are disclosed below.

(@) The risk management structure of the Group

The Board of Directors has the broad overall responsibility for the
management of all types of risk. The responsibilities of the Board in
relation to risk control are:

° the approval of the overall strategy and policies to ensure
that credit and other risks are properly managed at both the
transaction and portfolio levels;

. the management of risk, both financial and non-financial,
conducted through operational and administrative control
systems including the operation of the Group Audit Committee;
review of key results (against forecasts), operational statistics
and policy compliance; and

o the review of financial performance by analysis against
approved budgets and analysis of variations in key non-financial
measures.

The EC and the RMCC have been delegated the authority to oversee
and guide the management of different risks which are more
particularly managed and dealt with by GRD and different functional
committees.
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7. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Group risk function

The independent Group Risk function is responsible for ensuring that
policies and mandates are established for the Group as a whole. GRD
monitors and reports the Group’s risk positions to the Board via the
RMCC, sets standards for the management of financial risks and data
integrity and ensures that the financial risks are fully considered in the
product planning and pricing process. GRD reviews and manages all
credit and risk exposure policies for the Group including the approval
of exposures to new markets, economic sectors, organisations,
credit products and financial instruments which expose the Group to
different types of risks. In determining risk policies, GRD takes into
account the guidelines established by the HKMA, business direction,
and risk adjusted performance of each business.

The Group’s risk management expertise continues to advance the
overall quality of the Group’s lending portfolios, and enables the
Group to meet the changing regulatory requirements and enter
into credit exposures with the confidence that it understands the
associated risks and rewards.

The Group continues to evolve its risk management capabilities
under the aegis of the Head of GRD, with increasing focus of its risk
strategy on risk and reward and returns on capital. The Group uses
a range of risk measurement and analytical tools in its management
of various risks which it faces in its day-to-day businesses and these
are continually being enhanced and upgraded to reflect the ever-
changing business needs and the requirements of the regulators.

(c) Credit committees

The Group has a Group Credit Committee for approving major
credit limits. The Credit Management Committee and the Treasury &
Investment Risk Committee are the functional committees responsible
for approving and recommending policies, limits and mandates for
risk control in loans and treasury business respectively. The credit risk
function, while set up to support the business areas, reports solely to
the GRD.

(d) Credit risk
(i) Credit risk exposures

The Group uses external credit ratings from the external credit
assessment institutions (“ECAIs”) such as Standard & Poor’s
for the assessment of its credit risk exposures to banks,
sovereigns, public sector entities, and collective investment
schemes as well as securitisation exposures and exposures
to rated corporates. The Group also has an internal grading
methodology for assessing credit exposures to unrated
corporates.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
7. BEREE@m 7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1GEEGEAEE) ()  Credit risk exposures (Continued)
REBEREGERITE(ERN)FADE4EMDIR The process it uses to map ECAI issuer ratings to exposures
EZER BESHETERERAZ AR AEES booked in its banking book follows the process prescribed in
PR A 2 21T AREAR © Part 4 of the Banking (Capital) Rules.
SANER
4ANEE
fiE18AH
REZER
g
Total
FanEERERS exposure
ZERRE FED covered by
Exposures after ARNERE REZAR recognised
recognised redit Risk-weighted REEE quaraniees
risk mitgation amounts BRER Total o
R #E R #E g exposlre recognised
BhARAE (2) (&3] (&2) (&3] Totel sk covered by credi
04§ 214 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated weighted recognised derivative
ek Class of exposures Exposures (Note 2) (Note 3) (Note 2) (Note 3) amounts collateral contracts
158 The Group
B OEEBERR A Onbenceshest
1. TEHE 1. Sovereign 6,715,284 6,715,286 1400757 23,95 - 23,95 - -
2. DNEEl 2. Public Sector Enty 458811 142183 14451 284367 280 287,261 - 118,333
3 % 3, Multlateral
Development
Bank 269,868 269,868 - - - - - -
4 B 4, Bank 33,048,302 32,360,369 2,086,273 12,494764 413,295 12,908,019 - -
5 #E 5, Securities firm 42,545 2,361 40,184 1,180 20,09 PAWIE) - -
6. 8 6. Corporate 71,086,039 19,141,165 45,907,049 12,645,987 45,549,046 56,194,983 4,133,083 1102510
1. HeEE 1. Cashitems 844,509 - 4,612,256 - 333409 383409 - -
8 EESE 8. Regulatory retai 14,901,604 - 14,435,546 - 10,826,660 10,826,660 27,150 179,903
0. [=hE 0. Residential
mortgage loans 31,721,758 - 30,642,182 - 13,195,260 13,195,260 - 1,079,340
10, Effxas 10 Other exposures
BlRiE which are ot
past dug
£XPOSUIES 16,096,555 2,145,650 18,990,106 1,385,009 16,367,295 17,752,264 390,662 -
11, BERRAE 11, Past due exposures 168,462 - 168,462 - 25,402 25,402 43090 17,184
L. BERERD B. Offbalance sheet
1. B 1, Offbalance sheet
TERZA xposures ofier
fEfiE than OTC
TEAI Qervative
1EERR fransactons or
R creditdervtive
A contracts 1,983,233 - 1,983,283 - 1,725,203 1,725,203 16,127 -
2 BIEIRE 2 OTCderatie
%5 fransactions 2,856,896 1,548,757 1,308,139 602,412 1,209760 1,832,172 94,290 241
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
7. BEREE@m 7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
()  1GEEGEAEE) () Credit risk exposures (Continued)
RiAER
e 1ug
fETRAR
fREZAR
g
Total
ElREERBRE eAposure
LR SamERa covered by
Evposures fter BB EgE REER recognised
tecognised crdlt Risk-weighted g Quarantegs
fisk mitigation amourts BlRiER Totd o
il AR Bl R 2 exposure recognised
BhmEsE () (3) (#2) (3) Tota risk covere by credi
M35 013 Total Rated Unrated Rated Unrated Weighted recognised Qerivative
ERER Class of exposures Exposures (Note?) (Note ) (Note ) (Note ) anounts coleteral contracts
HEE The Group
B OEERERR A Onbeanceshest
1. HElE 1, Sovereign 6406987 6406987 1491439 45,99 - 45,99 - -
2. DBl 2. Public Sector Entty 710,688 1,789,779 419 367,956 8,624 366,760 - 118,333
8 ZEEEZT 3 Mt
Development
Bank 3425 3425 - - - - - -
4 B 4, Bank 24,748,866 23,935,678 1,622,170 9,334,578 34,434 9,659,012 - -
5 B57 5, Securites firm 93,630 1345 9,285 672 46,143 46,815 - -
6. 8 6. Corporate 66,504,502 18,443,880 42,654,69% 1220118 42,308 241 54,535,374 4299867 1,185,333
1. BEER 1. Cashtems 876,108 - 4383771 - 363,969 363,969 - -
8 EETE 8. Requlatory retail 14351120 - 13,098,373 - 10,498,780 10,498,780 157312 187,773
0. e 9. Resdentel
mortgage loans 20455,137 - 28240929 - 12,211,600 12,211,600 - 1213807
10 £fKBH 10, Otherexposures
Rl yhich ae not
past due
exposures 13,504,800 2112382 11,434,405 1,694,19 13,245,502 14,939,697 1790 -
1, BHERAE 11, Pastdue exposures 147,811 - 147,811 - 179,815 179,15 28,567 17,589
L. BEBER) B Offodenceshest
1. BEOMTE 1 Offbalance sheet
T8R4 euposures ofher
f‘ﬁﬁé than OTC
TEAH Qervative
LEEEE transactions or
xoNak creditdervtive
RE contracts 373,30 8529 3121301 1,706 24712810 2474576 193,743 -
2. BIMPEIE 2 OTC dervative
25 fransactions 2301192 1,431,638 869,554 534990 853,564 1,388,574 3,651 3,764
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7. BREEm@m)
(T) EERK @
()  1EEEBAE )

(1) AEBEXEESEHHER - MR
&R FF AR EER)

(2 PEEAERIEEEBREETIRZEA
8 AR HE I HE T BT AR 2 BB AR HE (BIR A 5T
BB E BT AR BB AN - BER
BARRATER 2 RBRINEETD2ER T &
EAE @R RREE 2 5 AT EEERITA
PR SR R ETS A E AR R 2 (5 AR
WG B 1T Z 5T ©

(3) AREFAMBE TREASHEETR AR
FRHE o

(i) XBHFEEEREE

AEBEBREENERTEREERAZS
&I\(F%?I\J)mix% BB ARSRE
ENTERSENERRFRIFHMRE
Zﬁﬁ%%ﬁé’]fsﬁf B EANEHZEER
BAEIELHENHE(MANRAEEZH
BEELRE)  ZEERRAEERRAD
BRI EERBRAEREARTRXSY
FOEBRBEERE 2 —HMHMER - btF

EERBAE —REERRKREMER

FERRBEXNREARKESFHBRL
BEHMTKEERREXELFIRERE
e AEESBZRZHHFri— B4 ﬁi%@
LR i%,u%‘i%ﬁruﬂf&%i B o A<
SENRIDFEGE R H—rHZ
WK R EEEE o

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Credit risk exposures (Continued)

Note:

(1) principal amount or credit equivalent amount, as applicable, net of
individually assessed impairment allowances.

2) including exposures with ECAI issue-specific rating and
exposures which have an inferred rating (i.e. exposures which
do not have an issue-specific rating but whose risk-weights are
determined under the Capital Rules by reference to an ECAI issuer
rating assigned to the obligor of the exposure or to an ECAI issue
rating of any other exposures of the obligor).

(3) exposures which do not have ECAI issue-specific rating, nor
inferred rating.

(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures

The Group exercises strict control limits in tenor and
outstanding amounts on net open positions arising from
over-the-counter (“OTC”) derivative transactions, repo-
style transactions and credit derivative contracts booked in
its banking book or trading book. The credit risk exposures
associated with these contracts are predominantly their fair
values (i.e. the positive marked-to-market values favourable to
the Group). These credit risk exposures together with potential
exposures from market movements are managed as part of
the overall lending limits allowed to counterparties. Collateral
or other security is generally not obtained for such credit risk
exposures.

Settlement risk arises in situations where a payment in cash
or a delivery of securities or equities is made in expectation
of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. To
mitigate settlement risk, daily settlement limits are established
for individual counterparty on the aggregate of all settlements
on a day. The Group will also enter into netting arrangements
and make settlement on the basis of delivery against payment
as appropriate.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
7. BEREE@m 7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(T) EERK @ (d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  XKBHFsERRFRIEE) (i) Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)
TERBAAREEREBIMTIERGZEE The following table summarises the Group’s main credit
EERRFAE - exposures arising from OTC derivative transactions.
2014 & 20134
12H31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2014 2013
L] Group
NFEEIFEEERE Gross total positive fair value 829,590 760,123
EEZEEHE Credit equivalent amounts 2,856,896 2,301,193
RAEHmEE - &85 Value of recognised collateral by type
—FR - Deposits 2,998 52,737
[R\Be2 I 258 Risk weighted amounts 1,832,172 1,388,573
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(T) EERK @
(i) KBEHFIZERERAIE )

TERELEESEREREERRFER
[\ fx DA BURR 2 AT

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(i)  Counterparty credit risk exposures (Continued)

An analysis of the credit equivalent amounts or net credit
exposures, and the risk-weighted amount is summarised as

follows.
2014 & 20134
12H31H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
BIMTERS OTC derivative transactions 2014 2013
S ] Group
HEEE Notional amounts:
—3R1T - Banks 89,489,496 76,279,835
—&E — Corporates 35,478,655 33,038,898
—E A - Others 874,642 1,013,013
125,842,793 110,331,746
EEEEHE Credit equivalent amounts/net
EERRFRE credit exposures:
—R1T — Banks 1,534,486 1,416,017
— =8 — Corporates 1,203,595 762,823
— HoAt — Others 118,815 122,353
2,856,896 2,301,193
[ Bz N 2N ER Risk-weighted amounts:
—R1T — Banks 595,275 527,179
— =8 — Corporates 1,196,120 751,285
— HAth - Others 40,777 110,109

2014412 A 31 H % 201312 431 H -
VEREEBIARSREENTERSE
Wz EERE -

1,832,172 1,388,573

There were no credit exposures arising from repo-style
transactions and credit derivatives contracts at 31 December
2014 and 31 December 2013.
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(CABREFThz5I7R)

7. BREEm@m)
(T) EERK @
(i) JRIEIEEE R

AEERAZREEERRIA KA
CERTTEE (BA) 3R AR LR B 7 g
BZAR - WBZ2ERRERNEERARS
TR THENERHTAIH)PELE
e MELBRZXFPER  AEBINME
BRI  REBURREIEREETR
FEEEFBE R -

REEMR R TBEMEERHE R
weth - AR ZEEYE - ARTS
EBEHRIB6EAMKE—R - FER@Z
MEE MR ARE ZBHR/EATER
THEREE -

() miEmkE

AEBEEETRER TSR - FIERAZER
EIEHUR S A2 Fr AT A 75 R I RES. 8RR

(C) EERH

REBRBRE(BHL) EAREEZBBE I
EMFAEIHCEEGERR - RELANREA
BERAEESERN R 2 F R 2 EF AR
APEFTER A 2 5 AT -

AEBZFAHERBKOABRSEERIKREET
HE=HRELBAMEEZ EBMHIRETH -
ZRENEAREBETERERETUATFENE
BHZEH T ABEMNSRMEE - WE 2007 F
FEADRE - R2014F12 A31 8 - RHRIKRE
KIEANBERZRE  ZIREUNEEEZ 12.66%
(20134 : 5.50% ) HIFIEREESIER ©
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(d) Credit risk (Continued)
(iii)  Credit risk mitigation

The credit risk mitigation techniques used by the Group are
generally those recognised by the Banking (Capital) Rules for
reduced capital weighting. Common types of collateral obtained
are cash deposits, real estate properties, as well as taxi and
public light bus medallion. For certain types of advances to
customers, the Group also places reliance on guarantees issued
by governments, public sector entities and corporates with
acceptable credit rating.

Real estate properties taken as collateral are evaluated before
the loan can be drawn. For property collateral supporting
problem accounts, their open market values are appraised at
least every six months. For property collateral that has been
repossessed, the Group’s policy is to arrange for realisation as
soon as practicable.

(e) Market risk

The Group is exposed to various types of market risk. Details of the
risk management policies and procedures adopted are set out in Note
3.3 to the financial statements.

() Asset securitisation

The Group uses the standardised (securitisation) approach to
calculate the credit risk for securitisation exposures on Basel Ill basis.
Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s are the ECAIs that the Group has
used in relation to each and all classes of the securitisation exposures
below.

The asset securitisation exposures of the Group represented
investment in structured investment vehicles managed by third
party portfolio managers and in which the Group is an investor. The
investment is classified as a financial asset designated at fair value
through profit or loss in the Group’s banking book and has been
assessed as impaired since 2007. It is carried at a residual value of
12.66% (2013: 5.50%) of the par value as at 31 December 2014 based
on price quote obtained from the investment manager.
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7. BREEm@m)
(B2) EEZEHtbw

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(f)  Asset securitisation (Continued)

58 Group
R
L
fii ¥ 1250%
BREE BREETRA
AME  Risk-weighted Exposures deducted from
73 amount - EARE LRRE-RER —HER
EH Securitisation Outstanding at 1250% Capital Common Equity Tier 2
BEBAE exposures amounts risk weight ~ requirements  Tier 1 Capital Capital
2014 F 2014
#ERLam Synthetic securitisations
—REHEETA - Structured investment
vehicles 9,818 122,725 9,818 - -
20134 2013
#ERLamk Synthetic securitisations
—REHEETA - Structured investment
vehicles 4,247 53,088 4,247 - -

(BR) $R1TRRZ IR B

REBENEB VIR RS BRIk E SRHER B
MEFHEERRER N - RASFEENIEER
) 2 fE a5 1R B AR B E 2 B DT AR R
PE - MISRAN - BE FRRBENEEET
PBBRRE < NEES - REM A REEESIE
A o SRR ER TS B EEEME -

(@) Equity exposures in banking book

The Group distinguishes its equity holdings between those taken for
strategic reasons and those taken for capital appreciation purposes
at inception of the acquisition. Equity holdings identified for capital
appreciation purpose is evaluated based on rigorous investment
analysis and is subject to internal guidelines on stock selection,
marketability, valuation, position limit, management action trigger,
and various other control guidelines. Listed equity holdings are valued
on the basis of market bid prices.

£ Group 2014 2013
HE /BB M EE 2 W Realised gains from sales/liquidations = 64,497
B30 7 B E Unrealised revaluation gains
—EBREEREEERERN IR — Amount included in reserves but not
pd ¢ through income statement 106,230 79,128
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7. BREEm@m)
(%) RITRZFRERS

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(h) Interest rate risk exposures in banking book

B
Currency
BT EY AR Hity &t
2014 % 2014 HK$ USs$ CNY Others Total
HEEREE LH200%F Interest rate risk shock +200 basis points
— &R/ CR) - Increase/(Decling) in earnings 2,000 (203,000) (12,000) (133,000) (346,000)
Currency
BT = BT Hith G
2013 2013 HK$ USs$ EUR Others Total
HEEREE LH200%F Interest rate risk shock +200 basis points
—BH ()& - (Decline)/Increase in earnings (12,000) (182,000) 1,000 (120,000) (313,000)

(E) BERR

AEESE —(EAEERBERRERR 855
REBAR  —BIURRERNE  RREZE
BMRAPIZIRIERBRAS - WEB—FRINE
TERBEBUR - BT A - R ERE RS 1R HR R
wRERg RARHEEENTIERRESETA
EBIE - RERR R AMEZEER B S (MHRIERR KR
NHEEZEG ) ERY  WEEASEZBE
Rl EIR R ANEEEE - BIERARRAEDEE
ZEERTRAREEEIRLHAE TATESR
SEEEABMARK - EERY —ERF A BT
R RIERR T D MR - FFE - B
SRR o RBeR B AR B BB MW EEZIRIE
B2 - RAMNRERIZ TR BT o

BREFGABAXMBAREARB 2 HZE K
SEERERAGH  BRIEETHRE RS - X
HATA X BRMB R IRAPTETRR -

SR A BB N S PO A1 R
FHLA TR (AR - ARE 2 BREER
AREBRREERREAREE L RRARAMN
-

KERITAR AT | 2014545

(i) Operational risk

The Group manages its operational risk through a management
structure comprising members of senior management and an
independent risk management team and operational risk officers
from each business and support function, and operating through a
set of operational risk policies, risk tool-kits, operational risk incident
reporting and tracking system, and control self-assessment and
key risk indicator tools. The Operational Risk and Internal Control
Committee (“ORICC”) has been set up to oversee the operational
risk management and internal control matters of the Group. ORICC is
chaired by the Chief Executive with certain Executive Directors and
senior management as members. Together with a well-established
internal control system, operational risk can be adequately identified,
assessed, monitored and mitigated. To allow the operational risk
framework to be clearly communicated to all levels within the Group,
awareness and training programs are conducted from time to time.

To minimise the impact on the Group’s business in the event of
system failure or disasters, back-up sites and operation recovery
policies and plans have been established and tested for all critical
business and operations functions.

Operational risk framework is also supported by periodic independent
reviews of internal control systems by external and internal auditors.
The Group’s Risk Management and Compliance Committee have an
overall oversight of the performance and effectiveness of operational
risk management.
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7. BREEm@m)
(%) BERRK

REEFEBERAT — R EEREE R
AR A BERE TR - Rl EIEME RN E R M IRIE
TEEERREREEREZSKT  ARMR
BRBRMER  RHEE B THEIIREE
HERBEPZEFE M UEHAREZRE
HBH - RNEBFRAE EES R ERLEIL HIFT K
KMiEFF  AREBERRHZEZ#E -

(F) HEgtEE R

EFECAEREERABZHH TERAREER
B IR - EEHFTEAREDEE S B 2R
BRIEBRAREZ 8 BIRGIFTEBREIAE
BzE R EERBERINITUEREER
SEZRBEEBRR B YRIEBRR - BE
HRERAZRAER 2 BR - URREEERE
ABREUEE e AR E R -

(B) FEBERHENELRRBHER

BREEFTEAZTRER(BEEABEIDR
2007 F1 AAEMUIAK « RBFTTHRAFRELAERE
SRk ETSRR - RRAERBIR AT ERE
B - i FERCRITER (BAR) RADATIRZ R
AJDE e Bt ARTEEEREERGRERE
AR ZE TR ZITE -

BEARERNR2012F £ 2014 F R BAMCIRITHE
(BA) (BT RADKR R 2012 FFH 4 ZHCEER
SR )BEMEIER] 2 BEEBEFM)CA-G-5 -
FEAEMTABEREARER - BI—KFiEz [
ZERIHE N AR o KIEFT 2 EARER| RAAHEEE
HIE B 2013 65 1 A BB S A R mT # s A
Mo RRITERAELEATIERBEERL KR
ATF & FTRIHRE ©

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
() Reputation risk

The Group manages reputation risk through upholding a high
standard of corporate governance and management oversight,
maintenance of effective policies and procedures with emphasis
on internal control, risk management and compliance; proper staff
training and supervision; proper handling of customer complaints
or dissatisfaction; and adherence to sound business practices.
Standards are set and policies and procedures are established by the
Group in all areas, which operate to reduce vulnerability to reputation
risk.

(k) Strategic risk

The Board of Directors, assisted by senior management, is directly
responsible for the management of strategic risk. Directors formulate
the strategic goals and key direction of the Group in line with the
Group’s corporate mission, ensure business strategies are developed
to achieve these goals, oversee the strategic development and
implementation to secure compatibility with the Group’s strategic
goals, review business performance, deploy proper resources to
achieve the Group’s objectives, and authorise management to take
appropriate actions to mitigate risks.

( Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital and Liquidity
Standards

Since the revised capital adequacy framework known as Basel Il
has become effective from January 2007, the Bank has adopted
the standardised approach for credit risk and market risk, and the
basic indicator approach for operational risk. These are the default
approaches as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules. Accordingly,
the Bank has overhauled its systems and controls in order to meet the
standards required for these approaches.

To implement the new international capital standards commonly
referred to as the “Basel IlI” rules, the HKMA had published the
Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules between 2012 and 2014, and
revised SPM CA-G-5 on “Supervisory Review Process” in the 4th
quarter of 2012. The revised capital standards and related regulatory
requirements have come into force for all locally incorporated
authorized institutions in Hong Kong starting from 1 January 2013.
The Bank has enhanced its capital management and reporting
framework as well as disclosures for meeting the new requirements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

() Compliance with the Basel Ill Capital and Liquidity
Standards (Continued)

In addition to the implementation of the Banking (Liquidity) Rules
under the Basel Il framework in Hong Kong from 1 January 2015,
two new capital buffers, namely the Capital Conservation Buffer and
Countercyclical Capital Buffer, designed to ensure that banks build up
sufficient capital to withstand periods of stress and system-wide risk
associated with periods of excessive aggregate credit growth, would
commence to phase in starting from 1 January 2016. In this regard,
the Group has been keeping track closely with the development in
the regulatory framework to ensure readiness to comply with the new
requirements.

(m) Launch of new product or service

The launch of every new product or service is governed by the New
Product Approval process stipulated under the Group Risk Policy
which requires the relevant business and supporting units, including
GRD, to review the critical requirements, risk assessment and
resources plan before the launch. New products or services which
could have a significant impact on the Group’s risk profile should be
brought to the attention of the Board or its designated committee(s)
before the launch. The Group’s Internal Audit function performs
regular independent review and testing to ensure compliance by the
relevant units in the new product approval process.

(n) The role of Internal Audit

The Group’s Internal Audit Division is an independent, objective
assurance and consulting unit which is designed to focus on
enhancing and sustaining sound internal control in all business and
operational units of the Group. The Division reports functionally to the
Group Audit Committee, which is chaired by an Independent Non-
Executive Director. The Division conducts a wide variety of internal
control activities such as compliance audits and operations and
systems reviews to ensure the integrity, efficiency and effectiveness
of the systems of control of the Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. REMUNERATION SYSTEM
(@) Remuneration Principles

The Group adopts the following remuneration principles:

o Pay for performance is the guiding principle to reward individual
performance and contribution, which are measured through the
performance management process.

o The remuneration structure is based on various factors such
as business needs, market situations and the principles set
out in relevant legal and regulatory requirements applicable to
employees’ remuneration.

o The Group Remuneration Policy (“GRP”) is to align with the
Group’s risk management framework, and to support the
achievement of long-term financial soundness of the Group,
including its key subsidiary banks.

. Variable remuneration is designed to align employees’ incentive
awards with their performance and contributions in the long
term, and the time horizons of risk.

° Generally, the proportion of variable remuneration to
total remuneration increases in line with the seniority and
responsibilities of an employee.

° The appropriate proportion of variable remuneration to be
deferred depends on a number of factors, including an
employee’s seniority, role, responsibilities and activities
within the Group, the time horizons of the risks incurred by
the employee’s activities and the overall level of their variable
remuneration both in absolute terms and as a proportion of his/
her fixed pay.

° Decision of individual remuneration package will depend on
market pay levels, individual performance and contribution,
principles set out in the GRP, and performance and affordability
of the Group, and consideration of regulatory guidelines.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8.
(a)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

Remuneration Principles (Continued)

The Group’s remuneration strategy is to position itself at market

median to upper quartile level, and offers to its employees

remuneration packages, which normally consist of guaranteed

cash and variable remuneration largely in the form of discretionary

performance incentive bonus, that as a whole will properly reward

individual performance and are competitive relative to market pay

levels.

(b)

Governance of the Remuneration System

() Oversight by the Group’s Board of Directors and the

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Group’s Board of Directors approves the GRP and assumes
the ultimate responsibility for overseeing the formulation,
implementation and update of the GRP. The Board of the
Bank’s parent company, DSBG, has in place the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”), which is a committee
of the Board of DSBG having oversight responsibilities and
authority on remuneration system and practices over DSBG and
its subsidiaries, including the Bank. Members of the NRC are
appointed by the DSBG Board. The majority of the members of
NRC are independent non-executive directors of DSBG and of
the Bank. The committee is responsible, among other things, for
the review of the nomination of new directors, approval of the
remuneration of directors and senior management. The Board
delegates the following responsibilities and authorities to the
NRC:

° Assists the Board in discharging its responsibility for
the design and operation of the Group’s remuneration
system;

° Reviews, and makes recommendations to the Board
in respect of the Group’s remuneration policy and
practices and ensures that these are determined based
on appropriate factors such as business needs, market
practices and the principles set out in relevant legal and
regulatory requirements;
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REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)

(i) Oversight by the Group’s Board of Directors and the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (Continued)

° Determines the specific remuneration packages of
members of senior management of the Group;

o Evaluates any practices or recommendation by which
remuneration is paid for potential future revenues or
benefits whose timing and likelihood remain uncertain;
and

. Ensures that regular review of the Group’s remuneration
system and its operation is sustained.

The NRC held three meetings in 2014 and 2013 respectively.
No director’s fee was payable to the Bank’s Independent Non-
Executive Directors, as they were remunerated by the Bank’s
holding company, DSBG or ultimate holding company, DSFH.

(i)  Review of the Remuneration System

Internal Audit Division (“IAD”) of the Group is responsible to
conduct internal monitoring of the remuneration system and
its operation to ensure compliance with the GRP. As required
by the Group’s remuneration framework, a review, at least on
an annual basis, of the Group’s remuneration system and its
operation, which includes an assessment of consistency with
the “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System” issued by
the HKMA, is conducted independently of the management and
the result is submitted to the NRC and to the HKMA if required.
The independent review can be conducted by an external
party, or by the Group’s internal audit, legal and compliance or
human resources functions, or a combination of these parties as
directed by the NRC. The NRC will report any material issues in
relation to the Group’s remuneration system or practices to the
Board of the Group and the Bank.

IAD conducted the review in April 2014 jointly with Human
Resources Division (“HRD”) and noted that the Group’s
remuneration system was in compliance with the GRP and
consistent with the HKMA'’s guideline in this connection.
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8. HENFE @ 8. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)
(Z) FMHIEZER @ (b) Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(i) SRR AR A (i) Roles of the Risk Control Functions

RRESBERFAREEERRE AR

Risk control functions, including GRD, Legal and Compliance
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Division (“LCD”) and FCD, are involved in the process of design
and implementation of the GRP. They will play a continuing
role in the operation of the remuneration system in relation to
matters such as risks measures and risk judgements. They
will also be consulted by the NRC, where appropriate and
independent of business divisions, on their view and advice
as to how compensation relates to risk at various levels within
the Group or specific business division, including the proper
alignment of risk and reward, and the time horizon on risk
and performance measurement, changes in the risk profile
of the Bank in general, or of a particular business division or
major business strategy, and the considerations as regards
remuneration to properly align with risks taken, with the need to
balance the time horizon for longer term business performance
and risk realisation.

FCD together with GRD are responsible for the proper
disclosure of the Group’s remuneration system and practices,
and specific features relating to actual remuneration to comply
with the HKMA remuneration guideline. The heads of each of
the risk control functions report administratively to the Chief
Executive, and most have a functional reporting line to relevant
board-level committees chaired by independent non-executive
directors. All risk control functions specified above have direct
and independent access to the NRC on matters relating to the
Group’s remuneration system and practices. In addition, both
GRD and LCD have direct access to the Bank’s board-level Risk
Management & Compliance Committee.

The Group’s banking and financial services business model
is a risk underwriting and risk management business. With
risk management as a key function and control process of
the Group, a key purpose of GRD is to assist the Group to
maximise the probability of achieving the Group’s long-term
objectives while ensuring that the Group, its business and
risk control units, in pursuing various business strategies and
managing risk taking activities, will have proper regard to short-
term constraints, limits and regulatory guidelines, and with the
general sense and appropriate process on striking a proper
balance of risk and reward for the long-term success and
soundness of the Group.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8.
(b)

(c)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Governance of the Remuneration System (Continued)
(iv)  Roles of the Human Resources Division

One of the key roles of HRD is to support the Group to attract
quality candidates and retain and motivate existing employees.
To achieve these objectives, HRD regularly reviews the Group’s
human resources policies and employees’ compensation
and benefits with reference to market practices to ensure
competitiveness. HRD also provides support to the design and
implementation of remuneration policy and measures to meet

regulatory requirements and align with market practices.

Application of the Group Remuneration Policy to the
Staff of the Group

The GRP is established to provide the key remuneration principles

and practices covering all employees of the Group, and the key risk

management requirements relating to remuneration, performance and

risk control. Specific regards are on the remuneration and the roles of

the following personnel:

1)

Senior Management are senior executives with accountability
to the Board, and are responsible for executing the firm-
wide strategies, guiding the development of the Group, and
overseeing business activities, risk management and internal
control of the Group. These mainly include the Chairman, Vice
Chairmen, Chief Executive and Executive Directors of the Bank.

“Key Personnel”, i.e. individual employees whose duties
or activities in the course of their employment involve the
assumption of material risk or the taking on of material
exposures on behalf of the Group. The Group currently does
not have any employees classified as Key Personnel under its
existing remuneration system.

Groups of employees whose activities in the aggregate may
expose the Group to material amounts of risk, and who
are subject to the same or similar incentive arrangements
(including employees who are incentivised to meet certain
quotas or targets by payment of meaningful amount of
variable remuneration). The Group currently does not have
any employees classified in this category under its existing
remuneration system.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

(c) Application of the Group Remuneration Policy to the
Staff of the Group (Continued)

(4) Employees within risk control functions (including group risk
management, legal and compliance, internal audit, and financial
control).

In 2014, the NRC reviewed the GRP which was revised with
the update in respect of the party responsible for making
recommendations of remuneration packages of Senior Management
and Key Personnel as well as to whom the broader and higher level
performance measures are to apply. Remuneration packages of the
Chairman, Vice Chairmen, Chief Executive and individual Executive
Directors are determined solely by the NRC, after considering the view
or any comment of the RMCC, a Board level committee of the Bank.
Remuneration packages of other Senior Management members are
subject to the approval of the NRC following a recommendation to the
NRC by the Chief Executive of DSBG.

Remuneration of all employees in risk control functions is independent
of the performance of the business units which they exercise control
or oversight. Generally, the remuneration of these employees is
determined by their respective Divisions, and Top Management will
be involved in the determination of remuneration of the respective
senior personnel. Management of business units are not allowed to
determine the remuneration of employees in the risk control functions.

Subsidiaries in overseas locations broadly follow the principles
and guidelines set out in the GRP, and may customise the relevant
parts where appropriate to address their local legal/regulatory
requirements, market situations and business needs.

(d) Structure of Remuneration

(i) Components

The structure of remuneration is generally composed of the
following components:

° Fixed remuneration including basic salary, allowances and
retirement benefits, and

° Variable incentives-based remuneration including
discretionary performance incentive bonus, and for some
front-line sales and services staff, incentive payment
based on business and sales performance.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)
(i) Components (Continued)

In determining an appropriate balance between fixed and
variable remuneration, the Group takes into consideration the
seniority, role, responsibilities and activities of its employees,
the need to promote appropriate behaviour amongst employees
that supports the Group’s risk management framework and
long-term financial soundness, as well as market pay practices.
The proportion of variable remuneration to total remuneration
generally increases in line with the seniority and responsibilities
of an employee.

For Senior Management, a fair to substantial proportion of
the remuneration is paid in the form of variable remuneration,
which is mainly granted in the form of performance incentive
bonus. Starting from 2010 performance year, a portion of the
bonus is deferred in the form of deferred bonus and subject to
vesting over a period of at least three years. This practice is to
achieve an effective alignment of incentive awards with the time
horizons of risks.

DSBG, the Bank’s holding company, and DSFH, the Group’s
ultimate holding company, have established executive share
option schemes under which, and subject to proper approval
process and vesting conditions, share options can be granted
to senior executives and other employees of the Bank to reward
their performance and contribution, and as a means to retain

relevant senior executives or employees.
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8. FEMFIE @ 8.
(T) FENERE 3 (d) Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)
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(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk
Adjustment

The Group’s performance is evaluated based on the
achievement against a set of pre-determined business or
financial targets that are of broader and higher level nature, such
as profitability target, and supervisory rating assigned by the
HKMA, which were set at the beginning of the performance year.
The performance of a division in a year is determined by the Vice
Chairman and Chief Executive based on the actual performance
and achievement against a set of pre-determined objectives or
targets of the division for the year set at the beginning of the
year, contributions to the Group and other factors considered
relevant for assessing performance. For business divisions, the
pre-determined targets normally include return on allocated
capital and business growth targets. Individual employees’
performance measures include assessable financial (e.g.
revenue, profits, costs, customer base, etc.) and non-financial
factors (e.g. competence, adherence to risk management
policies, compliance with legal, regulatory and ethical
standards, etc.).

GRD has the responsibilities of managing different types of risk
and maintaining a sound risk management system to enable
the Group to achieve its objectives, which include achieving
proper risk and return balance for the Group and its major
lines of business. The Head of GRD has access to the EC and
reports functionally to the board-level RMCC chaired by an
Independent Non-Executive Director and administratively to the
Chief Executive.

Based on the Group’s performance against the pre-determined
targets set at the beginning of the year, long-term performance
and affordability of the Group as well as other relevant internal
and external factors, the Chief Executive proposes a preliminary
amount of total performance bonus for the year and allocation
considerations.
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(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

(i)  Criteria Used for Performance Measurement and Risk

Adjustment (Continued)

GRD provides an annual report to the RMCC, or on a more
frequent basis as appropriate, on the risk management
performance of the Group and for the purpose of remuneration
review. The GRD report will include but not limited to the
following:

. any significant changes in the risk profile of the Group
during the year;

° any significant improvement or deterioration in the system
of internal controls;

o any significant deterioration or concerns about the
external economic environment that could have potential
adverse impact to the Bank’s businesses and financial
performance;

° any significant concerns raised by regulatory authorities;

° any events that caused significant damage to the
reputation of the Group; and

° specific business or risk actions taken to help mitigate risk
or improve revenue (risk adjusted or justified), or actions
which are considered to have contributed to the long-term
success or values of the Group.

On the basis of its review, the Head of GRD can provide
comment or recommendation to RMCC if any specific
factor or adjustment needs to be considered in determining
the performance bonus pool for the year. The Chairman of
the Group, in consultation with the NRC if necessary, has
the discretion and flexibility to withhold all or part of the
provisionally accrued bonus amount when circumstances
warrant.

The approved performance bonus pool for the performance
year is allocated to divisions based on the relative contribution
of different divisions, their staff profile as well as consideration
of applicable factors, including any input from the risk control
functions, and assessment of risk and return of the key
businesses. Once the respective performance bonus pool of
a division has been determined, the division head will decide
the bonus payments for individual employees taking into
consideration their individual performance and contribution,
internal relativity, the prevailing bonus distribution guideline and
available budget.
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8. FEMFIE @ 8.
(T) FENERE 3 (d) Structure of Remuneration (Continued)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)
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BETMAEMARE  YEBURRZEEZXR 8
BEEZHFE  AG BEERRARITA
2B RESEFREAEZRRS K
ZHIE - AR E 2B BRI
(AEEERIREEEEFHM LI E) -

B2010F£EFERIE - ERARITRE
EBABZEMEEEBHFMNE I &IE
TEH  BERADERELTE GMHE
TERTREMEETFHMTIEA - KT
SEBEEABCZFERSEABREZEER
B SR T2AEAGGREREUATE
= EBERKRREEREETEABSBEIAHM
WMITZ LIEFEEANRB 2 EE - ZEL
{E2 B\l ] aE BIR AV HAR - DA K2 &l s 42
AL B ARRIT 2 AHENE - EREREEE
RBERZTHE - BLETEABRNE TF2
HEAZRFET - HEETSRRLHIE
HERIR AR K SRR IR G I A
BRFAEE - 512014 FHIERIF EZEE
AN2015F3AMG TREERAB ZIE
ERESTEAMS - IRZBIEHT DB
2015 3 A3 ©

ETRAERT - SREMKRE T 2BEF
B E PR [0 ] #H] () RERE T
s () RBAEMRIBEZEIEEZFE A
FRERSA SRR ; (iii) fE B 8 DA BEF SRk
THMERTA  (v) B LEEERAE
EEITHR o

BRpISMER (N ERBMIER) SN - BTH
EIEEAARER T S B R AR H B -

(iii)  Deferral Policy and Vesting Criteria

The appropriate proportion of variable remuneration to be
deferred will vary from employee to employee depending upon
a number of factors, including an employee’s seniority, role,
responsibilities and activities within the Group, the time horizons
of the risks incurred by the employee’s activities and the overall
level of their variable remuneration both in absolute terms and
as a proportion of their fixed pay.

Starting the 2010 performance year, a minimum vesting period
for any deferred variable remuneration for the Bank’s Senior
Management is adopted so that the deferred remuneration
will only be vested and released to the awardees with due
consideration of fulfilling vesting conditions. These pre-defined
vesting conditions, depending on the level of the seniority of the
Senior Management and key roles assumed by each, normally
include factors such as the nature of the business outcomes
and risk arising from the activities undertaken by relevant
Senior Management in the past, the timeframe during which
the risks from these activities are likely to be realised, and the
assessment from risk control functions on the Bank’s internal
control, risk management and compliance performance. The
vesting of the deferred bonus over a period of years is gradual
and no faster than on a pro-rata basis, subject to fulfiiment and
validation of the pre-defined performance conditions. For the
deferred cash bonus under the 2014 performance incentive
bonus to be awarded to Senior Management in March 2015,
the maximum deferment period is no less than three years from
March 2015.

A “claw-back” mechanism is applied in respect of any unvested
deferred variable remuneration if (i) the vesting conditions
are not fulfilled; (ii) performance measurement was based on
data which is later proven to have been manifestly misstated;
(iii) fraud or other malfeasance on the part of the individual
employee; or (iv) major violations by the employee of internal
control policies.

Departure of employees will not trigger early payout of deferred
remuneration that is still within the deferment period other than
in exceptional cases, such as on compassionate grounds.
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(LABEEF Tz dR) (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8. FEMFIE @ 8. REMUNERATION SYSTEM (Continued)

(JR) SEEBEAE ZHM () Remuneration for the Senior Management
TRHFI|RBEBESE RBEM 2(EEBEERFM) The tables below summarise the aggregate quantitative information
CG-5[ REFMGIE S]] FIREZARRIT=E on the remuneration for the Bank’s Senior Management as defined in
EEAEHNESERE - accordance with the SPM CG-5 “Guideline on a Sound Remuneration

System” issued by the HKMA.

(1) FohEw# (1) Remuneration Structure
2014 2013
ZRAEE X AEE
EZ12A31H For the year ended -] Number of T Number of
LHEE 31 December Amount Beneficiaries Amount  Beneficiaries
(& 7 5 Fixed remuneration 44,112 9 40,462 9
FEHM (BT (2) Variable remuneration
PR 2 IEEST B (including deferred remuneration

as shown in (2) below) 62,530 8 56,450 9
EE B AIR S BN RER K The fixed and variable remuneration were paid and payable in
fiF o WEFHMARD KRG IEE 2 TAS cash. No remuneration in the form of shares and share-linked
o instruments were given.
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(LAEREFThz5I7R)

8. HENFE @
(R) EBEBAEZHM @
Q) EAEF

52010 - REFEFH M — &5 (AR
SEEEABRESF 2RAMG T 2RA
BRI ) R DA ETEAL 2 77 FUS AT o IRIETEAL
B ST SRR AR T # 5) R  RBE 4 TR
TEALZ FRIE3FANKE 2 ER ° BTHE
ERGERBERTE  XEAFAKERS
REFEMEE SR RIAERTAIER < B
FETEALR T2 8 FHIR AN 3 ERE 2
FESBEXN -

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

8.
(e)

REMUNERATION SYSTEM (continued)
Remuneration for the Senior Management (Continued)
(2) Deferred Remuneration

Starting 2010, a portion of the cash variable remuneration,
being the performance incentive bonus awarded to members of
Senior Management for their performance in each year, is paid
or payable in the form of deferred cash bonus. The payment
of deferred bonus is subject to vesting and performance
review in the 3 years immediately following the year when the
deferred bonus is awarded. Vesting factors and terms are pre-
determined, and are subject to the review and approval of the
Group’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee. If vested,
the deferred bonus will be paid by 3 equal annual installments
over the 3-year period.

I 7 557 B
Deferred
Remuneration

2014 2013
REFE12A31H K Balance at 31 December of the
©®1 A1 B 2&H% preceding year and at 1 January 37,143 28,085
HZ=12A31HIEFE : For the year ended 31 December:
RrzaH8 Awarded 17,058 15,405
BT RXN Vested and paid (10,370) (6,347)
HRREEEASRRMEUE 2 25 Cancelled due to resignation of
members of Senior Management (378) -
M®12 A31 Bz &% Balance at 31 December 43,453 37,143

20154 3 A% T R A 2 BIEIEAL (R
NmERAEZRERTELERE 2R TG
%) - H48%8512,326,000/8 L0 B B IEE
EHIR 2014412 B 31 B 2658 A o

RFRITARAR | 20144 5 |

The total value of the deferred cash bonus to be vested and
payable in March 2015, subject to satisfying performance
review and fulfilment of pre-determined vesting conditions,
amounts to HK$12,326,000, which is included in the above
balance as at 31 December 2014.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAH SING BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 13 to 227, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule
11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at
31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 March 2015
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RIFBITHERAA

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

BEBBDT

Hong Kong Island Branches

BEEFDT BB AT 20557

Aberdeen 20 Wu Pak Street, Aberdeen 2554 5463 2554 0843

SEEER VDT ERE18UEE F /L% 1 10555

Admiralty Centre Shop No. 10, 1st Floor of the Podium, Admiralty Centre, 3110 1886 3110 2818
No. 18 Harcourt Road

SRR 51T 3% /B E B HE 482 5%

Causeway Bay 482 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay 2891 2201 2591 6037

FED T EEBEF 195IRKKNE

Central Worldwide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central 2521 8134 2526 9427

BEWLDIT 238 293-299 SR HE = K E i T 15-22 5F & K ith B

Fortress Hill Shop No.15-22, G/F and basement, Empire Apartments, 2922 3389 2887 7604
Nos. 293-299 King’s Road

ELITEDTT HLITE 108 RF R /A O T

Gloucester Road G/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road 2507 8866 2507 8654

S 51T PSR SET 13RS MAEM T AR

Happy Valley Shop A, G/F, Kam Yuk Mansion, No. 13 Yuk Sau Street, 2572 0708 2572 0718
Happy Valley

BHIEWD1T L8 B ZR AT 100 SR B TR A TEF I T G59 5%

Heng Fa Chuen Unit G59, G/F, Heng Fa Chuen Paradise Mall, 100 Shing 2558 7485 2889 2520
Tai Road, Chaiwan

HETBEDT BT FUE 164 5%

Johnston Road 164, Johnston Road, Wanchai 2572 8849 2891 3743

Bl 51T TRIEE 2B T A2RA R 1EASR

Kennedy Town Shop A2, G/F, & Unit A, 1/F, Man Kwong Court, 12 Smithfield Road 3101 3883 2960 0790

tAS1T BB 433-437 SREREKE

North Point Chu Kee Building, 433-437 King’s Road 2561 8241 2811 4474

BEEHIT LEEE57-87 i AL IEM T G8 5

Shaukiwan Shop G8, G/F, Tai On Building, 57-87 Shaukiwan Road 2568 5271 2567 5904

AREEDT SRAREF 443-453 550 T 15-16 5 4

Shek Tong Tsui Shop No. 15-16, G/F, 443-453 Queen’s Road West 2857 7473 2108 4539

ERH1T FIR1EEHE 288 5 S EANEM T B2 R iE—EBE

Sheung Wan G/F & 1/F, No. 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan 2851 6281 2581 2216

AERD T R E AR 1 SR 2 a &30 T 501 5T 48

Taikoo Shing Shop No. G501, On Shing Terrace, No. 28 Taikoo Shing 2884 4802 2884 3151

Road & No. 1-9 Tai Yue Avenue, Taikoo Shing
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RETRITHRA A

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEEDT

Kowloon Branches

REHDT BERCEET 105 T A

Shing Yip Street Shop A, G/F, 10 Shing Yip Street, Kwun Tong 2191 8103 2191 87283

AWD1T AR AT 28 5% SFERM T 3 R 4R d —1E 2SR A R — 12 35

Hunghom Shop No. 3 and 4 on G/F, Shop No. 2 on 1/F and Shop 2365 8110 2363 5917

No. 3 on 2/F, Cheron Court, 28 Wuhu Street, Hunghom

EB D 1T R RHUE 335 5%

Jordan 335 Nathan Road, Jordan 2385 0161 2782 0993

BUESD1T BUERZEAFELTR O T 7-9 555

Kwun Tong Shop Nos. 7-9, G/F, Yee On Centre, 45 Hong Ning Road, 2389 3911 2389 8239

Kwun Tong

BEHT EEEM AL E ES —1E 1101 21102 54

Lok Fu Shop Nos. 1101 and 1102, 1/F, Lok Fu Plaza, Wang Tau Hom 2337 6300 2337 6922

EFHWPBDIT FEF U A EARFE 10A T~ N26E & F 5= 47

Mei Foo Sun Shop No. N26E & F, G/F, 10A Nassau Street, Stage V 2370 2660 2370 2006
Chuen Mei Foo Sun Chuen

HADT T A8 697 5%

Mongkok 697 Nathan Road, Mongkok 2394 4261 2391 9104

AR 21T KRR A 124 55T

Shamshuipo G/F, 124 Fuk Wing Street, Shamshuipo 2361 0951 2958 0985

EREEED T FREEIBES — Al 2 F5A-F6A SR

Telford Gardens Units F5A-F6A, Level 2, Telford Plaza |, Kowloon Bay 2927 4130 2755 4967

TES1T T IEE 237ARHZERNE

Tokwawan |I-Feng Mansion, 237A Tokwawan Road 2365 9035 2363 5696

BERDIT 15 R = 817 9 5% PopCorn 5 T~ |8 G58 SR s &8

Tseung Kwan O Shop G58, G/F, PopCorn, 9 Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O 2752 1223 2752 1098

# E R A BT AN AR 0SB = HA— 12 127 548
FEE AP ODIT

Tseung Kwan O Shop 127, Level 1, Metro City Plaza Ill, Tseung Kwan O 2927 2101 2702 2305
Metro City Plaza

RDEHAT KL ERZE 66-70 5K R AE

Tsimshatsui Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road, Tsimshatsui 2366 9121 2311 1491
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44T Branch

ik Address

T Tel

& HE Fax

REFBVITHERAF
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

hEEDTT

Kowloon Branches

BT
Wong Tai Sin
JH i3t 2 1T

Yaumatei

FAMIEEE 103 5 J AN O T G3C R4
Shop No. G3C, Ground Floor, Wong Tai Sin Plaza, Wong Tai Sin

B i3 5 2B 561 5%
561 Nathan Road, Yaumatei

2326 5165

2782 1339

2350 0894

2385 9285

MREDT

New Territories Branches

RED1T
Cheung Fat

BF 51T

Kwai Fong

BRILBEESD1T
Ma On Shan Plaza

BRBDIT
Maritime Square
BB DT
Ocean Walk
PDH1T
Shatin

DB DT
Sha Tsui Road
Exp4T
Sheung Shui
REHT

Tai Po
RER1T

Tai Wai

FREATILFE 6 5% R 3 E 5 =12 302A [ 302B 57 i
Shop Nos. 302A-302B, Level 3, Cheung Fat Plaza, 6 Tam Kon
Shan Road, Tsing Yi

SR ES IRATT SRR S RS Fs— 1 116 5%
Shop No. 116, First Floor, Kwai Fong Plaza, Kwai Fong Estate,
177 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung

58211178 3K 608 5% 5 82| LI FE 15 = 12 335 5t 4
Shop 335 on Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza, 608 Sai Sha Road,
Ma On Shan

B K S M 33 57 B KK 108 D-E 5k
Shop 108 D-E, Maritime Square, 33 Tsing King Road, Tsing Yi
P9 2R 75 168-236 57 37 93-95 54
Shop 93-95, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, Tuen Mun
Y B AFE AR T 9 554
Shop 9, G/F, Lucky Plaza, Shatin

/87D IH 8 288 Sk T
G/F, No. 288 Sha Tsui Road, Tsuen Wan
oK 8L 55-59 SR IKERIEHD T BSR4
Shop B, G/F, Siu Kai House, 55-59 San Fung Avenue, Sheung Shui
RNIBL TR 1 SRR E S T 53 5% & 54 57 i
Units 53-54 on Level 1, Tai Po Plaza, No.1 On Tai Road, Tai Po
Y> K [E]7E 55-56 SR IEAT 14-18 SR B /E B N 1 2 2 5747
Shops 1 and 2 on Ground Floor, Grandeur Garden,
14-18 Chik Fai Street, 55-56 Tai Wai Road, Shatin

2436 1866

2487 8033

2929 4137

2435 1368

2404 6931

2606 3533

2615 1510

2671 5030

2667 2588

2691 1272

2436 1505

2489 1253

2633 3432

2435 1582

2404 7130

2601 2413

2615 1099

2672 1533

2664 3637

2606 1531
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RHFBTERA T

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

FREDIT

New Territories Branches

RKEEEDIT RKEEE 5 =B 132 5% 5

Tin Shui Wai Shop No. 132, Chung Fu Shopping Centre Stage 2, Tin Shui Wai 2448 9008 2448 9112
Chung Fu

BT HEEBRTE14-16 KB HRNE

Tsuen Wan Dang Fat Mansion, 14-16 Tai Ho Road, Tsuen Wan 2492 8102 2415 0984

EMS1T PR 2E = 1B 52-62 SR S E L T 4 5% ] 5 574

Tuen Mun Shops 4 and 5 on G/F, Man Cheung Mansion, 2441 6218 2441 6613

52-62 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
RBAT R | 1) 5RO BE SRAT 1 5% SR AR E B T 23 54
Tung Chung Shop 23, G/F, Tung Chung Crescent, 1 Hing Tung Street, 2109 3484 2109 4353
Tung Chung, Lantau Island

ZEHWPHT ) S 2ERR PR EE AR 35 201 SR

Wah Ming Estate Shop 201, Wah Ming Shopping Centre, Wah Ming Estate, Fanling 2677 8830 2669 9950

TEBLEDT TCEAS LI AR TTRAER 162-168 5Bt A4 T~ C 5t &

Yuen Long Castle Shop C, G/F, Len Shing Mansion, 162-168 Castle Peak Road, 2479 4555 2479 4522
Peak Road Yuen Long
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44T Branch i3k Address T Tel
RAEERITROBRAT

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

B 21T

Macau Branches

AT FEE RS 572 5%

Main Branch Avenida da Praia Grande, No. 572 (853) 8791 0000
REDT RS NG 4355 B

Almirante Lacerda Avenida Almirante Lacerda, No. 43B (853) 2831 6191
BOBRDIT BAIRIE %5818 K5 1% 30-30E 5%

Areia Preta Estrada Marginal do Hipédromo, Nos. 30-30E (853) 2837 8262
STEST R R B A S B 53-59 it iR F S EF A,B,D &

Horta e Costa Avenida Horta e Costa, Nos. 53-59, R/C,

Edf. Grand Oceania, Lojas A,B,D.

(853) 2821 6523

BEHT ENRGETIEIENIE 13 BB T A

Kin Wa Estrada Marginal da Areia Preta, S/N, (853) 2845 0759
Edf. Kin Wa, Bloco 13, R/C, Loja A

i E 51T A A 40-42 5 At

Mercadores Rua dos Mercadores, Nos. 40-42, R/C A (853) 2857 2610

2SI REHEES315-363 FELFIR O T OM

Nape Alameda Dr. Carlos D’ Assumpgéo, Nos. 315-363, (853) 2872 2515
Edificio “Hot Line”, R/C, Loja “O”

BEEHS1T & 2T 4-6 5%

Palha Rua da Palha, Nos. 4-6 (853) 2837 3762

AT ASAT A4T A 29 5%

Ponte e Horta Praca Ponte e Horta, No. 29 (853) 2837 8704

WEED T ERITH L4025

Ribeira do Patane Rua do Visconde Paco d’Arcos, No. 402, R/C (853) 2895 2942

alsfT BIERAHE +— R m/EEE 18 & “CC” 4

Toi San Rua Onze Bairro Tamagnini Barbosa, S/N, (853) 2823 8483

Jardim Cidade Nova, Bloco 18, R/C Loja “CC”

BEST

Taipa Branches

RFEHBDIT KA A FIEW — RERTRH T~ |

Prince Flower City Rua de Evora, Prince Flower City, Lai San Kok, R/C | (853) 2884 2788

BRI BRAERERESEEFH

Tak Fok Avenida de Kwong Tung, S/N, Edificio Tak Fok Seaview Garden, (853) 2882 1308
R/C, Loja F

BERDIT

Coloane Branch

BRDIT B35 Al 9 5% D

Coloane Largo do Matadouro, No. 9-D (853) 2888 2374
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417 Branch #h3k Address B Tel

K$T4R(T (FE) BRAT

Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

w7 R IIIT 28 4 = R FE BR K 5047 55 T R ERITAE 168

Head Office 16/F, Ping An Bank Building, 5047 Shennan Dong Road, (86-755) 2519 9033

EINAEEZIT
Shenzhen Qianhai
Sub-Branch

BEMND1T

Guangzhou

EBH1T
Shanghai
MEa1T
Nanchang
BT DT
Zhenjiang

BT
Foshan Sub-Branch

Luo Hu District, Shenzhen

ARYIT R L R A D B RIINE R 2136 5% 2 BB A s b [ i il

2136 Zhong Xing Road (Shenzhen Bay Part), Nan Shan District, (86-755) 2238 5500

Shenzhen
BREEMMEER AR 604-2 57 KFTIRITAE—[EA
“[EOo1ET

Unit 01, 1/F-2/F, Dah Sing Bank Building,
604-2, North Renmin Road, Yue Xiu District, Guangzhou, Guangdong

(86-20) 8116 0888

EETIREREZILKEH1EBE

Room B, 1/F, 86 North Cao Xi Road, Xu Hui District, Shanghai (86-21) 2411 3388

IEEEmEAEE L1365 1-2E

1/F-2/F, 136 Dieshan Road, East Lake District, Nanchang, Jiangxi  (86-791) 8688 7333

TLERE BT T R D [ AR BB 59 57

59 Jiefang Road, Jing Kou District, Zhenjiang, Jiangsu
FEER & 5 L1 T R A 0 8 B B 8 SR B B SR S B S
111148 ~ 12048

Shop 111, Shop 120, No. 1 Bauhinia Building,
Starcrest, 8 Jinyuan Road, Guicheng,

(86-511) 8530 9999

(86-757) 8513 3555

Nanhai District, Foshan, Guangdong
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Dah Sing Bank, Limited X#R{THR A F)

36/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
EBEETITE— S N\FAFERP L= &

Telephone E & - (852) 2507 8866

Facsimile 5 : (852) 2598 5052

Website  #81E : www.dahsing.com
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